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MAIN OPERATIONAL STRUCTURE

TEXTHERE

As at 30 March 2022 R & - _#F=H=4+H

O

Cosmos Machinery
Enterprises Limited

RE#MEEBRD

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e

Machinery Manufacturing

Business
/ MBS K

Plastic Products Processing
and Manufacturing Business

EBHR 2 MTREGEXEY

Printed Circuit Boards Processing
and Trading Business

ERIEBRZIMIRES £

\ Industrial Consumables
Trading Business

IXEEMEZEY

REEHEERRAR

Manufacturing of Injection
Moulding Machines
B BUERTS

P\

7

WELLTEL
Donghua Machinery Ltd.
RERWARLA
(Dongguan, the PRC F B + 555)

WELLTEL
Cosmos Machinery Technology
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.
REEWEER (L&) BR AR
(Jiangsu, the PRC 1 + jT%)

Manufacturing of Extrusion Machines
and Rubber Injection Machines

FEHB RGBT SUEETS

%

PDEKUMA

Dekuma Rubber and Plastic

Technology (Dongguan) Limited
EREGERR(RR)ARAR
(Dongguan, the PRC #E » &5%)

N

T

Processing of Plastic Food Packaging

RMERBEZ MTER

T

Karmay Plastic Products (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.*

FEPHREHDERAT E/

(Zhuhai, the PRC B+ %)

Processing of Plastic Components
for Home Appliances

REERBEF 2 MTER

/

Cosmos Grand Plastics Co., Ltd. NB
BIEARREEZEBRAT ez
(Hefei, the PRC 1+ A1E) mwj

Manufacturing of
Mannequins and Display Items

AR R MR A 2 BUEET

Dongguan Cosmos Plastic

Products Co., Ltd.* Posh
NCept

FEARZHLSERATM &
(Dongguan, the PRC #1 & + B 55)

Processing of Printed Circuit Boards

ENRIARBE R 2 INT 575

/

Trading of Printed Circuit Boards

£ 0T L

Shenzhen Gainbase Printed
Circuit Board Co., Ltd.*
YN EZERAR AT
(Shenzhen, the PRC FE - #3ll)

KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
R —EMBREBERAF

JOIC

4 CEE
ENRIRESIR - B 5 £ J ( (Hong Kong &3%)
Melco Industrial Supplies
Company Limited
EETEEIERAT -
(Hong Kong &%) -
Guangzhou Melco Industrial
/ Supplies Co., Ltd. "'
EHTERTEENERAT
(Guangzhou, the PRC 1 + f&/I) 59/
Melco Industrial Supplies
__ (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* ﬁ
LET2EM(ESHEEAT b
(Shanghai, the PRC [ + E)§) 5'””“"’)
* For identification proposes only. * EHEHR -

Note: The details of the shareholding of each subsidiary held by the  Z# .
Company or its subsidiaries, please refer to note 41 of the

consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

HARBDRENBARBAESRBARN
REFB FLRAEREREYBHREN
w410
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TRRS

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to spread and is also getting
worse across the globe, causing negative impacts on the society
and economy. A new round of the large-scale fiscal and monetary
stimulus policies rolled out in European and American countries
to promote economic recovery, which boost the consumer
spending. However, global supply chain disruptions, supply-
demand imbalances, and a severe global pandemic continue to
impact business environment. Following effective measures that
brought the pandemic under control in the PRC and production
resumption progressed smoothly last year, many international
orders were placed in Mainland China. Exports of anti-pandemic
items and various consumer goods increased significantly. Hence,
many manufacturing companies maintained strong momentum
from the latter half of last year and our subsidiaries also received
strong order intakes.

However, operating environment is increasingly challenging
since last year such as continuous surges in prices of various
raw materials and energy, shortage of imported materials,
key components and chips, multiple increases in freight and
shipping costs due to shipment disruption and shortage of
freight containers, uneven supply of parts and components from
subcontractors and rising RMB exchange rate. Apart from the
aforementioned challenges, the overall market also experienced
unexpected difficulty in recruiting workers after the Chinese
New Year holiday. In response to this difficulty, many companies
engaged agencies to hire temporary workers for resumption of
production. In addition, some manufacturing companies halted
their production and operations due to wider curbs on electricity
in the third quarter of the year. Enterprises not only faced the
aforesaid challenges, but also confronted a more difficult business
environment. The severe global pandemic slowed down the
recovery in international demand in the latter part of the year.
The PRC’s economy has strongly recovered since the second
quarter of 2020 and the growth momentum of various economic
activities has been easing since the third quarter of 2021. On
the one hand, our team had good opportunities in receiving
bulk order, but on the other hand, we tackled some severe
challenges during the year. Fortunately, all our employees put in
great efforts in overcoming those challenges with their creativity.
In summary, machinery manufacturing business and industrial
consumables trading business achieved satisfactory results, plastic
products processing business maintained steady growth and
however printed circuit boards processing business is facing new
challenges in the business environment.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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2022 will be a year of continued challenges. The electricity
supply would be back to normal under the PRC government’s
arrangement, but other unfavorable factors such as unforeseeable
COVID-19 mutations, rising and fluctuating prices of raw
materials, soaring energy prices due to volatile geopolitical factors
as well as shipment disruption and abnormally high shipping
costs that are likely to persist. The PRC poverty alleviation policy
has achieved gratifying results, the cost is rising due to a change
in labour supply. The implementation of strict control measures
on the real estate market will bring benefits to the long-term
development of Mainland China, but particular attention should
be paid to the economic effect derived from the recent measures.

European and American countries previously rolled out monetary
easing and fiscal stimulus policies are now causing serious
inflation and are now “tapering” monetary-fiscal stimulus. In this
connection, the recovery of the global economy may be softened.
A new round of adjusted monetary policy implemented by the
Federal Reserve may bring negative impacts on some emerging
market economies. Business environment has become increasingly
uncertain driven by Sino-US full-scale confrontation. With
protectionism on the rise around the world, de-globalization’s
effects are more unpredictable. The effects derived from Russia-
Ukraine military conflict are even more difficult to forecast.
Enterprises face numerous uncertainties in a turbulent business
environment.

According to the “Fourteenth Five-Year Plan”, Mainland
China actively directed the high-quality development of the
manufacturing industries, and clearly guiding industries to
develop through digital transformation through digitalization,
networking and artificial intelligence. The PRC government
attaches great importance to environmental protection and
implemented more stringent measures on pollution and carbon
reduction. It also advocates “Internal Circulation” and “Dual
Circulation Economy” strategies, the “Belt and Road Initiative”
and Regional Comprehensive Economic Partnership (RCEP),
through deepening regional cooperation that will bring immense
business opportunities to our subsidiaries. Under the domestic
and global complex environment, relevant departments of the
State Council of the PRC proactively introduced some measures
for economic revitalization, such as reducing government fees,
deferring taxation and employment subsidies, to help micro, small
and medium-sized enterprises in overcoming the predicament.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ITRE®RE (B
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EFEHRS (8@

To kick-start 2022 with full of uncertainties, variables and
challenges, the Group will pay attention to the changes in the
domestic and foreign economic situations as the first priority, and
then summarize all information and conduct analysis carefully
as well as perform contingency plan in due course. We are not
only actively encouraging our subsidiaries to invest in research,
development and innovation, and using new technologies
to improve the quality of services and products, but also
upgrading the production equipment to address the new market
requirements. Moreover, we will strengthen employees’ training
that inspire their new thoughts to tackle challenges ahead. In
response to the challenges, the Group will continue to implement
prudent financial policies and enhance the capability to improve
cash flows.

2021 was a challenging but successful year for the Group. |
deeply appreciate every employee incredibly dedicated efforts in
overcoming various difficulties and | am pleased our management
tackled challenges with their efforts and creativity to achieve
satisfactory results in this year. | also express my thankfulness to
all Directors for their contribution and supervision.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS SUMMARY

Revenue I A
Gross profit EF]
Operating profit &R
Profit for the year FESF

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Revenue

Revenue of the Group for the year was approximately
HK$3,075,305,000 (2020: approximately HK$2,432,021,000),
an increase of 26.5% over the same period last year, which
was mainly due to the increase of revenue of plastic products
processing and manufacturing business and industrial
consumables trading business.

Gross profit

Gross profit of the Group increased by 33.5% over last year's
to approximately HK$544,491,000 (2020: approximately
HK$407,978,000), which was mainly due to the increase of
gross profit of plastic products processing and manufacturing
business. Gross profit margin of the Group also increased by 0.9
percentage point to 17.7% for the year as compared to that of
last year.

Profit for the year

The net profit of the Group greatly increased from approximately
HK$25,878,000 to approximately HK$84,205,000. This increase
was primarily due to gross profit margin of the Group has been
significantly improved and for better cost control in this year.

BEERA D

EEWME
2021 2020
—EZ—F —BEF
HK$’000 HK$000 Change
FAET FAET =3
3,075,305 2,432,021 +26.5%
544,491 407,978 +33.5%
119,813 49,929 +140.0%
84,205 25,878 +225.4%
BT R
KA

KEBARFEZINAFRA3,075,305,00078 70

TETEE 1 492,432,021,000587T) 0 L
AFEREIENMNT265%  TEZHPN B
Il IR EEB R T HERCER £
BIUR A EFHETER 0

EZF
REBZEFMEEFELAZIZISRNELY
544,491,000 5 (ZE 2% | &
407,978,000/ 7T) » FERHNEEE MM
TREEEBNEN EFARNR - REBKXF
EZEFEIREEFREA EF0.9EE DB
F17.7%

FEHF
AEMMBYEFFEERA25,878,00058 T AR
LEFZE4984,205,0008 0  ZERETER
RAEEAFEZENEXBERNSESREBX
B A $E ] 0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERLRI ()

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group was approximately
HK$213,423,000 for the year, decreased by 4.2% as compared
to approximately HK$222,678,000 for last year, mainly due to the
implementation of effective cost measures by the Group.

Selling and distribution costs

The selling and distribution cost of the Group for 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$197,414,000, increased by 30.6% as
compared to approximately HK$151,200,000 for last year.
This increase was mainly due to significant increase in sales
commission.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs amounted to approximately
HK$17,741,000 for the year, representing a decrease by 12.7%
as compared to approximately HK$20,315,000 last year which
was mainly due to gradual repayment on bank borrowings. The
Group will continue to improve the efficiency of capital utilisation
and strive for the most favorable conditions for bank credits, so
as to reduce the overall finance charges.

Other income

The net of other gains and income of the Group decreased
by 58.0% from approximately HK$15,829,000 for 2020 to
approximately HK$6,646,000 for 2021, which was mainly due to
decrease in government grants.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW

Machinery Manufacturing Business

The Group's injection moulding machine (“IMM") manufacturing
business achieved sustained growth for 2021. Strong order
intake for IMM was notable especially in the first half of the
year, in line with other machinery manufacturers in Mainland
China. Throughout the year, sales of our small and medium-sized
machines continue to dominate. Robust sales were recorded in
customer industry segments such as daily consumer products,
packaging, PVC (Polyvinyl Chloride), and household appliances.
A highlight of our sales growth was growing customer adoption
of customized industry specific machine series catered for
PET (Polyethylene Terephthalate) packaging and IT electronics,
as our customized features and solutions fit customers’
sophisticated needs. Furthermore, sales to the automotive and
consumer electronics industries rebounded from depressed levels
experienced last year. Our export business also achieved notable
year on year growth. In all, net profits for this business recorded
notable growth compared to last year.

However, despite strong order intake in the first half of 2021
which pushed our production capacity to peak levels, the
expected pullback in demand was visible since the third quarter.
Demand for IMM was notably weaker in the second half of the
year as customers in multi-segments experienced soaring raw
materials costs, abrupt electricity shortages, unprecedented
surges of freight costs for shipment and limited supply of
containers, which hindered customers’ sales and investment
sentiments. Despite pullback in order intake, orders for large-
sized two-platen machines rebounded slightly in the second
half of the year. Our latest version of full electric machines
was successfully launched this year with satisfactory customer
feedback on machine features and quality. We are confident our
full electric series will suit the changing customer requirements
in reduced energy consumption, injection moulding precision and
stability, and digital transformation.

BEERA KD (&)

EZ ACI)

HHRIEEE

REBTEH (DK HEXBE_T
" —FERTRERIE R o B ARt H A
MREEEEE EX¥FIEEFFTUHR
EEHEMNMGENUFNEERRIISE
THEHERR B PVC (BRIH) K
RESTENERPBRRBESE - HXHEZ
EZEFRABRPET (BREEX_RE L ") &
EURBFRRITENERRAIBEESR
REs=E BERERENINERBRS F
B EERERIBER M EFRAT
MEBERNAERHBEFITXHENZR
[E7t > ML O EBOESRERR L
RMIEMS > ILEFFRP i H) B X FFHA
HLEREIBRER

R BEAEBNIEEE T _—F £
FERTRYLRE THELEBAESE

BIENEH B =FEELEFREZ -HIt
RN TITHEFITBERBREBHEREBE
Wl EXEAAZERENEFEEH
R E AR ~ REEMEENIRR Y GE N
R ERBEZ AMUERREEREXEHE
B ARITBTERNFHERKRERN
BRI BERFILESE  BREWMRE R
STBAIR THEAMRE - FrR > P
HEHRMARINEEH TR EHEEE

HERTME -BMABGLZRIERER
PHREE TBRBEEHERBEMN  URH
BIEBRE ST EZENER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERLRI ()

Amid strong growth in orders and sales, the business confronted
key challenges in supply chain management and agile production
management. Delivery of key components were disrupted and
reduced our production efficiency in the first half of 2021, as
our industry peers scrambled to secure timely supplies. Costs for
raw materials namely cast iron, motion and drive components
surged past record levels. In response, selling prices were adjusted
slightly upwards but impact of increased raw materials costs was
not fully passed onto customers and as a result, affected our
profit margins. With high praise to our production teams, the
two production plants responded in an agile fashion to ramp
up production capacities and efficiencies to deliver the orders
focused on small and medium-sized machines.

New machining centres and production equipment were
successfully installed and on line in the latter half of 2021. In
addition, water-based spray painting lines were further expanded
to align with strict air pollutants emissions reduction goals. These
new investments will further enhance our production capabilities
and capacities to meet future growth targets.

Customer adoption of our self-developed smart digital industrial
platform “iSee 4.0" are encouraging, while our production
bases have further integrated our highly customized version
of "iSee 4.0” to enhance digitalization of our production and
management processes.

While the Group is confident in the IMM business’s progress in
product development and its abilities to achieve growth in an
expanding market in the longer term, we are cautious on our
business outlook for 2022. Rising and volatile costs in terms of
raw materials, parts and components, labour, and shipment are
likely to affect our business and customers in the coming year.
Forecast for domestic and global demands for plastic goods
and machines are difficult to sustain previous high growth
rate. Therefore, any change will have a material impact on the
performance of this business. Furthermore, the IMM business will
focus on further penetrating key industries such as renewable
energy, electric vehicles, infrastructures, medicals, and consumer
electronics to adapt with the changing economic environment.
In order to further solidify our competitive strength and achieve
sustainable business growth in the long run, the Group supports
further investments in research and development, capital
expenditures, talent recruitment and training development.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

For the extrusion and rubber injection moulding machines and
hydraulic presses manufacturing business, it achieved steady
growth in financial performance compared to last year. Sales of
our customized and highly automated rubber injection moulding
machine series catered to the transportation and automotive
industries recorded satisfactory growth in Mainland China and
export markets. Our five-layer co-extrusion machines specialized
for the automotive market continues to attract support from key
customers. Additionally, our highly automated hydraulic presses
systems specially designed for automotive braking parts achieved
breakthrough in orders from key customers. Further expansion on
innovative applications will continue to strengthen our areas of
competitive differentiation.

Despite achieving satisfactory growth momentum, the
management team devoted significant effort to confront major
challenges. Raw materials prices, namely cast iron, machining
of parts, motion and drive components surged to new heights,
while the management team worked closely with suppliers to
ensure timely delivery of raw materials and components. The
business alleviated the negative impact of high raw material costs
by promoting higher-end customized models, revise selling price,
and closely cooperate with suppliers. Moreover, overseas freight
and shipment costs surged to record levels which affected our
order intake, sales, and timely delivery to export markets.

The business also achieved notable awards and recognitions in
terms of research and development and innovation. Our rubber
track automatic production machines (£ 1% B8 % 5 B 1)
and multi-layer nylon automotive tubes and bellows extrusion
line (ZEEBEE & B £ E4Z) obtained the awards of “The
First (Set) Key Technical Equipment Project in Dongguan City (88
EHES (B) EEMER) " and “Famous Quality High-tech
Products of Guangdong Province (B E X BESHEMER ",
respectively. In addition, our continuous efforts in research and
development was recognized by the Department of Industry and
Information Technology of Guangdong Province, being awarded
as one of the “Specialized, Refined, Unique and Innovated Small
and Medium-sized Enterprises in Guangdong Province in 2021

QONFEREBEBR/MPNER) "
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERLRI ()

For the upcoming year, the Group is cautiously optimistic of
achieving steady growth. The automotive, heavy transportation
and electric vehicle industries are the key markets for this
business, and we expect these industries to remain vibrant
and be in search of reliable and customized plastic processing
solutions. However, key risks and challenges will be the uneven
pace of domestic and global economic recovery, raw materials
price volatility, fluctuating foreign currency rates and overseas
shipment costs. In response to these risks and challenges, the
business will devote resources for continuous research and
development for customized solutions, cultivating talents and
training development.

Plastic Products Processing and Manufacturing Business

The plastic food packaging processing plant in Zhuhai maintained
moderate growth for 2021. Our efforts to ensure fine quality and
timely delivery despite the ongoing pandemic earned increased
orders from long-term major customers in the baby formula
industry and health supplements industry. A number of key
new projects were successfully obtained after months of design
and engineering development. However, export business mainly
serving customers in the confectionary industries achieved only
slight growth, as overseas freight costs rose to record levels and
scarce supply of shipping containers hindered growth on our
export business.

Management team continued their focus on design and
development of biodegradable plastics packaging solutions
for our customers to cater for direction of future eco-friendly
packaging that fit carbon reduction policies domestically and
globally. Deployment of customized automation equipment were
ongoing, and achieved the planned targets of direct labour
reduction, quality improvements, and increased production
efficiencies. Furthermore, our digital smart manufacturing systems
were further enhanced, with wider applications in the pipeline, in
order to strive for real-time production monitoring, quality control
traceability, and data analytics for further improvements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

During the year, the major headwinds for this business were the
consistent rise of prices for plastic resins due to rise of crude oil
prices, limited supplies, and rising costs of shipment. Although
a portion of raw materials price increase was passed onto
end customers, following pre-determined pricing adjustment
mechanisms, but a portion had to be borne by our business.
Additionally, profitability of this business was also adversely
affected by increasing direct labour costs and higher frontline
worker turnover.

As a result of our consistent and continuous dedication to
food-grade workshop sanitary control, design and engineering,
customized automated production lines, and business
development milestones, the business was awarded the “High-
Tech Enterprises in Guangdong Province (B & S fit %) "
honour. This achievement will help future business development
as well as potential income tax savings.

The Group will support further investments in design capabilities,
research and development, capital expenditures, production
automation, talent recruitment, and training development. The
Group is cautiously optimistic to maintain steady growth after
successfully bidding new project partnerships with key customers.
Moreover, new customer development in the dairy industry and
other sophisticated food packaging industry will continue.

The plastic components processing plant for household
appliances in Hefei achieved growth amid challenging conditions.
During the year, sales growth of household appliances in
Mainland China became saturated while rising costs affected
profits for key players in the industry. The business faced intense
pressure to discount selling prices throughout the course of the
year. In view of this, our management team responded proactively
by mobilizing all departments to refine 5S practices, improved
management techniques including the use of customized
automation and digital systems to achieve unit cost savings
and lower wastages. Special attention was paid to enhance
staff training and effective management culture to strengthen
employees’ technical skillsets and competencies in combating
challenges which may arise from the dynamic marketplace.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERLRI ()

Sales orders gradually ramped up in the latter part of 2021,
as our main customer’s appliance export business recovered.
In addition to intense price negotiations with customers
and confronting rising raw materials and labour costs, the
management team not only focused on prudent financial control
to ensure a healthy operating cash flow for business operations,
but also successful bidding of key new projects so as to provide a
foundation for steady growth for the upcoming year.

The business obtained the honour of “High-Tech Enterprises
in Anhui Province (Z#E &M LM EZE) " as our long-term
dedication to refined production technologies were recognized by
Anhui provincial bureaus. This achievement will help with future
customer development and potential income tax savings.

Outlook for the upcoming year is forecasted to be challenging.
The market for household appliances is not forecasted to grow
at significant pace as consumer spending is steady at best, and
new home sales are weak in recent quarters, which affects
household appliance demand. Meanwhile, raw materials costs are
likely to remain high. Competition within the plastic processing
industry for home appliances will continue to be intense. We will
nevertheless continue to focus on lean manufacturing practices to
ensure quality standards and unit cost savings and minimize the
negative impact on the business.

The blow moulded plastic mannequin production plant in
Dongguan recorded satisfactory growth despite a challenging
year. As the pandemic outbreaks caused lockdowns and
disruptions to our European retail based customers, sales and
deliveries were weaker than expected in earlier parts of the year.
Fortunately our major customer, a global sporting goods retailer,
implemented their aggressive new shop expansion in Europe
and in the PRC, ramped up our sales throughout the year. Our
prior development efforts in terms of designs, rapid prototyping,
quality assurance and reliable production capabilities are clearly
paying off in earning the trust of this customer. Management
team is confident the business grow further with close
partnership with this customer and to leverage our reputation in
fine quality blow moulded mannequins to expand our customer
portfolio.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Our production and engineering team performed well to confront
various challenges. Plastic resins prices reached new heights
during the year which raised our materials costs. Severe shortage
in shipping containers and unprecedented rise in overseas freight
costs affected our deliveries and costs. Market conditions for
retailers have long been challenging as online retail continues
eat into offline channels’ market shares. Retailers also are paying
close attention to recyclability and environmental concerns
for their display items. Traditional mannequin manufacturers,
especially those who produce fibreglass mannequins, are facing
extreme difficulties as the PRC government and governments
elsewhere continue to clamp down on pollution caused by
fibreglass production and spray painting. Unit labour costs for
traditional mannequin manufacturers are reaching historically
high levels. We believe despite the overall slowdown of new retail
store expansion, our eco-friendly and high quality blow moulded
products will continue to attract more global brands in the future.

In view of the above, we will deploy resources in product designs
and engineering, quality assurance processes, production capacity
expansion, and market development. The Group is cautiously
optimistic this business can sustain their growth trajectory if our
fashion and sporting goods retail customers are able to execute
their expansion plans as forecasted.

Printed Circuit Boards (“PCB") Processing and Trading
Business

The PCB processing business endured another difficult year in
2021. The price of copper soared to record highs and greatly
affected our raw materials costs. Price of PCB base boards
and other materials also consistently adjusted upwards to
unprecedented levels. Our profits suffered even though sales
volume increased. Our selling prices adjusted upwards in stages
at varying times throughout the year, but could not dampen
the large adverse impact of rising raw materials costs. Although
orders from customers in automotive, consumer electronics, and
gaming industries rebounded from low levels in the previous year,
order inflows were uneven during the year.

BEERA KD (&)

ZONEEN I REREYSERED KRR
HE-Fr BHEEEREENS T
IR A £ N EMEBEEERERR
MAFF AR BINEEME LR BERE
ERMR ARG BERRLTENHERR
TEENTSMNE TEBHNHHRERE
REEE > MEAMMAENERTFIEET
o BY P [B] Y AN 3R 1R ] 78 o BB RS o B A0 LAt
2] 5 IS T Ak 4 58 1) BB A A LR U IR M R 4
BREMN SR EBRABRENRER
LHERBAE A ABEERSE TEHES
BB EE > B MR E IS4 TR E
NEESA SRHMABGE MEBETE
[EfRRMA&  BERMARFAEENRBER®T
B] RAYAG R P M R 5 | 2 IR M o

ER L HPAERABRETEMRTA
TRE -BHEREAE ERBERNDSAE
P IRHEMNKHESARTERTFEN
RIEAATHEHER S AERZIRLEH M
oA FEH A LR IR REBS -

ENR 4R B8 AR (TENRIARERMRL) 2T REHE
%

REE - HIRRERARI TEBXAEET R
W—F - BEMEAZELH S BHHR
R R EMRM E MR B ER LRERFT AR
BAKF > RREMT RN A > EXHK
FIBF BN ESE 21 MBI IB R TR T ER o
RER BERFMOIBR EAESE BIHE
TEIRH R A B s SR T RV E RN R
B-HARBAE HEBFMERTESR
FRFTEREENMARE  BFTEEXRIR
TR FRE

ZZT—FEH o Annual Report 2021

17



18

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERLRI ()

Global shortages of integrated circuits and semi-conductors
affected downstream customers’ production and deliveries. This
scenario did not subside and will continue to affect industries
relying on integrated circuits and semi-conductors as key
components of their products. In addition to rising raw material
costs, the business faced labour shortages and rising labour costs.
It affected our optimal production processes and efficiencies,
while it was significantly increasing subcontracting of various
production processes, which raised our production costs further.
To alleviate rising materials costs pressure, the business had to
increase inventory levels and made earlier cash payments to
suppliers to secure a stable supply of raw materials.

The outlook is not promising for the upcoming year, as raw
materials costs will likely remain at high levels, while orders
forecast from key customers remain cautious in the coming
quarters. Our management team will focus on reengineering
production processes and structures to suit our order patterns
and target to decrease subcontracting needs. However, a quick
turnaround may prove difficult. Nevertheless, cash flows remain
healthy at the moment and our long-term prudent financial
management focus will not be deviated.

The PCB trading business achieved slight growth in sales and
profits. Previous years’ business development efforts paid off in
earning new projects from Japanese automotive and consumer
electronics customers. Sourcing costs increased as manufacturers
adjusted selling prices reflecting rising raw materials costs,
however such increases did not materially impact our profits due
to effective management. Trading of new products namely import
PCB base boards, are progressing to plan, and new sales teams
in various locations are delivering new business leads which
will support future growth of the business. Additionally, we will
continue to expand our service scope for PCB laboratory testing
and quality control services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group is cautious on this business’'s outlook for the
upcoming year as challenging conditions for the overall PCB
industry persist. As PCB raw materials prices adjust downwards
from peak levels, pressure to accordingly adjust selling prices
may increase, thus potentially affecting our profit margins. New
customer development investments and activities will ramp up
in the upcoming year, however immediate significant success
is unlikely to materialize as recoveries in the automotive and
electronics industries are relatively weak. The business will
continue to maintain optimal cost structures and focus on healthy
operating cash flow.

Industrial Consumables Trading Business

The industrial consumables trading business achieved significant
growth in sales and profits during 2021. As Mainland China
maintained superb control of the pandemic, it created favourable
conditions for its vibrant supply chain to stand out, compared
to other countries and regions, thus the PRC manufacturers
obtained robust sales orders for products domestically and
globally, in particular during the first half of the year. Customer
groups that contributed strong growth for this business include
semi-conductors, consumer electronics, machineries, medical
equipment, renewable clean energy, and lithium batteries.
Customers from the automotive and household appliance
industries rebounded from previous year's relatively low sales
levels, and increased their purchases throughout the year. In
addition, the elevator industry benefited from regional policies to
install new elevation devices, and replace old ones, therefore our
stronghold in Southern China for elevator component solutions
continued to grow despite the wider scope slump in the housing
market. Our motion and drive components and solutions achieved
better than expected growth, while steel and fasteners products
grew slightly ahead of plan as market conditions improved, as
well as introducing new products and packaged solutions to
customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERLRI ()

While this business benefited from a better-than-expected market
outlook alongside a broad customer base across many industries,
it faced severe challenges on the supply side. With most industrial
commodities surging in price, almost all our product sourcing
costs increased significantly. Meanwhile, producers especially
those located overseas, could not ramp up their production
to meet sudden increase in demands, caused severe shipment
delays while facing surging shipment costs. By proactive response
and working together with customers, the business managed
to minimize adverse impact to profitability. Management teams
performed well by not only being focused on sales and bottom
line growth, but maintained lean inventory levels and improved its
receivables turnover.

Our cautious outlook for the second half of the year anticipating
a pullback in orders did not materialize, as customer groups
displayed sustained order placements. However, certain key
challenges lay ahead in the upcoming year. Strong growth of
orders will likely not continue, as the overall manufacturing
sectors in the PRC are slowing down after rampant growth
evident in the past two years. The pandemic is far from over
and under control globally, a prolonged spread can affect
consumer demands and disrupt global supply chains. Geopolitical
tensions, especially between the US and the PRC, display no
signs of easing. The impact to global economic recoveries, supply
chain disruptions, and global trade are highly unpredictable.
However, the Group is optimistic in the longer term, the PRC
began to implement a visionary and pragmatic “Fourteenth
Five-Year Plan” and shift its policies and resources to support
high quality manufacturing industries in the PRC. This provides
ample opportunities to businesses adapting to upgrade its
technical breakthrough abilities in materials, production process,
and digital solutions. Regardless of market conditions for the
upcoming year, we will invest in and develop our sales and
technical teams, recruit talents, staff training, and enhance our
internal digital systems.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Proposed Privatisation of the Company by Cosmos Holdings
by Way of a Scheme of Arrangement under Section 673 of
the Companies Ordinance

References were made to (i) the scheme document jointly issued
by the Company and Cosmos Holdings (the “Offeror”) dated
21 May 2021 (the “Scheme Document”) in relation to, among
other things, the proposed privatisation of the Company by the
Offeror by way of a scheme of arrangement under section 673
of the Companies Ordinance and the proposed withdrawal of
listing of the Company; and (ii) the announcement jointly issued
by the Company and the Offeror dated 18 June 2021 in relation
to the results of the Court Meeting and General Meeting and
lapse of the Proposal and the Scheme (the “Announcement”).
Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms used in this paragraph
shall have the same meanings as those defined in the Scheme
Document and the Announcement.

On 18 June 2021, the resolution to approve the Scheme was not
approved by the Scheme Shareholders at the Court Meeting in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance
and the Takeovers Code. On the same date, the Special
Resolution was not passed by the Shareholders at the General
Meeting.

As the Scheme was not approved in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance and the Takeovers
Code at the Court Meeting by the Scheme Shareholders and
the Special Resolution was not passed by the Shareholders at
the General Meeting: (a) the Proposal and the Scheme were not
implemented and have therefore lapsed; (b) the offer period has
ended; and (c) the listing of the Shares on the Stock Exchange is
maintained.

Subsequent Events
There is no material event after the end of the reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
’:é:ii I%FFH #&ﬁ*ﬁ- (nﬁ)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31 December 2021,
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$301,167,000
(31 December 2020: approximately HK$322,344,000) which
comprised mainly bank loans and trade finance facilities. The

the Group's total outstanding bank

bank borrowings repayable within one year and in the second to
the fifth year amounted to approximately HK$289,469,000 and
HK$11,698,000 respectively (31 December 2020: approximately
HK$284,469,000 and HK$37,875,000 respectively).

After including lease liabilities of approximately HK$51,469,000
(31 December 2020: approximately HK$55,839,000)
and deducting cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$406,057,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$494,669,000), the Group's net cash amounted to
approximately HK$53,421,000 (31 December 2020: net cash
was approximately HK$116,486,000). Total equity attributable to
equity Shareholders as at 31 December 2021 was approximately
HK$1,410,809,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$1,268,626,000).

approximately

approximately

The gearing ratio of the Group is measured as total of bank
indebtedness and lease liabilities less cash and bank balance,
pledged deposit and short-term bank deposits with maturity over
three months divided by net assets. The Group had a net cash
position as at 31 December 2021. As a result, no gearing ratio

was presented.

The Group’'s financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group carried out its business transactions mainly in
Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States dollar and Japanese
Yen. As the Hong Kong dollar remained pegged to the United
States dollar, there was no material exchange risk in this respect.
The Group continues to monitor its foreign exchange exposure
in Japanese Yen and Renminbi, and enter into forward contracts
when necessary. The Group's long-term bank loans were
denominated mainly in Hong Kong dollars and carried interest
at floating rates. Credit risk was hedged mainly through credit
insurance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

There were no material acquisitions and disposals by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change in the total number of issued Shares for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The total number of issued
Shares remained at 861,930,692 Shares as at 31 December 2021.

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICY AND
TRAINING SCHEME

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 2,523
employees located in Hong Kong and Mainland China (31
December 2020: 2,779). The remuneration policy regarding the
employees of the Group is based on qualifications, competence
and performance of the employees as well as market trends.
Employees’ benefits include retirement benefits and medical
insurance coverage.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to individual
performance, the Group's performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing market
condition.

The Group had also provided training programmes or courses
for Mainland China employees at all levels from different
departments, and also for Directors and employees of the Group
so as to further enhance their technical skills in production
operation and management, professional skills and knowledge,
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERLRI ()

OUTLOOK AND FORECAST

Looking ahead of the upcoming year, the Group does not
anticipate a repeat of the broad-based strength in the
manufacturing sectors in the PRC as experienced in the first half
of 2021. A more likely scenario is the continuation of pullback
in demand which was evident in the second half of the year.
Headwinds and challenges such as, high raw materials costs,
shipment disruptions and sustained high shipping costs, and high
labour costs are likely to persist, that will inevitably shape a highly
uncertain business outlook and uneven growth across various
manufacturing industries.

On the macro level, geopolitical tensions between the US and
PRC shows no signs of abating. Adverse effects on global
trade and supply chains are on-going and highly unpredictable.
Tightening monetary policies in the US and other Western
countries has come into effect with primary objective to combat
inflation. Without discussing effectiveness of such policies, it is
safe to assume tightening and pullback of cash injections will
dent consumer confidence and demand. The global pandemic still
affects everyday lives of everyone, even though most Western
countries are experimenting “co-existing with virus” policies to
reopen their economies. The strength and source of recovery is
uncertain.

Domestically the PRC's positioning is favourable in the long term.
The PRC government is implementing visionary and pragmatic
policies to drive long-term growth of high quality manufacturing
sectors, as laid out in the “Fourteenth Five-Year Plan”, to achieve
sustainable growth in the areas of new materials, manufacturing
of critical components, research and development of products
and production processes, artificial intelligence, and digitalization
of the whole value chain.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The Group will continue to commit to development of key
industry markets such as renewable energy, electric vehicles,
medical equipment, packaging, automotive, consumer
electronics, and lithium batteries. We foresee the long-term
growth potential in these strategic sectors. In addition, we will
shift resources and focus for export businesses as we anticipate
gradual economic recoveries in our export markets, previously
dampened by the pandemic. Growth potential in different regions
will vary, as it depends on our overseas partners and resources.
Especially, we see potential in neighbouring “Belt and Road
Initiative” countries.

Regardless of an anticipated pullback in growth for the upcoming
year amid the previously stated challenges and uncertainties,
the Group will commit to invest in research and development of
technical innovations, especially our machinery manufacturing
business. In addition, we will implement plans to gradually
upgrade our production capacities and technologies, recruit
talents, enhance training development and increase investment
in sales and marketing, in order to capture future growth
opportunities. Moreover, prudent financial management practices
will continue as usual, with focus on maintaining a healthy cash
flow for all our businesses.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

EEAEREEAGHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang To, aged 73, was appointed as an executive Director
and the chairman of the Board on 14 July 1988 and 18
September 1997, respectively. He is the chairman of each of
Nomination Committee and committee of executive Directors of
the Company, and a member of Remuneration Committee. He
also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. On
28 May 2010, Mr. Tang was appointed as the director of Suzhou
Sanguang Science & Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations and an associated
company of the Company. Mr. Tang has over 40 years of
experience in manufacturing and trading businesses. Mr. Tang is
the father of Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman. As at the date of this annual
report, Mr. Tang is a director of certain substantial shareholders of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman, aged 44, joined the Group in 2006 and
was appointed as an executive Director and chief executive officer
of the Company on 18 March 2011 and 1 July 2013, respectively.
He is a member of each of Nomination Committee and
committee of executive Directors of the Company. He also acts as
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Tang had worked in various commercial banks.
Mr. Tang graduated from The University of Western Ontario in
Canada and holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and
a Diploma in Financial Planning. Mr. Tang is the son of Mr. Tang
To. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Tang is a director
of certain substantial shareholders of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kan Wai Wah, aged 64, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 22 May 1998. Mr. Kan holds a High Diploma
in Accountancy. Mr. Kan has over 40 years of experience in
corporate strategy and corporate management. Mr. Kan is
the son of Ms. Law Kit Fong, a substantial Shareholder of the
Company. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Kan is a
director of certain substantial shareholders of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Qu Jinping, aged 65, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 8 September 2006. Mr. Qu is currently the
professor and doctoral supervisor in the School of Mechanical
and Automotive Engineering of The South China University
of Technology. He acted as vice president of The South China
University of Technology and elected as an academician of The
Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2011. He obtained a Bachelor
degree and a Master degree in Engineering from The South China
University of Technology in 1982 and 1987, respectively, and a
Doctorate degree in Engineering from The Sichuan University in
1999. He has been engaged in scientific research and teaching
in polymer dynamic plasticizing processing technology and
equipment for over 30 years and achieved a number of world-first
scientific and technology achievements.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

EFEREREEAESBE (B

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan, aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 June 2004. She
is a chairman of Audit Committee and a member of each of
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. Ms.
Yeung holds a Master degree in Business Administration. She is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(AICPA), and an associate member of each of The Chartered
Governance Institute (CGl) and The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (HKCGI) (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries (HKICS)). Ms. Yeung held senior
financial positions in several companies. She has over 30 years of
experience in the finance sector.

Mr. Cheng Tak Yin, aged 83, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 January 2007. He is a chairman
of Remuneration Committee and a member of each of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Currently, Mr. Cheng is
the life honorary chairman, deputy secretary general and standing
committee member of Hong Kong and Kowloon Machinery and
Instrument Merchants Association Limited. He has almost 50
years of experience in business management.

Mr. Huang Zhi Wei, aged 83, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 2 November 2012. He is a member
of each of Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Huang graduated from The
Huazhong University of Science & Technology, majoring in
electrical engineering. Mr. Huang worked in the PRC government
authorities for over 10 years. He served as the deputy director
general of Guangdong Commission of Foreign Trade & Economic
Cooperation and the director of General of Guangdong Board of
Investment from 1993 to 2000. From 1984 to 1992, he served as
the executive officer of Foshan Economic Committee. He worked
as the engineer at power plant in Foshan for almost 10 years.
From 1981 to 1984, he served as the chief engineer and deputy
general manager of a household electrical appliances corporation
in Foshan.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES (CONTINUED)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Man Chi Fai, Bruno, aged 60, joined the Group in 2013.
He is currently the general manager of various subsidiaries
of the Company which are engaged in the processing and
manufacturing of plastic products business. He also holds
directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Man
holds a Bachelor of Science (Mechanical) from The University
of London and a Master Science in Engineering (Industrial
Management and Manufacturing) from The University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of each of The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers (HKIE) and The Institution of Electrical Engineers in
the United Kingdom (IEE). He had worked in various sizeable
corporations. He has over 20 years of experience in plastic
injection moulding, metals manufacturing, moulds design and
manufacturing, manufacturing assembly process management
and project management.

Mr. Ye Yueran, aged 48, joined the Group in 2002. He is
currently the general manager of various subsidiaries of the
Company which are engaged in the manufacturing of rubber
injection machines, extrusion lines and hydraulic presses. He also
holds directorship in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ye
has over 10 years of experience in manufacturing of machinery.

Mr. Yip Kar Shun, aged 74, joined the Group in 1994. He is the
managing director of various subsidiaries of the Company which
are engaged in the processing and trading of printed circuit
boards. He also holds directorship in certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Yip has over 40 years of experience in electronic
production and management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREHRTE

The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Further details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during
the year.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in
the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 133 to
284 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of operations

The Group recorded net profit of approximately HK$84,205,000
for the year as compared with net profit of approximately
HK$25,878,000 from the previous year. Further details in respect
of the fair review of the Group's businesses, please refer to the
sections “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The operational complexities inherent in the Group's business
together with the commercially competitive environment leave us
exposed to some significant risks which may affect the Group’s
financial position and business operations. The Group believes
that an effective risk management is critical to achieve our
long-term strategic objectives and enhance the sustainability
of value creation and business growth. The Board has overall
accountability for ensuring that risks are effectively managed
across the Group. The Group recognizes that adopting a proactive
approach and establishing a robust business management system
to risk mitigation must be balanced with a degree of flexibility so
that we can safeguard the interests of Shareholders, customers,
employees and other stakeholders.

During the year under review, the most impacted risks are
dominated by the COVID-19 pandemic on the related policies and
regulation affecting business performance and inducing pressure
of market conditions on demand. The impact of pandemic has
demonstrated the interconnected nature of risk which include
business interruption risks, supply chain exposure and economic
risks. The principal risks and uncertainties set out are known as
below:

Market risks

Slow global economic recovery and concentration risk

The Group's businesses are sensitive to the pace of global slow
economic recovery environment. Deterioration in global economy
may have a material impact on our financial position.

In 2021, the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic embedded with its
highly transmissible variants has effected on governmental public
health policies and customer behavior, which severely crippled the
economy across the globe. Continual and compulsory quarantine
measures imposed by the PRC and HKSAR governments
to combat the pandemic, the Group strictly adhered to
governmental policies that evolves business interruption threats.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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Simultaneously, the global economic sentiment and activities
caused by the US-Sino trade war are still clouded by uncertainties
prevailing in the external environment and induces unfavorable
effect on manufacturing industries, especially in Mainland China,
where the Group primarily conducts its business. The Group has
implemented penetration strategies on customers and product
portfolios through internal development and business model
adjustment to improve businesses’ competitiveness and agility
from slow economic recovery and to reduce the dependency on
specific customer segments.

Keen market competition and commodity price risk due
from scarcity of materials

The disruptions to manufacturing activity along with transportation
interruptions and port closures during the pandemic led to
scarcities of materials and commodities resulting in surging
up the price of commodities and materials. The Group has to
compete on both price and product innovation as multi-national
and regional or niche competitors attempt to enlarge its market
share. Intensive competitive pressure may impede the profitability
of the Group. Additionally, customers were also affected by
the competitive pressure and their sales will fluctuate. The
Group owns comparative resilience and then strives for agility
by implementing cost-effective solutions and key performance
indicators to enhance productivity and efficiency.

Operation risks

Confronted by the national climate governance, the PRC
government has adopted carbon neutral policy and low-carbon
approach especially on manufacturing enterprises to control the
extensive use of fossil fuels i.e. electricity. In 2021, the Group’s
manufacturing business has experienced factory temporary
lockdown, which resulted from the forced periodic stoppage of
electricity, to fit with national carbon reduction strategies and
hence advocate the global eco-environmental and sustainable
gain.
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The risk of operation loss caused by the COVID-19 pandemic
on logistics bottlenecks and disruption in supply chain may
result in unfavorable impact on businesses. The Group has
experienced difficulties in a sudden shortage of materials which
led to delay in delivery and inability to procure substitutes at
reasonable prices on a temporary basis resulting in loss of sales
opportunities and non-fulfillment of customers’ expectations.
The Group minimizes these occurrences by using supply chain
management including strictly selecting suppliers with quality
assurance, good reputation and high credibility who are honest in
co-operation, and extending sourcing channels and strengthening
inventory control management. The Group continues to monitor
raw materials price movements efficiently by implementing
detailed cost tracking and examining various scenario of hedging
opportunities.

Pandemic risk

Pandemic risk has loomed on the horizon for a long time and
the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has impacted on public
health policies, customer behavior and business performance.
Protecting employees’ health is the top priority of the Group. To
reduce the risk of infection or serious illness, the headquarters
and other offices situated in Hong Kong have coincided with
HKSAR government encouragement for employees who receive
vaccination can enjoy vaccine leave and occasionally implement
work-from-home arrangement to reduce transmission risks in
offices. The Group expects that the pandemic will continue
to affect our business segments’ operations and financial
performance.
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Legal and Regulatory Compliance Risks

The Group has various production plants and offices across
Mainland China and Hong Kong. Any failure to comply with the
regulatory changes in these territories may result in penalties
and even temporary production suspension. Failure to ensure
compliance with laws and regulations could have an adverse
effect on the Group’s reputation and bring about potential risks
impacting on the operations and profitability of the Group.
Maintenance of legal and regulatory compliance is a core value of
the Group. The Group would monitor the changes in legislation
with legal consultation services from time to time and has
internal control procedures in place to ensure the compliance of
regulatory provisions and internal policies performed.

Financial risks

The Group is exposed to financial risks, including foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk
arising in the normal course of its business and the commitment
of its financial instruments. The details of such risks are shown in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 260 to
277.

Certain measures to manage the impact on these potential risks
and uncertainties are described in the heading “Business Review”
of the section of the “Management Discussion and Analysis” of
this annual report.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS MBRERIRER
The financial key performance indicators of the Group for the HEBHEZE_T_—FMN_ZF_ZTF+_H
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are summarized as =-+—HIEFEENMERBRBEZHEMRN

follows: ™
2021 2020 Change
g —F “ETEH =E3)]
HK$°000 HK$000
FAET FET
Operating Performance RERIR
Revenue A 3,075,305 2,432,021 +26.5%
Operating profit S =pingll 119,813 49,929 +140.0%
Profit before tax MA@ 113,119 35,423 +219.3%
Profit for the year FERA 84,205 25,878 +225.4%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) RE AR GBI 10.41 2.27 +358.6%
Key Financial Information R R #E E
Cash and bank balances R & RIRITHE B8R 406,057 494,669 -17.9%
Total assets BEERE 2,967,885 2,834,678 +4.7%
Total liabilities BEMAE 1,327,361 1,334,695 -0.5%
Total equity attributable to equity R EE R 42 EE
shareholders 1,410,809 1,268,626 +11.2%
Financial Ratios B E
Current ratio MBIEEE 1.7 1.6 +0.1ppBE D
Gross profit margin ETVIES 17.7% 16.8% +0.9ppE 7725
Earnings before interests, taxes, RETFERIEBITER
depreciation and amortization #HFI Y B = )
(EBITDA) margin (o' 6.8% 55% +1.3ppEDE:
Net profit margin BRI 2.7% 1.1% +1.6ppE D
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Note:

EBITDA margin is calculated as EBITDA divided by revenue. The following
table sets forth the calculation of EBITDA:

RETHE RIS T EE SR AT BV B A LUK 5t A
BMENTERBHANENRUBASE T
REHIRFHENIE TERHIHRTNEF) Z 5t
=N

2021 2020
ZEZ—%F “ETTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Profit before tax PR AR Al v A 113,119 35,423
Add: -
Finance costs MBER 17,741 20,315
Depreciation and amortisation on: rEE R Y
— Ownership interest in leasehold land and —EBREE T REFNMEEER
buildings held for own use 15,990 15,171
— Other owned assets —HthBEE&EE 43,945 45,937
— Intangible assets —mEEE 1,383 1,383
- Right-of-use assets —fEREEE 16,086 15,239
EBITDA KRt M BRI ITE R IHEAIAERT) 208,264 133,468
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF THE GROUP'S TEBEEFRRERE

BUSINESSES

In the light of the uncertainties in the market and operating
environment caused by the ongoing pandemic and geopolitical
tensions, the performance of various businesses of the Group
might be affected. The Group will implement plans to gradually
upgrade our production capacities and technologies, recruit
talents, enhance training development, and increase investment
in sales and marketing, in order to capture future growth
opportunities. Details of future development of the Group’s
businesses, please refer to the sections “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is committed to complying with the applicable
environmental laws, rules and regulations on the prevention and
control of wastage, waste gases emissions and sewage discharges
in Hong Kong and the PRC during the production process.
Various measures have been implemented within the Group, such
as measures on effective energy conservation to reduce the use
of energy and water, and measures on managing the reduction of
waste and greenhouse gas emissions. Detailed discussion on the
environmental policies and performance of the Group is set out in
the section “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year under review, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to
the Group. Apart from complying with Hong Kong laws such
as the Companies Ordinance, Listing Rules, SFO, Employment
Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Anti-
Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance
(Chapter 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong), we have also complied
with laws of the PRC, including the Company Law of the PRC,
Labour Law of the PRC, Labour Contract Law of the PRC,
Measures on Enterprise Annuities, relevant laws, rules and
regulations in relation to child and forced labour including the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Child Labour and the Law of the
PRC on the Protection of Minors, as well as other environmental
laws, relevant rules, ordinances and regulations on the prevention
and control of wastage, waste gases and sewage emission. These
laws, ordinances and regulations include but not limited to the
Law of Environmental Protection of the PRC, the Environmental
Protection Tax Law of the PRC, the Law of the PRC, the Law of
the PRC, the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), the Product Eco-responsibility Ordinance (Chapter
603 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Environmental Quality Standard
for Surface Water, Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge
to Municipal Sewers, Measures for the Management of Transfer
of Hazardous Waste and Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste etc.. These
environmental laws will have impact on the Group’s operation
since if we do not dispose all wastages, discharges and waste
gases properly, we might have to bear heavy environmental
protection tax which will lead to an increase in the cost of
disposal of wastages or temporary production suspension until
the fulfillment of the emission standards.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise of employees, customers, suppliers,
Shareholders, government and regulators, as well as banks.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. Most of the management have been serving
the Group for a long period of time. The Group offers competitive
salaries and benefits and also provides training programmes
or courses for Mainland China employees at all levels from
different departments, as well as Directors and employees
of the Group in order to further enhance their management
skills, expertise and knowledge, and at the same time, make
continual contribution to the Group. Different activities such as
annual dinners, celebration of staff's birthday and ball games
had been organized by various business units of the Group for
general staffs together with the management to participate
in order to strengthen their partnership and communication.
However, in light of the continuous outbreak of the pandemic in
2021,
distancing restriction, but continued to celebrate festive seasons

the Group suspended most of our activities due to social

with our employees, and presented gifts to them as a token of
appreciation for their hard work over the year. During the year,
the Group successfully protected the health and safety of its
employees.

Customers

The major customers of machinery manufacturing business,
plastic products processing and manufacturing businesses,
printed circuit boards processing and trading business, and
industrial consumables trading business are the plastic pipe
manufacturer, washing machine manufacturer, supplier of printed
circuit boards for home appliances and automotive and lithium
battery equipment manufacturer, respectively. Most of them have
been customers for more than 3 years and in return for their
loyalty, we provide them with good quality products and after-
sale services.
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Suppliers

The major suppliers of machinery manufacturing business, plastic
products processing and manufacturing businesses, printed
circuit boards processing and trading business, and industrial
consumables trading business are supplying the injection
moulding machine castings, plastic raw material particles, copper
clad laminate, and stepping motor and servo motor suppliers,
respectively. Most of them have been suppliers for more than 3
years and have maintained good relationship with them in order
to achieve cost effectiveness and obtain long-term commercial
benefits.

Shareholders

The major Shareholders are Cosmos Holdings and its controlled
corporations, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited and
minority Shareholders. It is grateful to have Shareholders who are
being supportive to the Group for a long period of time.

Government and Regulators

It is important for us to maintain good relationships with local
officials to anticipate legal or regulatory changes or community
developments that may affect our business. In view of the need
to maintain good relationship, we have arranged occasional visits
and face-to-face meetings whenever necessary.

Banks

Banks serve as the lenders of the Group in providing finance in
our businesses operation and development, include trade finance
and fixed assets purchasing. We maintain stable relationship with
banks through regular meetings and visits.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 285 of
this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during
the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” on pages 138 to 139 of this
annual report and in notes 31 and 32 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2021,
for distribution, as calculated in accordance with sections

the Company's reserves available

291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to
approximately HK$415,462,000.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made HK$71,000 of donation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Directors and Senior Management’s Biographies” on pages 26

to 29 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Messrs. Qu Jinping, Huang Zhi Wei and Ho Wei Sem agreed to
waive their Directors’ fees under their letters of appointment.
No payment shall be made by the Company to such Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2021. Further details
of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 10A to the

consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Tang To (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kan Wai Wah
Mr. Qu Jinping

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin
Mr. Ho Wei Sem
(Resigned with effect from 1 August 2021)
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei

The Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with article 102 of the Articles. Messrs. Tang Yu, Freeman, Qu
Jinping and Huang Zhi Wei will retire from office by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year and up to the date of this report, the persons
who served as directors of the subsidiaries of the Company
include Messrs. Cao Xiaowei, Ching Wang Ho, Diao Junde, Du
Jiang, Fang Xirong, Ho Kwong Sang, Hu Ping, Hui Oi Chun, Jiang
Shufeng, Liu Dangwei, Li Haihua, Lu Hank, Man Chi Fai, Bruno,
Mei Zheqi, Miao Hongliang, Tang To, Tang Yu, Freeman, Tsutsumi
Keiji, Wong Yiu Ming, Xie Jie, Yatsugi Atsushi, Ye Qingzhong, Ye
Yueran, Yip Kar Shun, Yip Kin Keung, Zhang Xiaochen and Zhu
Wenguang, and Mses. Ching Shuk Kwan and Yu Hong.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the headings “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Debentures or Underlying Shares
under the SFO”, “Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares or Underlying Shares under the SFO” and “Related Party
Transactions” of this report, and in the heading of “Subsequent
Events” of the section “Management Discussion and Analysis”
of this annual report, at no time during the year or at the end
of the year has been/was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) has entered into a letter of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of his/her appointment
as Director with the Company for a term of three years. They are
all subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least every
three years at annual general meeting in accordance with the
Articles.
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The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Although all independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Yeung
Shuk Fan, Messrs. Cheng Tak Yin and Huang Zhi Wei have
been serving the Board for more than nine years, they have
not engaged in any executive management of the Group. Their
familiarity and extensive experience with the Group's businesses
place them in a better position to contribute independent views
to the Company. Taking into consideration of their independent
scope of works when performing duties as independent non-
executive Directors over the past years, there is no evidence
that length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their
independence. Therefore, the Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors are independent throughout the year
under review.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in the heading of “Subsequent Events” of
the section “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report and related party transactions as disclosed in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
heading “Related Party Transactions” below, no Director and
his/her connected entity had a material interest, directly or
indirectly, in a transaction, arrangement or contract or a proposed
transaction, arrangement or contract that is significant in relation
to the Group’s businesses to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage in respect of legal actions brought
for committed or alleged wrongful acts against the Directors
and officers of the Group throughout the year, but exclude any
criminal, dishonest or fraudulent acts or omission.

The Articles provide that every Director or other officer or auditor
of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against any liability, loss or expenditure incurred by him
in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, which
relate to anything done or omitted to be done by him as Director,
officer or auditor of the Company and in which judgment is given
in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or incurred in connection
with any application in which relief is granted to him by the
court from liability in respect of any such act or omission or from
liability to pay any amount in respect of shares acquired by a
nominee of the Company.

The permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit
of the Directors as required by section 470 of the Companies
Ordinance when the report of the directors prepared by the
Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, DEBENTURES OR UNDERLYING SHARES
UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the Shares, debentures or underlying Shares of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which had to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he was
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required to be entered in the register referred therein
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange herein pursuant
to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares:

Number of Shares Held
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Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Shares held issued Shares
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Tang To 4,970,005 226,000 ¥ 445,617,458 @ 450,813,463 52.30
ik

Tang Yu, Freeman - - 442,157,052 @ 442,157,052 51.30
ilg=

Kan Wai Wah 136,400 - - 136,400 0.02

EEES
Cheng Tak Yin 1,406,000 - - 1,406,000 0.16

WEE
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Notes:

(M

The 226,000 Shares were held by Mr. Tang To and his spouse jointly.

Mr. Tang To was deemed to be interested in 445,617,458
Shares under the SFO, comprising (i) 3,460,406 Shares held by
Ginta Company Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong) which is
approximately 99.999% owned by Fullwin Limited (incorporated in
the Republic of Liberia), which in turn is owned as to 50% by Mr.
Tang To and 50% by his spouse respectively; (ii) 405,907,052 Shares
held by Codo through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tai Shing, Hung
Cheong and Cosmos Holdings; and (iii) 36,250,000 Shares held by
Saniwell (as the trustee of The Saniwell Trust, the beneficiaries of
which include Mr. Tang To and certain of his family members) which
in turn is owned as to approximately 57.14% by Mr. Tang To.

Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman was deemed to be interested in 442,157,052
Shares under the SFO, comprising (i) 405,907,052 Shares held
by Codo through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Tai Shing, Hung
Cheong and Cosmos Holdings; and (ii) 36,250,000 Shares held
by Saniwell (as the trustee of The Saniwell Trust, the beneficiaries
of which include Mr. Tang To and certain of his family members)
which in turn is owned as to approximately 42.86% by Mr. Tang Yu,
Freeman.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the

Directors, chief executives of the Company and their associates

had any interests or short positions in any Shares, debentures or

underlying Shares of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or

as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES
UNDER THE SFO

As at 31 December 2021, so far was known to the Directors, the
following parties had an interest or long position or short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required to be entered in
the register referred therein pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in Shares or underlying Shares:
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BEFEHREE @

R 1% (58 5 R HI S 15 61 ) BRSR IS B 17
AR Z EHm RN A

KRB —F+A=+—H MESEF
o FIALRAERB RN KA O %
B RREBEESZREFRGDEXVE F2K430
HBREETFTURBEZ AN T ASKA  HA
Ri5 (GEF MG R F)) B336MF LB & %
BIFFfR kNS EMAZR@mHFRXKE !

MR BRI 2R !

Number of Shares Held Approximate %
FERMUE of the
Capacity in which Total number of total number of
Name of Shareholder interests are held Direct Interests Deemed Interests Shares held issued Shares
WIEBETRGR
REgs BEREZH1R iR REMFHHZ#E HERMHAHEE  AEBEZHNBESL
Tai Shing Beneficial owner 170,104,452 - 170,104,452 19.74
BEEBA
Cosmos Holdings Beneficial owner and interest of 235,802,600 170,104,452 405,907,052 47.09
controlled corporations
KEER BRBEBEARTEEE B
Codo Interest of controlled corporations - 405,907,052% 405,907,052 47.09
BE SEEBZER
Law Kit Fong Interest of controlled corporations - 405,907,052% 405,907,052 47.09
BE25 SEEBZER
Saniwell Beneficial owner and interest of 36,250,000 405,907,052¢ 442,157,052 51.30
controlled corporations
BREBARR LRz B
China Resources (Holdings) Beneficial owner 169,649,046 - 169,649,046 19.68
Company Limited
% (@) ERAT BEEBA
CRC Bluesky Limited Interest of controlled corporations - 169,649,046 169,649,046 19.68
REEEz R
China Resources Co., Limited Interest of controlled corporations - 169,649,046 169,649,046 19.68
ERRHERRT REEEz R
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Notes:

(M

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e

Tai Shing was wholly-owned by Hung Cheong, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Cosmos Holdings. By virtue of the SFO, Cosmos
Holdings was deemed to be interested in the 170,104,452 Shares
held by Tai Shing.

Cosmos Holdings was approximately 99.999% owned by Codo and
approximately 0.001% owned by Glad Season Investments Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong) (“Glad Season”). Glad Season was
owned as to 50% by Codo and 50% by Cosmos Holdings (as trustee
for Codo). By virtue of the SFO, Codo was deemed to be interested
in the 405,907,052 Shares held by Cosmos Holdings.

Codo was owned as to approximately (i) 8.37% by Elegant Power
Enterprises Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong) (“Elegant Power”);
and (i) 30.25% by Friendchain Investments Limited (incorporated
in Hong Kong) (“Friendchain”), which was owned as to 40% by
Elegant Power. Elegant Power was owned as to approximately
0.002% by Mr. Kan Wai Wah, a non-executive Director (as trustee
for Ms. Law Kit Fong), and approximately 99.998% by Ms. Law Kit
Fong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law Kit Fong was deemed to be
interested in the 405,907,052 Shares held by Codo.

Codo was owned as to approximately (i) 25.06% by Keepsound
Investments Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong), which was owned
as to 94% by Saniwell; and (ii) 30.25% by Friendchain, which was
owned as to approximately 57.42% by Saniwell. By virtue of the
SFO, Saniwell was deemed to be interested in the 405,907,052
Shares held by Codo.

By virtue of the SFO, CRC Bluesky Limited (incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands) (“CRC Bluesky”) was deemed to be interested
in the 169,649,046 Shares held by China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong), which was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CRC Bluesky.

By virtue of the SFO, China Resources Co., Limited (incorporated in
the PRC) was deemed to be interested in the 169,649,046 Shares
held by CRC Bluesky, which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Resources Co., Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors
are not aware of any other persons who had interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded
as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting standards.
These transactions mainly relate to the contracts entered into
by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business
which were negotiated on normal commercial terms and on an
arm’s length basis. Further details are set out in note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Directors confirm that the related party transactions do not
fall under the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of subsequent event occurring from the end of the
reporting period to the date of this annual report, please
refer to the heading of “Subsequent Events” of the section
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of any business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that requires the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares was entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors is considered to have
interests in the businesses which are considered to compete or
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with businesses of
the Group pursuant to rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group's corporate governance practices and procedures are
set out in the section “Corporate Governance Report” on pages
52 to 72 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is
based on the qualifications, competence and the performance of
the employees as well as market trends. Remuneration packages,
which include an element of discretionary bonuses, are generally
reviewed annually. The emoluments of the Directors are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to individual
performance, the Company’s performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing market
condition.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.
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MAIJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the respective
percentage of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers and the sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers, on a combined basis, was less than 30% of the total

value of the Group’s purchases and sales.

None of the Directors, their associates or Shareholder (who to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company) had any beneficiary
interest in the Group’s major suppliers or customers noted above.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
Information on the main works of Audit Committee and its
composition are set out in the section “Corporate Governance

Report” on pages 62 to 63 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by Ting Ho Kwan
& Chan, which will retire from office and a resolution for their
re-appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board

TANG To
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Board is committed to achieving and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance for the enhancement of
Shareholders’ value and safeguarding interests of Shareholders
and other stakeholders, and reviews corporate governance

practices and procedures of the Group from time to time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has made detailed disclosures in relation to the
accounting period covered in this report in compliance with the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Report as set out
in the CG Code. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with all the principles and applicable code provisions of
the CG Code during the year ended 31 December 2021,
for the following deviation from code provision A.6.7 of the CG
Code:

except

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors should attend
general meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. During the year, Messrs. Kan Wai
Wah and Qu Jinping, both non-executive Directors, and Mr. Ho
Wei Sem, the then independent non-executive Director, and Mr.
Huang Zhi Wei, an independent non-executive Director, had other
business engagements. They were unable to attend the court
meeting and extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 18 June 2021, and annual general meeting of the Company
held on 24 June 2021.
the presence of the chairman of each of Nomination Committee,

However, the Company considered that
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, and other

executive Directors at the said meetings, which were sufficient for
addressing the queries from the attending Shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a CMEL Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of the Model Code as the
Company’s code of conduct and rules governing dealing by
all Directors and relevant employees in the securities of the
Company. The Board will revise the CMEL Code from time to
time in order to keep it in line with the changes brought upon
by the relevant amendments to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, they have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code and CMEL Code for the year ended 31
December 2021.

THE BOARD

Composition

The Board currently consists of seven members, including two
executive Directors (namely Messrs. Tang To and Tang Yu,
Freeman), two non-executive Directors (namely Messrs. Kan
Wai Wah and Qu Jinping) and three independent non-executive
Directors (namely Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan, Messrs. Cheng Tak Yin
and Huang Zhi Wei). The Directors’ biographical details and
the relationships among the Board members, if any, are set
out on pages 26 to 29 under the section “Directors and Senior
Management'’s Biographies” of this annual report.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Although all independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Yeung
Shuk Fan, Messrs. Cheng Tak Yin and Huang Zhi Wei have
been serving the Board for more than nine years, they have
not engaged in any executive management of the Group.
Their familiarity and extensive experience with the Group's
businesses place them in a better position to contribute
independent views to the Company. Taking into consideration
of their independent scope of works when performing duties as
independent non-executive directors over the past years, there
is no evidence that length of tenure is having an adverse impact
on their independence. Therefore, the Company considered all
independent non-executive Directors are independent throughout
the year under review.
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Furthermore, all Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should retire from office by rotation and, if eligible, be
re-elected at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting of the Company and the reasons the Nomination
Committee and the Board believe that each independent non-
executive Directors to be independent are set out in the relevant
circulars. In addition to the disclosure in the section “Directors
and Senior Management'’s Biographies” of this report, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship among members of the
Board.

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy. The Company
maintains that Board appointment will take into account gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service of the selected
candidates, and any other factors that the Board might consider
relevant and applicable from time to time towards achieving a
diverse Board. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Board will review and monitor from time to time to ensure its
effectiveness that diversity of the Board is maintained.

Other than the elements of board diversity, in considering the
nomination of new directors, the members of the Nomination
Committee will be subject to the nomination policy of a Director
(the “Nomination Policy”) which was recommended by the
Nomination Committee and approved by the Board, and adopted
on 29 November 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Policy is summarized as follows:

e state the objectives of the Nomination Policy, including
ensuring the Board members have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Group’s businesses;

e set out the procedure for the selection, appointment and
reappointment of Directors;

° set out selection criteria, including but not limited to
qualifications, skills, experience in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate and the requirement for the Board
to have independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates for
independent non-executive Directors would be considered
independence with reference to the independence criteria or
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules; and

e list out the nomination of Directors applicable laws and
procedures.

The Nomination Committee then put forward the
recommendation in respect of the above factors, where
appropriate, to the Board for consideration and adoption
according to the Nomination Policy.
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During the year under review, the Nomination Committee made
recommendations on re-appointment of retiring Directors and
assessed the independence of all the independent non-executive
Directors, and approved by the Board. The Board considered all
independent non-executive Directors are independent throughout
the year under review.

On 30 March 2022, after taking into account the Board's
composition, the Board considered the nomination of Messrs.
Tang Yu, Freeman (executive Director), Qu Jinping (non-
executive Director) and Huang Zhi Wei (independent non-
executive Director) who shall retire from office by rotation and
will be eligible and willing to offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The nomination
and proposed re-election were made in accordance with the
Nomination Policy. Each of the above Directors has abstained
from voting on his own nomination when it was being
considered.

An analysis of the Board's current composition is set out as

follows:
Designation Gender
B 51
e 4 ® i L . 1 e
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e 8
NED Age
FilR
i\ L &
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ED: Executive Directors >1-60
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NED: Non-executive Directors b $
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INED:  Independent Non-executive Directors
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i e i
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings held during the

Year

The details of Directors’ attendance at the meetings (including

the Board meetings, Audit Committee meetings, Nomination

Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings

and general meetings) held during the year are set out in the

following table:

EENTFERTHEER

eEE

TRIWTEENEAFERT

ES -

EHWEES

e

=2
B

Attendance/number of meetings entitled to attend
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Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee General

Name of Director EE 3 Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
EEgEE BRZEEEE REZEEEE FHMEEEEE BRAE

Tang To ;R 5/5 N/A R EH 212 3/3 3/3
Tang Yu, Freeman I 5/5 N/A R 212 N/A R F 33
Kan Wai Wah e 4/5 N/A A N/A REF N/A B 073
Qu Jinping e 3/5 N/A T8 N/A TER N/A TR 03
Yeung Shuk Fan NiCay 5/5 5/5 212 3/3 33
Cheng Tak Yin mEE 5/5 5/5 2/2 3/3 3/3
Ho Wei Sem (e ) ffg 7k ) 2/2 2/2 N/A R 7 0/3
Huang Zhi Wei o2 Bl 5/5 33 W ) 03

Notes:

MiaE -

PEFEER S —FN\B—BE#E
BIYFRTES TABEEEZEZEEMN
B RLZETMERTMEETRE -

(1) Mr. Ho Wei Sem resigned as an independent non-executive (1)
Director, and ceased to be a member of each of Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee with effect
from 1 August 2021.

(2) Mr. Huang Zhi Wei appointed as a member of each of the Audit (2) EEBEER_Z_—E/N\B—HEESE
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee AHBEZELZEEHRE - RLZE TN E KB
with effect from 1 August 2021. ZEEWE-
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director (if any) receives a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package to ensure that he/
she is sufficiently aware of his/her duties, responsibilities and
obligations as a Director under the Companies Ordinance, Listing
Rules and other regulatory requirement and ensure he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and business.

The Company provides all Directors with relevant reading
materials from time to time on the latest changes and
development in the industry, legal, regulatory in which the Group
operates its business to ensure the contribution of all Directors
to the Board remains relevant. In addition, all Directors are
encouraged to attend external seminar or training on relevant
topics for their continuous professional development. Certain
Directors have attended external trainings and seminars during
the year.

The individual training record of each Director who held office
during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

EEFBREXRER

BRMEMNES B HEET2EE
XA EMBZABEI > LR 5
DABARBRE)) ~ (EHRAD R EAME
RMEETHEFHE BEKEH LHER
fthMBE AR NEENEBHEBENT
7o

AABAHEEREFRMHEAREEYS
ERENTAEBECENEBETE AR
REEZRMEBRER UREMEES
EEREFEFRIBEFTM LI R
EREFHFEARSHNITEEZLERMERZ
SEfREY B E R MM EENEAFEAS
INSNERIF B R B 5 &

BE T —F+_RA=+—HLEFES
EFZEAEIIZERNOT

Area
#iE

Legal, Regulatory
and Corporate

The Group’s

Governance Policies/
update Businesses
AR ERRK AEEB
Name of Director EENS TEEREM BR ¥
Executive Directors HITES
Tang To B 2= v v
Tang Yu, Freeman B} & v/ 4
Non-executive Directors ERITESE
Kan Wai Wah [GhEES v v/
Qu Jinping BT v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIJERITES
Yeung Shuk Fan M v 4
Cheng Tak Yin HEE v 4
Ho Wei Sem ®ete) fa] {8 73 (0 v v
Huang Zhi Wei oy v 4

Note:  Mr. Ho Wei Sem resigned as an independent non-executive

Director with effect from 1 August 2021.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate
and performed by different individuals to reinforce their
independence and accountability. Mr. Tang To is the chairman
and Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman serves as the chief executive officer.
Mr. Tang To was responsible for providing leadership to and
overseeing the functioning of the Board to ensure that it acts
in the best interest of the Group; while Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman,
who is the chief operating decision maker, was responsible
for managing the business of the Group, attending to the
formulation and implementation of the Group's policies and
strategic operating plans, and assuming full accountability to the
Board for the Group’s operations.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) are appointed for a term of three years. Their terms
of office are: (i) Mr. Kan Wai Wah (non-executive Director) and
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (independent non-executive Director), who
were appointed for a term commencing from 1 January 2020
and expiring on 31 December 2022; (ii) Mr. Qu lJinping (non-
executive Director), who was appointed for a term commencing
from 8 September 2021 and expiring on 7 September 2024, (iii)
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei (independent non-executive Director), who
was appointed for a term commencing from 2 November 2021
and expiring on 1 November 2024; and (iv) Mr. Cheng Tak Yin
(independent non-executive Director), who was appointed for
a term commencing from 30 January 2022 and expiring on 29
January 2025. They are all subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at least every three years at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Articles.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various board committees, namely
committee of executive Directors, Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee to manage particular
aspects of the Company’'s affairs and aid in sharing the
responsibilities of the Board. Except the committee of executive
Directors, all committees have their specific written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the CG Code.
All resolutions passed by the committees will be reported to the
Board at the forthcoming Board meeting.

No corporate governance committee has been established but
respective board committees (as disclosed below) are responsible
for performing corporate governance functions set out in the
terms of reference in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

Committee of Executive Directors

A committee of executive Directors of the Company was
established on 15 August 1997 which comprises all executive
Directors. They meet frequently and are responsible for the
management of day-to-day business operation of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 March 2012
and consists of five members with a majority of independent non-
executive Directors. They are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Tang To (Chairman)
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin

Mr. Huang Zhi Wei

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is posted
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the duties
and responsibilities under the terms of reference and other duties
as required under the CG Code.

During the year under review, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held and the main works performed by the
Nomination Committee during the year included (i) review of
current structure, size and diversity of the Board; (i) assessment
and review of the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; (iii) review of the Board diversity policy; (iv)
recommendations on the renewal of letters of appointment of
a non-executive Directors and two independent non-executive
Directors; and (v) review of terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee members
is set out in the heading "Attendance Record of Directors at
Meetings held during the Year” on page 57 of this report.
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 June 2005
and consists of four members with a majority of independent
non-executive Directors. They are:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Zhi Wei

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan

Executive Director
Mr. Tang To

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the
duties and responsibilities under the terms of reference and other
duties as required under the CG Code.
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During the year under review, three Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the main works performed by
the Remuneration Committee during the year included: (i)
consideration and review of the remuneration package of
executive Directors; (ii) review of directors’ fees of non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors); (iii)
consideration of the directors’ fees of a non-executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors during their re-
appointment period; and (iv) review of terms of reference of
Remuneration Committee.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to individual performance, the Group’s
performance and profitability, and remuneration benchmark in
the industry and prevailing market condition. The Directors do not
participate in the determination of their own remuneration.

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out in note 10A to the consolidated financial
statements.

The attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members
is set out in the heading "Attendance Record of Directors at
Meetings held during the Year” on page 57 of this report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 30 October 1998 and
consists of three members, and all of them are independent non-
executive Directors. They are:

Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the duties and

responsibilities under the terms of reference and other duties as
required under the CG Code.
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During the year under review, five Audit Committee meetings
were held and the main works performed by the Audit
Committee during the year included: (i) review of the final results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020; (ii) review
of the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30
June 2021; (iii) review of the progress and completion level of the
internal audit plan for 2021; (iv) review of the internal audit plan
for 2022; (v) recommendation to the Board on re-appointment of
external auditor for Shareholders’ approval and review its audit
fees; and (vi) review of terms of reference of Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee meets with the financial controller and
external auditor of the Company, where applicable to discuss
their respective audit findings, the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group, legal and regulatory compliance,
internal control and risk management systems, and financial
reporting matters (including annual financial statements
before recommending them to the Board for approval). The
Audit Committee also meets with the head of Internal Audit
Department separately without the presence of management. The
Audit Committee assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities
for maintaining effective risk management and internal control
systems. It reviews the Group’s annual internal audit plan
together with their resource requirements and considers the
report submitted by the head of Internal Audit Department
to the Audit Committee on the results of risk assessment and
effectiveness of internal controls in the business operations of the
Group.

The attendance record of the Audit Committee members is set
out in the heading “Attendance Record of Directors at Meetings
held during the Year” on page 57 of this report.

Whistleblowing Policy
A whistleblowing policy has been adopted on 28 March 2019 for
employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g. customers
and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence, with the Audit
Committee about the possible improprieties in any matters
related to the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis and reviews their effectiveness by the Audit
Committee at least annually with the assistance of the Internal
Audit Department. The Group's risk management and internal
control systems, are systems of process performed by the Board
and management to provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in
achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding
assets of the Group, providing reliable financial reporting, and
complying with applicable laws and regulations. The purpose of
the risk management and internal control systems is to identify
and manage various risks which are categorised as strategic,
operational, compliance and financial risks of the Group so as to
reduce, mitigate, transfer or avoid them. However, these systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminating risk of failure
in operational system, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Internal Audit

To comply with the CG Code in relation to the requirements of
the establishment of internal audit function and appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems,
the Internal Audit Department is responsible for preparing an
annual internal audit plan with use of appropriate risk-based
methodology, evaluating the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control processes through a systematic and
disciplined approach, reviewing financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, and
reporting the findings with recommendations to the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee takes the responsibility to
review the effectiveness of risk management and internal control
systems, and ensure the internal audit function and its duties are
in compliance with the CG Code.

The internal audit function is carried out by the Internal Audit
Department and its purpose, authority, roles and responsibilities
were formalized under internal audit charter adopted by the
Audit Committee.
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Confronting the temporary travel restrictions and quarantine
measures implemented by the PRC and Hong Kong governments,
the Internal Audit Department continuously improve on remote
auditing by accelerating adoption of agile audit techniques,
necessitating the greater use of technology, collaborative
working and video conferencing. It includes the prioritization of
operational resilience and assessment of any emerging risks that
support the provision of reasonable assurance. The Internal Audit
Department conducted reviews remotely on the selected business
unit situated in the PRC for maintaining a sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group to
enhance and protect the organizational value by providing risk-
based and objective assurance.

Internal Audit Department prepares an annual internal audit
plan based on a risk assessment methodology upon the Audit
Committee’s approval. Internal audit works are carried out
pursuant to the approved audit plan. Internal audit reports with
audit findings and recommendations are prepared for the Audit

Committee’s review and discussion from time to time.

Risk Management

Our risk management process is embedded in our daily
operations, financial activities, compliance, strategy development
and business planning, investment decision and external factors.
The risk management process includes:

Risk Identification
e identifying the risks through department heads and general
manager of each business;

e identifying the risks that may have a potential to negatively
affect the business strategic plan of the Group;

e considering the materiality of the impact of the risk; and
e accessing the relevancy to the business strategic plan and

the level of potential impact of the delivery of the business
strategic plan.
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Risk Analysis
e conducting a quantity measurement to evaluate the risk
level;

e assessing the risk severity according to its level of
consequence and the likelihood of the risk event becoming

actual event; and

e determining the risk severity with reference to the historical
data, industry norms and own judgment.

Risk Evaluation
e identifying the risks and assess the options available to
accept, mitigate, transfer or avoid the risks; and

e deciding the appropriate response in terms of its
effectiveness and establishing the priorities.

Risk Treatment
e selecting the risk treatment options; and

e preparing and implementing risk treatment plans and
reporting to Audit Committee regularly.

Internal Control

The internal control system consists of a set of rules, policies and
procedures and organizational structures which aims to:

e ensure the corporate strategies are properly implemented;

e achieve the effective and efficient corporate processes;

e safeguard the value of corporate assets;

e ensure the reliability and integrity of accounting and
management data; and

e ensure the business operations comply with laws, rules,

policies and regulations.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control, and
Corporate Governance Compliance

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has concluded a
review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2021,
covering all material financial, operational, compliance controls
and risk management functions, and therefore considered that
such systems were effective and adequate. In addition, the
Audit Committee also reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience of staff and the training programs
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function. During the reporting period, the Audit Committee
was not informed of any audit findings that indicated material
weaknesses in the internal control system or the risk management
system.

Procedures for handling and dissemination of inside
information

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Listing Rules, SFO and other
regulatory requirements, the Company has adopted a policy
on disclosure of inside information (the “Inside Information
Disclosure Policy”) to regulate procedures and internal controls
in handling of inside information. The Directors and senior
management of the Company are obliged to take all reasonable
measures stipulated in the said policy to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent the Company from breaching
the statutory disclosure requirement. The Inside Information
Disclosure Policy covers the following:

e setting out the processes for identifying and assessing
potential inside information, and convening a board meeting
to consider and discuss potential inside information;

e setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information; and

e identifying who the Company’s authorized spokespersons
are and their responsibilities for communications with the
stakeholders of the Company.
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The Board considers that the Company’s existing measures
are effective and compliance mechanisms are appropriate to
safeguard the Company and its officers in discharging their
disclosure obligations in respect of inside information.

External Auditor's Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the fee paid/payable
to the external auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor to the Group were as follows:

EFERXRETRTREREBAER hEaR
HHEURERARBARESHREERITAR
HERKESE-

SMEE I B AT AN &
REBEE_E_—F+_A=+—HILEFE>
BB/ BT INEZ BN A A EEIRHZ
HRIIEZBBRH MW T

Fee paid/payable

e/ EHER
HK$'000
FET

Services rendered FTie (AR 75
Audit services ZE R 2,848
Non-audit services JEIZ AR 75 -
Total =1 2,848

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting and
financial reporting standards to enable the presentation of these
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error. The Directors will subject to
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards,
select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
make prudent, fair and reasonable judgements and estimates and
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Lai Tong acts as the sole company secretary of the
Company. She is a full-time employee of the Group and reports
to the chairman and/or chief executive officer. During the year,
she has duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company has opportunities to directly communicate with
Shareholders at various annual general meetings and other
general meetings where Shareholders are encouraged to actively
attend. In addition, the chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each of Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee were present to answer any attending
Shareholder’s questions at the annual general meeting. The
auditor had also attended the annual general meeting to answer
guestions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and
auditor’s independence.

Furthermore, the Company provides information in its
annual reports and interim reports, and announcements.
All Shareholders’” communications are also available on the
Company’s website at http://www.cosmel.com.

Convening of a general meeting

Pursuant to section 566 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights
of all Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings
can request the directors to call a general meeting. The request
must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the general meeting and may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the
meeting. Such request must be authenticated by the person(s)
making it and sent to the Company at its registered office in
hard copy form or in electronic form to ir@cosmel.com for the
attention of the company secretary.
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EEERRE (@

Shareholders’ Power to Request Circulation of Statement
Pursuant to section 580 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders or at least 50 Shareholders who have
a relevant right to vote at a general meeting, may request the
Company to circulate to the Shareholders entitled to receive
notice of a general meeting, a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution or other business to be dealt with at that meeting.
The request (i) must identify the statement to be circulated; (ii)
must be authenticated by the person(s) making it; and (iii) may
be sent to the Company at its registered office in hard copy form
or in electronic form to ir@cosmel.com for the attention of the
company secretary at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an
annual general meeting

Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all Shareholders of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at
annual general meeting or at least 50 shareholders who have
a right to vote on the resolution at an annual general meeting
to which the request relate, may request the Company to give
to the Shareholders notice of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting. The request
(i) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given; (ii)
must be authenticated by the person(s) making it; and (iii) may
be sent to the registered office of the Company in hard copy
form or in electronic form to ir@cosmel.com for the attention of
the company secretary no later than 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting; or if later, the time at which notice of the
meeting is given.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Procedure for Shareholders and other stakeholders to send
enquiries and concerns to the Board

Shareholders and other stakeholders are invited to access the
Company’s website at http://www.cosmel.com for up-to-date
information of the Company. They are advised to send enquires
and concerns to the Board:

(i) by post at the registered office of the Company; or

(i) by email to ir@cosmel.com; and

for the attention of the company secretary.

The Board has adopted a revised shareholders’ communication
policy of the Company on 28 March 2019 which is available on

the Company’s website. Shareholders and other stakeholders can
read the said policy at the Company's website for details.

DIVIDEND POLICY

A dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) has
been adopted by the Board on 28 November 2018. The Dividend
Policy sets out the factors in determination of dividend payment
of the Company, the frequency and form of dividend payments.

When considering the decision on dividend declaration, the Board
will take into account, among other things, the following factors:

(i)  financial performance and financial conditions of the Group;

(ii) cash flows position of the Group;

(iii) capital requirements for business plans of the Company;

(iv) investment opportunities available with the Company;

(v) borrowing capacity of the Company so as to capture any
growth opportunities;

(vi) expected commitment of the research and development on
new products and technology; and
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EERELRERS (B

(vii) future outlook of the macro economic environment that
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group.

The dividend shall be paid in the form of (i) cash; or (ii) a scrip
dividend; or (iii) a combination of partly in (i) and partly in (ii)
above.

The Board may declare interim dividends at its absolute discretion
in line with the Dividend Policy and may recommend final
dividend payable to the Shareholders who are qualified to attend
the annual general meeting in line with the Dividend Policy,
subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the annual general
meeting. The Company may recommend a special dividend in
special circumstances.

The Dividend Policy would be subject to revision and amendment
under the Articles and the Hong Kong law, including the
Companies Ordinance and the Listing Rules from time to time.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year, there is no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the “Company”;
together with its subsidiaries collectively the "“Group”) issues
its environmental, social and governance (the “"ESG") report
(the "ESG Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
report expounds the Group’s ESG management strategies and

performance in 2021.

Reporting Scope

The Group principally engages in the manufacturing of
machinery. Hence, the ESG Report discloses the ESG information
and data for the year ended 31 December 2021 of the Group’s
(i) headquarters in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Headquarters”); (ii)
manufacturing of injection moulding machines (the “Injection
Moulding Machine Business”), including Donghua Machinery Ltd.
in Dongguan (“Donghua Machinery”) and Cosmos Machinery
Technology (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. in Wuxi (“Jiangsu Machinery”); and
(iii) manufacturing of extrusion machines and rubber injection
machines (the “Extrusion Machine Business”), including Dekuma
Rubber and Plastic Technology (Dongguan) Ltd.
("Dekuma”).

in Dongguan

In light of the business contributions to the Group’s overall
revenue from the plastic products processing and manufacturing
business, printed circuit boards processing and trading business,
and industrial consumables trading business separately attributing
a relatively small proportion, this ESG Report does not cover those
businesses.

During the year, the Group expanded its reporting scope of
business to include the Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore,
the relevant ESG information and data in 2020 and 2019 did not
include the said business in this report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE-HEREARS (B

Reporting Standards

The ESG Report follows all the “comply or explain”
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide (the
Guide”) of Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, and reports certain

provisions
"ESG Reporting

recommended disclosures for the purpose of providing our
investors and stakeholders with comprehensive and comparative
non-financial information. The figures of 2021 and 2020 have
not been assured by third party.

In preparing of this ESG Report, the four reporting principles
outlined in the ESG Reporting Guide below formed the backbone:

e Materiality
To determine the focus of this report, materiality assessment
was conducted through stakeholder engagement to identify
the material issues of our core business units.

° Quantitative
Environmental and social responsibility data were collected
from core business units to monitor our progress in
implementing environmental and social responsibility
initiatives.

e Balance
The Board reviewed the ESG Report and confirmed there
were no omissions of any information related to material
ESG topics. This report was prepared without bias.

e  (Consistency
This report adopted consistent methodologies to allow
a fair comparison of our performance over time. Where
applicable, we disclosed the changes to the methods or key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) used.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In addition to following the ESG Reporting Guide, reference
has been taken from international standards or guidelines in
preparation of our ESG Report. The scopes of emissions and their
emission factors are defined in accordance with Hong Kong and
the international reporting framework published as shown below
and quoted from relevant websites:

e the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department’s (the
"EPD") Vehicle Emission Calculation model;

e  Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse
Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010
Edition) published by the EPD and the Electrical and
Mechanical Services Department (the "EMSD");

e 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories and Fifth Synthesis Report (2014) published by
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (“IPCC");

e 2021 Sustainability Report of CLP Holdings Limited;

e 2019/20 Annual Report of Hong Kong Water Supplies
Department;

e Emission Factors of the PRC’'s Regional Power Grid
Baseline of 2019 and Corporate Greenhouse Gas Emission
Accounting Methods and Report Guidelines — Power
Generation Facilities issued on 29 March 2021, published by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC;

e  The International Civil Aviation Organization (the “ICAQ")
Carbon Emissions Calculators; and

e  Practical guidance on how to collect, calculate and report
the information called for under each of the KPIs as reported
in the updated version of “How to prepare an ESG Report,
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”,
published by the Stock Exchange on 25 March 2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE-HEREARS (B

The ESG Report can be downloaded from the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company. If there are any comments or

suggestions relating to the ESG Report, please share by post or

email at the addresses below:

. Postal address:

10th Floor, Billion Plaza 2,

No. 10 Cheung Yue Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

° E-mail address:

ir@cosmel.com

ESG reporting structure and responsibilities

Parties

287

The Board
B5Eg

Company Secretarial Department and
Human Resources and Administration
Department

NEWEB A E R ATBER

ESG Working Group
RIE-HERERIEE

Principal business units/subsidiaries

TEREFEU/WBELE
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Responsibilities
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. Monitor corporate governance practices and procedures

ERCEERERKER

ir@cosmel.com

=R

3 Maintain appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems of
the Group to ensure compliance with applicable rules and regulations

HBBEREMNAERRAREERNEE

3 Review and approve the ESG Report

FBFEULHERRE HEREBRS

3 Review the principles regarding ESG
FRABRE L ERERNERE]

3 Monitor the progress on ESG and community engagement programs

BERRR - HERERE

Bt &2 EE

3 Ensure good corporate governance standards and practices are maintained

ERERRENEEE AR

3 Prepare the ESG Report
RERE HERERRE

HEFE R

51 R A LU (R AT 5 8 A B AR B R AR

3 Develop a list of key internal and external stakeholders, and identify their main

concerns and expectations

—REENANEMINBRFDERE > UHFIRENTERATMAE
3 Data input, collection and analysis, computing all relevant KPIs
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o Organize and implement community engagement programs

EENERTR2E5E

3 Gather ESG related data and data entry
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3 Formulate, improve and implement related ESG aspects policies/guidelines/procedures
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Statement of the Board

The Board attaches great importance to sustainable development.
The Company has established an effective ESG management
mechanism to form an ESG governance structure with clear
hierarchy.

The Board is accountable for our ESG strategies and reporting, as
well as responsible for overseeing and managing our ESG-related
risks. The Board, assisted by an ESG Working Group, formulates
strategies and oversees our ESG performance to ensure the
Group's operations in compliance with the relevant ESG policies
as well as applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the Board completed the review and assessment
of ESG issues, and discussed, reviewed and confirmed the ESG
work results of this year. This ESG Report has been reviewed and
approved by the Board.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We believe feedback from our stakeholders could help us to
navigate towards sustainable growth and are dedicated to
developing long-term relationships of mutual trust with our
stakeholders through internal and external communication
channels to ensure our operation is responsive to their
suggestions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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We identify any individuals or entities having significant interests
in principal activities of the Group as our stakeholders. These
stakeholders are classified as shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers, governments and regulators, and banks and financial
institutions. We engage with stakeholders through various
communication channels categorised as follows:

Stakeholder category Communication Channels

Frin &5 BERE

PRERAERFEZXBABAN DR FAE
ARBERARKMANFMHE  2EBNFD
EZEpOERR -EE TR HER BUF
BEEMBE URRITREMEE - HFMEA
BERFMNENBBRBNT

Shareholders Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence

B BH BERB
Company’s website
/N

Annual general meetings and general meetings

KRREFAGRBRERS
Annual and interim reports

FHRBEPHTES

Circulars, announcements, notices and publications

BRRE-BERHY
Investor relations enquiries

REERMRESA
Employees Annual appraisals
(=] FETZ

Training and seminars

Al KR s &

Company internal notices and communications

REINEB S FiB
Customers Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits
=R HERERGE KED

Day-to-day communications via frontline staff

BBRREENEEBRE
Industry exhibitions

*RRE

Customer service hotline and email

= P AR 75 247 ke BB T
Suppliers Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence
HrEm B EEE R I

Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits

BERERSEKED

On-going direct engagements

HEERE2HR
Governments and regulators Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence
B KR EE B IR~ EaE R EB

Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits

BEEKERSEKRED

Reports and submissions pursuant to regulatory requirements

RREEREERBRERRETER

Banks and financial institutions Emails, telephone calls and postal correspondence

IRIT R R B BE R

Face-to-face and virtual meetings and visits

EREMERGERES
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Materiality Assessment EEMTME

The Group has carried out a number of stakeholder engagement #HEBR T - —FHTZERMHESHEt
exercises and updated the materiality assessment in 2021 to HWESEMEEMTEH UMAESEEDN
determine the significance level of topics and prioritise the EE2E I ABREMMBPETB LR F o
corresponding topics.

Cosmos Machinery — Materiality Matrix
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE-HHERERRS (8

The Group reviews the material topics reqularly and a stakeholder HKNEBTEHBFNEEZE UTETHFDE
survey has been designed to seek stakeholders’ feedback on the RI%HHEE > REFNEHEBZEEEEE
significance level of material topics. The materiality assessment HMER W _ZE-_—F - HZMEH TEER
was updated in 2021 and a materiality matrix was developed i IRIBFMHELLSAETEREENEE
from the results of stakeholder questionnaires. Material topics BB WHHNAREREHBLHEEE
related to the Group's businesses and daily operations have been RS EEZENELERNF  ILEZEHIT
prioritised. Their importance to stakeholders and the Group is E&ERAEEHIEEESMAOTF ¢

shown below:

Aspect

i)

Environmental 215

Lol co Bl @ Bl = BRSNS R

Air pollutants emission ¥ & HEH

Greenhouse gas emission ;& = & f& HE K
Hazardous waste 8 =4

Non-hazardous waste JE75 EEE4)

Energy consumption AE R HFE

Water consumption ¥E7k

Packaging consumption 44

Other impacts on environment $18 15~ H{th g £
Climate change RIZ&{E

Social 1 &

10.
11.
12.
13.

Employment 1215

Occupational health and safety B EREREZE
Vocational training B2 23l

Child labour and forced labour Z T k73825 T

Operating practices & Z 18

14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

Supply chain management i fiE & & 32
Product safety ZEmEZE

Customer satisfaction & P imEE
Intellectual property &3 & #

Quality of products E & &

Data protection and privacy 2 fHR 8 F0FAZ

Anti-corruption practices and whistle-blowing procedures
R&EFIE6I RBRERF

Community &

21.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is committed to protecting environment proactively
and complying with relevant environmental laws, rules and
regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC in which it operates its
businesses. We have implemented proper measures to reduce
wastes and greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions in our plants in
the PRC and office in Hong Kong to mitigate wastes, and use
energy and resources wisely. Employees have been nurtured and
encouraged to have energy conservation and environmental

protection consciousness.

EMISSIONS

We strictly monitor and control the generation of wastes, GHG
emissions and sewage discharges during production process and
ensure all sewage discharges, GHG emissions and wastes disposal
are within the applicable environmental laws, ordinances and
rules and regulations as set out by the local government in which
our businesses operate. These laws, ordinances and regulations
include but not limited to the Environmental Protection Law of
the PRC, Environmental Protection Tax Law of the PRC ({FRE]IR
BIREM L)), Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution, Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the PRC, Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 354 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), Product Eco-responsibility Ordinance
(Chapter 603 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Environmental Quality
Standard for Surface Water, Wastewater Quality Standards
for Discharge to Municipal Sewers, the Measures for the
Administration of Permit for Operation of Dangerous Wastes ({f&
REEY) S E TR 5B B IEHA) ) and Law of the PRC on Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. These
environmental laws will have impact on the Group’s operation
since if we do not dispose all wastages, discharges and waste
gases properly, we might have to bear heavy environmental
protection tax and so increase the cost of disposal of wastages.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE-HEREARS (B

Climate Change, and GHG and Other Pollutants Emissions
Climate change affects our business operations significantly.
An increase in temperature may lead to higher electricity
consumption for cooling and extreme weather such as storms and
floods may result in financial loss and cause physical damage to
infrastructure of our plants.

Subject to national carbon neutrality policy, several Chinese
provinces, including Guangdong and Jiangsu suffered severe
electricity supply shortages since late September 2021. The PRC
government imposed power cuts and rationing on industrial
enterprises and even residences. In this connection, both
Injection Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion Machine
Business implemented a series of measures to ensure orderly
production and align with national carbon reduction strategies.
All production workers were staggered working hours. Other
employees work in office with natural light during daytime and
elevators, air conditioners, water heaters and other non-essential
electrical facilities were also suspended operations.

In 2021, Jiangsu Machinery has set up a power consumption
monitoring system to the waste gas treatment facilities to monitor
all waste gas emissions and ensure air, GHG and other pollutants’
emissions are in compliance with the standard requirements as
set out by the PRC environmental regulatory authority. Donghua
Machinery has set up a volatile organic compounds (“VOCs")
waste gas catalytic combustion equipment at waste gas treatment
facilities to reduce VOCs significantly and ensure emissions in
accordance with the relevant environmental laws and regulations.
Both injection moulding machines manufacturing plants, Donghua
Machinery and Jiangsu Machinery use waterborne paint for a
replacement of solvent borne paint to reduce the release of VOCs
as well. Moreover, we engaged qualified inspection organizations
to conduct inspection on waste gas treatment facilities for
strengthening the maintenance of waste gas treatment facilities.
Details of the data of air emissions is set out under the headings
“Air Emissions” and “GHG Emissions”.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

RIFE{ENREZEREERE MBS RYBEK

RIEZEERESHRMANESEERIRE
FE RALANEERANRKNSHNEH
M BB HKEHHERRIFIEER
EEBL T EENRMTHRHOERREES

PREERIR

ZERKPNBERNEE BT —Fh
AT ZEPEE D SEERNMILE
RETBRENBHHERER PRABNEZ
WMIXGCEEEETETEMRE-FRERIE>
ABREBNE L EBIGET T —RIE
1t > B4R TR Fp 31T £ B K T & B SR
HEFEE - PRAEREENEITRE TR
BEM EMERAZETIFNESA RER
RARRICT AR TR~ 2258  BUKE M EAth
FLBHNBIREHEIFEA -

RIZF-—F IHEMEEREREERE
ZRAEEEREERARUBEAREFRBEER
o ERER GEEREBMNHMSRAYN
FHRERNETERREERBNIRERE
MERERMATEREERMREBENR
WIEEYERECRERE  BRALER
MEBZEERCESVEIR BERIKERS
ERIRMRIEZRMRERTE THIRE - REH
1 52T BR % A BV 2B IS R 5 19 B BR A K
MRRAE R R AR EEEMLS
WIESYRIBE - SN HPIBEZ TS ER
B A% R 4 1 0 B SR R 3 AR T e BE SRR U TT
150R » 0 5% BE R BR T 5% I A o o R RBFIUE
BRFRHNUT ERER KDREREE
HERURERA o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Sewage Discharge Management

The Group rigorously complies with the standards under
the Environmental Quality Standard for Surface Water and
Wastewater Quality Standards for Discharge to Municipal
Sewers of the PRC to release of sewage to sewer. To reduce
water consumption, a water recycling system was set up in the
industrial paint booth both at Donghua Machinery and Jiangsu
Machinery. During the spray painting process, we used water
for paint dirt removal to keep the tanks and pumps of the paint
booths clean. Water is filtered from the wash paint and recycled
several times before being replaced. We engaged qualified
disposal enterprises to dispose of industrial sewage properly and
regular engages local environmental certifications organization
to detect the pH value, chemical oxygen demand (COD),
ammonia nitrogen, total amount of phosphorus, nitrogen etc.
of industrial sewage in the sewer to ensure all emissions are in
compliance with the standard requirements as set out by the PRC
environmental regulatory authority. Water saving reminders were
placed in our plants’ kitchens and lavatories to remind employees
to reduce water consumption.

Waste Management

We have formulated a waste treatment procedure to collect, store
and dispose of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes generated
in production lines. We reported information on the generation,
storage, transfer, utilization and disposal of hazardous wastes to
the hazardous wastes monitoring system established by the PRC
environmental regulatory authority timely and engaged qualified
disposal enterprises in accordance with the Measures for the
Management of Transfer of Hazardous Waste ((f&h&REEY)EE#
BIEHHE)) and Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste to dispose of hazardous
wastes properly. Most of the non-hazardous wastes, including
kitchen wastes were disposed of by recycling enterprises for
recycling and reusing. Further details in respect of the disposal
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are illustrated in the
heading of “Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes” in the ESG
Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE-HHERERRS (8

Air Emissions

The data of air emissions” of Hong Kong Headquarters, Injection

Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion Machine Business for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Air Emissions (kg) EE & BEK (F3%)
Sulphur oxides (SOx) & E4 (Z &1L
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) @& 1E%)

Respiratory suspended particles (RSP) &

& BRI

Total air pollutants ZE5, 5 Y42 5

Total air pollutants per million sales (kg/HK$ million)

SHEHERNERSAYRE (TR S88HET)

(M

The air emissions data are generated from petrol and diesel
fuel combustion in vehicles and forklift, and the emissions
factors are based on the EPD Vehicle Emission Calculation
model and the United States Environmental Protection
Agency's Vehicle Emission Modeling Software.

The amount of diesel for forklift of Jiangsu Machinery in
2020 has been restated, therefore the total amount of
sulphur oxides (SOx) in 2020 has been restated accordingly.

In 2021,
Machinery, therefore the amount of nitrogen oxides (NOx)

we reclassified the vehicle type for Donghua

and respiratory suspended particles in 2020 have been
restated.

The total amount of air pollutants of 2021 increased when
compared to that of 2020 attributable to the more frequent
use of light goods vehicle of Injection Moulding Machine
Business (whose emission factor adopted is far greater than
the others) in 2021.

The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover
Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of air
emissions for 2020 in the above table did not include that

business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

GHG Emissions

The data of GHG emissions” of Hong Kong Headquarters,
Injection Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion Machine
Business for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as
follows:

GHG Emissions (tonnes COz-e) B E R EEHEIN (M= A 1bhx
Scope 1 Direct GHG Emissions® #3 8 — BHiZAZ=E REEHH?
Scope 2 Energy Indirect GHG Emissions® & [E — A5 R B A E mASH MO
Scope 3 Other Indirect GHG Emissions® #3[& = H th 48 = & A8 HE @
Total GHG Emissions (Scope 1+2+3) ‘B E REEH MRS (EE1+2+3)

Total GHG Emissions per million sales (tonnes COz-e-e/HK$ million)
SEBHEBRNAERESRNEEZ B_StHhEE /S8 8T)

I3

B)

(1) GHG emissions were calculated based on Guidelines to
Account for and Report on GHG Emissions and Removals for
Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes)
in Hong Kong (2010 Edition) published by the EPD and
EMSD, unless otherwise stated in the following notes.

(2) Scope 1 emissions comprise vehicle fleet that run on petrol
and diesel as well as our forklift that run on diesel, natural
gas and HFC and PFC emissions from the use of refrigerants.
GHG emissions factors were also calculated with reference
to emission factors stated in the 2006 IPCC Guidelines for
National GHG Inventories and Fifth Synthesis Report (2014)
published by IPCC.

(3) Scope 2 emissions are generated from the electricity
consumption. Emissions were calculated with reference to
emission factors stated in 2021 Sustainability Report of
CLP Holdings Limited, and the PRC's Regional Power Grid
Baseline of 2019 and Corporate GHG Emission Accounting
Methods and Report Guidelines — Power Generation Facilities
issued on 29 March 2021, published by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the PRC.

RIE-HERELARS (@)
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2021 2020
202.55 199.26
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -#ERERRS (@

(4)

Scope 3 emissions are generated by paper consumption,
water consumption and business travel by air. Emissions
were calculated with reference to emission factors stated
in 2019/20 Annual Report of Hong Kong Water Supplies
Department, 2021 Sustainability Report of CLP Holdings
Limited, the PRC's Regional Power Grid Baseline of 2019 and
Corporate GHG Emission Accounting Methods and Report
Guidelines — Power Generation Facilities issued on 29 March
2021, published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
of the PRC, and ICAO.

The amount of diesel for forklift of Jiangsu Machinery in
2020 has been restated and we reclassified the vehicle type
for Donghua Machinery, therefore the total amount of Direct
GHG Emissions (Scope 1) has been restated accordingly.

Emissions from corporate fleet only include the
transportation of employees as we do not have our
own corporate fleet to transport/deliver our products to
customers in Injection Moulding Machine Business and
Extrusion Machine Business.

Since the production volume of Injection Moulding Machine
Business in 2021 was increased, the total GHG Emissions
was hence increased.

The GHG emission for purchased electricity in 2020 was
calculated with reference to the PRC's Regional Power
Grid Baseline of 2019 published by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of the PRC, and the GHG emission for
purchased electricity in 2021 was calculated with reference
to national grid average emission factors from Corporate
GHG Emission Accounting Methods and Report Guidelines
— Power Generation Facilities published by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the PRC on 29 March 2021.

The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover
Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of GHG
emissions for 2020 in the above table did not include that
business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Measures have been taken to Mitigate Emissions, Energy
Use and Water Efficiency Initiatives, and Results Achieved
We have implemented a number of energy saving measures such
as using energy efficient equipment and reducing electricity,
water and paper consumption in offices and plants to mitigate
emissions. We have taken the following actions for the efficient
use of resources in the production lines:

(1) Using waterborne paint for a replacement of waterborne
paint to reduce activated carbon produced and release of
VOCs in the production lines in Injection Moulding Machine
Business;

(2) Using new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system to
achieve paperless office; and

(3) Delivering products with minimal packaging.

Moreover, an old diesel forklift was replaced with an electric
forklift, leading to a potential reduction of GHG emissions per
year. We plan to further phase out three diesel forklift in the next
year.

The Group has also implemented energy saving measures in
offices as stated under the heading “The Environment and
Natural Resources” in the ESG Report. With our concerted efforts
in 2021, the total amount of water consumption of Hong Kong
Headquarters decreased by 7.18% when compared to that of
2020. We aim to reduce 2% of our energy intensity by 2024,
compared with 2019 baseline.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE-HEREARS (B

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

The hazardous and non-hazardous wastes discharged of by Hong
Kong Headquarters, Injection Moulding Machine Business and
Extrusion Machine Business for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Injection Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion
Machine Business

Types of Hazardous Wastes (tonne) 5 = B4 485! (M)
Solid wastes [E#2EE#)
Wasted oil containers & 3818
Wasted oil paint containers & #3721
Others (e.g. waste filter, activated carbon and waste paint residue)
B (MEERIENR EE  BERD HARD)
Total solid wastes [EFEEE )48 =
Total solid wastes per million sales (tonne/HK$ million)
SOBHEENEREYEETE (B /888N
Liquid wastes & R&EE 4]
Waste oil E¥5H
Industrial sewage T 2557k
Total liquid wastes R B2 4B &
Total liquid wastes per million sales (tonne/HK$ million)

SHEHERNRREYRETE M/ 588281

(1) In accordance with the List of National Hazardous Wastes
formulated by the Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, all the captioned
wastes we have recorded are defined as hazardous wastes.

(2) Most of hazardous wastes amount increased in 2021
when compared with that of 2020. All the hazardous
wastes generated were disposed of properly by those
qualified disposal contractors to mitigate the impact on the
environment.

(3) Since the production volume of Injection Moulding Machine

Business in 2021 was increased, most of the amount of
hazardous wastes were hence increased.
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2021 2020
7.58 6.72
3.18 4.10
7.34 6.13
18.10 16.95
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305.49 278.58
311.39 284.25
0.29 0.40
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

(4) The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover
Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of
hazardous wastes for 2020 in the above table did not
include that business.

Injection Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion
Machine Business

Types of Non-hazardous Wastes (tonne) JEH EEEY4ER! (1)
Paper wastes EE 4%

Plastics 22

Metallic wastes 5 /& EE¥)

Others wastes H 1 EE4)

Kitchen wastes & %

Total non-hazardous wastes JE5 EEFY) 48 &

Total non-hazardous wastes per million sales (tonne/HK$ million)
SEEHEENIFEEEYEE (B SES38T)

(1) All the captioned non-hazardous wastes are defined as non-
hazardous wastes in accordance with the List of National
Hazardous Wastes formulated by the Law of the PRC on
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste.

(2) Most of non-hazardous wastes amount increased in 2021
when compared with that of 2020. Most of non-hazardous
wastes amount increased in 2021 when compared with
that of 2020. Most of the non-hazardous wastes generated
were disposed of properly by those qualified contractors to
mitigate the impact on the environment.

(3) In 2021 and 2020, the Hong Kong Headquarters did not
produce any hazardous wastes. Hong Kong Headquarters
arranges the disposal of paper waste to recycling enterprises
for recycling or reusing.

(4) The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover
Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of non-
hazardous wastes for 2020 in the above table did not
include that business.

4
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4.58 4.54
833.01 881.59
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE-HEREARS (B

Hong Kong Headquarters

Types of Non-hazardous Wastes (kg) JEE EREER (T3)
Paper wastes collected for recycling 2] U £ 4%

(1) In 2021 and 2020, Hong Kong Headquarters did not
produce any hazardous wastes.

(2) Paper wastes collected for recycling included shredded paper
and old newspapers.

Disposal and Reduction Initiatives of Hazardous and Non-
hazardous Wastes, and Results Achieved

The Group has entered into contracts with qualified disposal
enterprises in respect of the disposal of the waste oil, industrial
sewage, waste paint residue, waste oil containers, waste paint
containers and activated carbon. These hazardous wastes
generated in production lines of the Injection Moulding Machine
Business and Extrusion Machine Business were reported to the
hazardous wastes monitoring system established by the PRC
environmental regulatory authority and disposed of properly
by those qualified disposal enterprises in accordance to the
Standard for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage
regulated in the PRC. The Group also has entered into contracts
with recycling enterprises in respect of the disposal of the non-
hazardous wastes, such as scrapped cast iron, scrap, scrapped
iron and steel, scrapped aluminum sheets and wasted electrical
wires plastics and wood for recycling or reusing. In the past, Hong
Kong Headquarters have arranged the disposal of paper waste to
recycling enterprises for recycling or reusing, and also donated
some computer equipment to the Caritas Computer Workshop,
details of which are set out under the heading “Caring for the
Environment” in the ESG Report. We set a target to reduce office
paper consumption by 5% by 2024, as compared to the 2019
baseline.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has implemented various measures to reduce the use
of water, papers and electricity consumption in our plants and
office and has been encouraging employees to have practices for
energy and resources conservation. Details of the green measures
are set out under the heading “The Environment and Natural
Resources” in the ESG Report.

Direct and Indirect Energy Consumption

The direct and indirect energy consumption data” of Hong Kong
Headquarters, Injection Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion
Machine Business for the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020 is as follows:

Energy Consumption (GJ) At B H#E (FIK&H)
Direct energy consumption BiZERES
Petrol fuel - vehicle fleet 55Kl — B2 BX
Diesel fuel - vehicle fleet 4&5mIAKl — B[
Diesel fuel — forklift® L& 5HIAR — X EO
Natural gas KZAR
Indirect energy consumption B35 REE
Electricity® 8 /7@
Total energy consumption BERAEFEE
Total energy consumption per million sales (GJ/HK$ million)

SERPFEENEREEE (THEE /SERET)

(1) Energy consumption data was measured based on the
amount of electricity, and fuels and gas consumed and
energy conversion factors had taken reference from the
Bioenergy Feedstock Development Program at Oak Ridge
National Laboratory and a Beginner's Guide to Energy
and Power, an article submitted by N Packer, Staffordshire
University, UK, February 2011.

RIE-HERELARS (@)

BRER

ANEE B E TR R A = B AR S iR L B 4R AT
KUREBEAWHEE  UEREEE TEREY
FERFMBE RN BB - BRI 2 ¥ B &I
RRE - HEREARSANEEARER
FKARERIA

HERMEERER
HE-®-_—GR-P-BEFA=F—
B U 4R 5 AR E U B TS R i
3 75 0 B4 70 70 5 5 R R BUB 09U R 4
e

2021 2020
732.11 367.23
72.90 48.55
1,031.76 840.07
928.82 979.35
27,563.99 21,115.15
30,329.57 23,350.34
27.89 33.16

(1) SERHFEEHEEILREBEESNME X
REBHENERERERZHEESE
BB R BB =(0ak Ridge National
Laboratory) WEMBEREM I B EE R
5t #l(Bioenergy Feedstock Development
Program) A E SR EA KNS
N PackerRZZ——FZHEXH(a
Beginner’'s Guide to Energy and Power)
XEo
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RIE-HEREARS (B

(2) In the past, the office of Hong Kong Headquarters co-used
with a wholly-owned subsidiary which engages industrial
consumables trading business (the “Industrial Consumables

Trading Business”). We consider sub-meter for individual

office is not feasible. Hence, the data electricity consumption

of Hong Kong Headquarters was included Industrial

Consumables Trading Business.

(3) The amount of diesel for forklift of Jiangsu Machinery in
2020 has been restated, therefore the total direct energy
consumption has been restated accordingly.

(4) The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover
Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of direct
and indirect energy consumption for 2020 in the above table
did not include that business.

Water Consumption

The water consumption data of Hong Kong Headquarters,
Injection Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion Machine
Business for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is set
out as follows:

Water Consumption (m?) ¥67k & (325 3)
Total water consumption 483E7k 2
Total water consumption per million sales (m3/HK$ million)

SERFHEENEEKE LB K/ SERET)

(1) In the past, the office of Hong Kong Headquarters co-used
with a wholly-owned subsidiary which engages Industrial
Consumables Trading Business where both the water supply
and discharge of are solely controlled by the property
management. We consider sub-meter for individual office is
not feasible. Hence, only the data regarding drinking water
which included Industrial Consumables Trading Business was
collected.

(2) The data of amount of water is quoted by the water
consumed as stated in the bills received.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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EHFKEBIERIITNT

2021 2020
65,785.00 48,131.00
60.49 68.34
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(3) The water consumption of the Hong Kong Headquarters and
Injection Molding Machine Business decreased compared to
2020 if excluding the water consumption Extrusion Machine
Business in 2021. This reflected the effectiveness of the
usage of water in 2021.

(4) The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover
Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of water
consumption for 2020 in the above table did not include
that business.

Packaging Materials for Finished Products

Our finished products would be packed by stretch films properly
so as to avoid any damage during transportation. Since the
production volume of Injection Moulding Machine Business in
2021 was increased, the amount of stretch films was hence
increased. The data of packaging materials for respective Injection
Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion Machine Business for
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Injection Moulding Machine Business

Type of Packaging Materials (tonne) B 2477148 8! (HE)
Stretch films AL{H &

Total stretch films per million sales (tonne/HK$ million)
SERHERNIUAEEEE B/ S85848T)

Extrusion Machine Business

Type of Packaging Materials (tonne) B3+ ¥ 45! (4E)
Stretch films iz 6 2

Total stretch films per million sales (tonne/HK$ million)
SEBHEENMERHE B/ S858%T)

Metallic pallets & BT 22

Wooden box and wooden pallets R AFEHE 2R

Total wooden box and metallic and wooden pallets per million sales
(tonne/HK$ million)
SEEHEENAE UREBNARBREUE B/ SE8HT)

RIE-HERELARS (@)

(3) MR- EZ —FHEHBEBNEKRE
ERBMIFEREBNEKEL S
“EFEMBL  ERM IS —FF
R K 0

(4 TE_EFREBE - HIRELARGTHRK
SHRETEREEHEES At EX
W _TFEHKERBLAAEZE
5o

HAmFrRA e RME
BANKARERUMFERELSEE UER
FEHEETAEABE AN T —
AEREFNEERN AILh#ERBER
FREM -BE-ZT - —FR-ZFTF+T
A=+—HILFEMNIBHEFZMIBHEE
BREMHEEDHIITIOT

ABHEFS

2021 2020
15.23 13.68
0.02 0.02

EHERS

2021
2.00
0.01

25.00
10.00
0.16
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(1) Since the production volume of Injection Moulding Machine
Business in 2021 increased as compared to that of the last
year, the amount of stretch films used increased accordingly.

(2) Notwithstanding the increase of sales of Injection Moulding
Machine Business in 2021, the total packaging materials per
million of sales of Injection Moulding Machine Business did
not increased. This reflected the effectiveness of the usage
of packaging materials in 2021.

(3) The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover
Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of
packaging materials for 2020 in the above table did not
include that business.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
We aware that our business would have an impact on the
environmental and natural resources. Hence, we must implement
various measures in our plants and offices to reduce carbon
footprint and environmental impact. Continuing to the idea
of “go green” in our offices, we encourage all employees to
implement the following green measures:

MRE_Z_—FIBRETNES
EEAFEM ERRERANVHERME
e

BEITEREBNEEN _S_—FF8
ER EESESHENGOEMHBHE
REBEEMN ERM - —FAYMIE
e gk

TECTZFRE-HERERRENR
SHETEREEHMES Rt EX
W_Z-_TFEEMBBBRLFEBEZ
ES N

RIFRRAER
HMARHMNEBHIBRNARE RS

B

T8 ALERMLREIRARAEENR

K IAFE I > DURD B & 75 5 R B IR IR B &2
Z-RMFEEMLRZTHEIRRFRER B
B EEREESRITIIRMFREN

Electricity 3 Energy saving labels are placed on all electrical appliances and light switches to remind employees to

B conserve energy.

TEFEBRABEERBAEN EBNERRE REEEEHNER
3 To reduce electricity consumption, all computers are set to auto energy-saving mode.

RBMRERSBBEMERN  BINHEE-

3 Employees are reminded to switch off all lighting, air conditioning and electrical appliances before leaving

the workplace.

RERESHERLFERMiEMASRE  SRKAEB%HE -

3 Lighting would be switched off during non-business hours, unless for safety and security purposes.
PREEZ 2 R R IR > 35 BITE SR 32 B R PO 7 R =2 BR B o

Water 3 Water saving labels are in place to remind employees not to leave the tap running in the pantry.
7K SRELEIAAKRER  IEREETEERKENKEERARE -
3 Strengthen the daily maintenance of water supply equipment. Employees should inform the maintenance
company through Human Resources and Administration Department for carrying out repairing work

promptly once water supply equipment is damaged.

MAHKRENHEEZE  —EMHAREBERIZ EEFRREBBANERRTHEENEE AR EITHEE

T3z
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R -HHERERRS (8

Waste 3 Recycling bins are placed at the office to encourage employees to separate recyclables, such as paper, plastic
BE4) and metal.

R AEEM U SEIEES D ERIW > R LR REEERE o
3 Used envelopes, folders and eco-friendly reusable bags are collected in recycling bins for employees to reuse.
RECWBWREEGEH X RRRFRRHEEEFH-

Office Equipment e Employees are encouraged to purchase environment-friendly stationery and office equipment as a priority.
WAER Stop purchasing stationery and office equipment with potential adverse environmental impact.
SR EEEBERBERYXARMAERE THBEEHRBENETESNXARMAERE
3 Affix “Save Energy” stickers near the main switches as a reminder to our employees.
AFEERARENIEM LTHNERINERE URREFLRIET

Air-conditioning e Individual air-conditioner can be adjusted manually to suitable temperature. It is recommended to adjust the
=5 temperature of individual air-conditioner to 24.5°C or above to save energy.
BUEREEFHRNENSERNRE  BRFBE UL TANBE R F24.5°CaU L UEIEEER
3 The last-man-out should check and switch off the air-conditioning of all areas of the office. Individual office
users should check and ensure that the air-conditioner is turned off before leaving.

REEENAENRERBRELAENAEMERENER - BUMAZEAEREHEAR BT L RERE

FE R
Others 3 To reduce paper consumption, employees are encouraged to adjust document margins and font size before
Hi printing, use double-sided copying, and reduce colour printing.

SEEESTHNARERX G ERMFENNRRBERZ LU D RASFIR D EITE -

3 The Group's annual report is printed with environment-friendly (wood-free) paper.
RARRER (BAER) MDRAERFR-

3 Employees should reuse stationeries, e.g. paper clips, folders, binders and envelopes.
BESERAXE  GIINMEKR XMk FEIRREE -

3 Use reusable utensils and refuse to use disposable cups, plates, forks and other utensils.
ERAPEEFHANSER  UHERBEHA—RUEMFTF - BF X FMHEMIBER

Through implementing the aforesaid measures, we believe that BB LEH  RABAEIUETRARE
we can manage the negative impact on the environment and use E LG HIREERNERZE  UAkSX
resources effectively and efficiently to the greatest extent. We wfERE R -RMATSHETEESR LT
also continue to improve our environmental performance in our EFZIREER > W OIRXSHMAEES LD
production lines by the installation of more environmental friendly — IRIBE&ERL o

machines.
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EMPLOYMENT

Our People and Safety

Guided by our corporate philosophy of being “people-orientated,
pragmatic and continuously learning”, the Group maintains a
highly-efficient workforce with caring interpersonal relationships.
Provision of safe and pleasant working environment to our staff
and attracting talents are integral in supporting our sustainable
growth. As a responsible manufacturer, we actively manage our
supply chain to ensure that our suppliers adhere to the Group’s
sustainable business practices and make every effort to safeguard
product quality. Apart from minimizing environmental impacts,
seeking ways to develop a caring society is also one of our
commitments. We are honoured to be awarded the 15 Years
Plus Caring Company Logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service's Caring Company Scheme, in recognition of our having
been a caring company for consecutive 15 years, and “Happy
Company” by Promoting Happiness Index Foundation.

years "
-~ ELETIS,
caringcompan

Awarded by The Fong Kong Courcl
FET SN

2

15 Years Plus Caring Company Logo
155 Plus '8 R E B RI1RES

To show our appreciation for employees’ commitment and
dedication, the Group continues to organize the “Best Staff
Award in 2021" to recognise outstanding performance and
achievements of our employees.

Celebrating Festive Seasons with Our Employees

While most of our activities were suspended considering the
health concern during pandemic, we continue to celebrate festive
seasons such as Mid-Autumn Festival, Mother’s Day and Father’s
Day with our employees. We presented gifts to employees as a
token of appreciation for their hard work over the year.

Fathers' Day
R HIER
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"Happy Company” Certificate
MELEEIRSE

B EEFHEE M DA ERRT > H
BEEHT " —FEEFREEHI S
Ut REN SHRB R

BEE—EEREE
BARMN A BOTH BB 8
7 BRMBEEAES —EERHD > mF
WE SIS R  RMERENET
Y LU T S — 2 R B 8 TR L
5o

Mothers’ Day
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Management Systems for the Employees of the Group

The Group has prepared human resources policies, which are
stipulated in employees’ handbooks, notices, and codes of
conduct in its business units. The said handbooks, notices and
codes cover the area of relevant rules and regulations in respect
of compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare.
Regulations and rules set out in those handbooks, notices, codes
and systems are in line with the applicable laws and regulations
in Hong Kong and the PRC, including the anti-discrimination
ordinances (e.g. Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of
the Laws of Hong Kong)), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
(Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Company Law of the PRC, Labour Law of the PRC, Labour
Contract Law of the PRC, etc. During the year under review,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with those
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

Compensation and Dismissal

We have formulated procedures in the employees’ handbooks to
deal with those employees who violate any regulations set out
by the Group. An oral warning or written warning notice will be
given or immediate dismissal will be imposed to those employees
according to the level of severity of each case. The Company
should consult Human Resources and Administration Department
prior to the proposed dismissal of any employee so as to ensure
the compliance with the legal requirements. We will pay sufficient
compensation to those employees subject to the aforesaid laws
and regulations.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The employees’ handbooks and employment contracts have
stated the working hours for employees. For employees who
require to work on irregular hours or public holidays are offered
overtime pay and additional compensation as defined in their
employees’ job description. The Group has complied with the
relevant employment laws and regulations in respect of working
hours and rest periods in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

RIE-HERELARS (@)

FEEESEEHE
AEFEENHEBEUZEBETFTM BEK
IRTAARABNEANERBRR LM Z F
M-BSMTANEREREFERERE 1B
BREM TEHE-KEFBREMNH @
REMBRERERA -ZERBEF M
BESTANESEEREMEERKRR
AINREBEEBRPEBERZRRER  B1F
[ 52 #2455 (40 (1% B I R R 61D (FAE
PIFEA80F)) ~ (BEIRAF ) (FEEHHS7
B) (REMERFRA) EBEPIH2825) -
(BEZERBEEMN) (FEEHF509
B) N (FERAEZE) (FESEE)  (TEFH
BERE)EMRHR -NAFELRE ~&EH
WHEBABRIANETRFERNERKE
e

faE R e
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Emolument Policies of the Directors and Employees

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company having regard to individual’s
performance, the Group’s performance and profitability,
remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing market
condition. The emolument policy of the Group’'s employees is
also based on their merit, qualifications and competence as
well as the prevailing market condition of the industry. On the
whole, remuneration packages, which include an element of
discretionary bonuses, are reviewed annually. In addition to salary
payments, other employee benefits including medical subsidies,
in-patient hospitalization scheme and a defined contribution
provident fund stipulated by State Regulators of the PRC,
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme stipulated by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and other retirement scheme or other similar defined
contribution provident fund have been provided as retirement
benefits to employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China. There
are also other holiday benefits provided to the employees in
Mainland China subject to the Labour Law of the PRC. The Group
also offers employees various leave entitlements, including annual
leave, marriage leave, maternity and paternity leave, bereavement
leave, examination leave, sick leave and injury leave.

Equal opportunity, Abuse and Harassment, and Recruitment
and Promotion

The Group fosters a diverse and inclusion working environment
and strictly prohibits any discrimination, harassment, victimisation
or vilification in terms of age, gender, marital status, pregnancy,
disability, family status or race, nationality or religion in the
working environment for protection of human rights. Hence,
procedures regarding recruitment, promotion and retention of
talents are implemented according to the equal opportunity
principles under the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Disability Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 487 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Race Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 602 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Family
Status Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 527 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), Law of the PRC on the Protection of Rights and
Interests of Women and Law of the PRC on Protection of Disabled
Persons.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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Moreover, we have adopted the Policy for Nomination of
a Director of the Company, setting out the procedures for
the selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors
containing the selection criteria, including but not limited to
considering the potential contributions a candidate can bring
to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

Personal Data Privacy

The Group respects personal data privacy and is committed to
implement and comply with the data protection principles and
all relevant provisions of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and codes of practice
and guidelines issued by the Office of the Privacy Commissioner
for Personal Data, Hong Kong, for the collection of personal
data from employees for the purpose of provision of welfare,
compensation, salary payments, performance assessment,
promotion etc.

Diversity and Gender Mainstreaming

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to attract and
retain talented people as board members, mainly increasing
diversity at the Board level, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service, as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s
objectives and its sustainable development. A summary regarding
the board diversity policy and measurable objectives can refer
to the heading of “The Board” of the section “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 53 to 56 of the 2021 annual
report of the Company.

RIE-HERELARS (@)
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Total Workforce and Employee Turnover Rate by Gender, MR S EEEE - FRAERN KR T EMEH
Employment Type, Age Group and Work Location EELHMESRKLEE

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and #HE_ T ST FF+_F=+—
work location of Hong Kong Headquarters, Injection Moulding H IEERE > EB4EE0 ~ T B F 75 R 98 1%
Machine Business and Extrusion Machine Business for the years FERMER)BEHEE - FEH AR K TIEHM

ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 are as follows: HEOHNEEAHUWT
Number of Employees {E& A# 2021 2020
Total number of employees 18 242 699 516
By gender #M4 5) &| 9
Male & 596 431
Female % 103 85
By employment type #Z{E{E5E1 8D
Full time &8 698 515
Part-time 3% B 1 1
By age group &R E] D
30 or below =+ U T 119 75
31t0 50 =+—®ERTHE 447 339
Over 50 A+ £ 133 102
By work location ¥ T {E# E5%] 5
Hong Kong &4 28 31
Mainland China 51 & P33 671 485

(1) The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover (1) —E_ZEFERB -HZTREARESHR

Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of total SHEDRAER M ER AL X
workforce by gender, employment type, age group and work NZZZZFEM RBERE FR
location for 2020 in the above table did not include that AR R TEM BN E S B E BRI R
business. BIEZER-
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The number and rate of employee turnover by gender,
employment type, age group and work location of Hong Kong
Headquarters, Injection Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion
Machine Business for the years ended 31 December 2021 and

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

2020 are as follows:

Number of Employee Turnover (%) EEH%&AE (B2 L)

Total employee turnover &£ Sk 428 %1
By gender #1458 5

Male 5
Female &

By employment type % B {@EE &5

Full time 2B
Part-time 3}

By age group ¥ & 487 2 5

30 or below =+ LT
31t0 50 =+—®ERA T
Over 50 A+ E

By work location ¥%& T {F3th 24 &] 53

(M

Hong Kong &%
Mainland China 57 F9 it

The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover
Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of
the number and rate of employee turnover by gender,
employment type, age group and work location for 2020 in

the above table did not include that business.

RIE-HERELARS (@)

HE-S-—FR-SCSETSASH—
B UL R B AR E U B TS R i
E£BRIER BHEL ERENRIER
25315 00 R RN BRAKENT ;

2021 2020
85 (12.16%) 76 (14.73%)

76 (12.75%)
9 (8.74%)

63 (14.62%)
13 (15.29%)

85 (12.18%) 75 (14.56%)
0 (0%) 1(100%)

45 (37.82%)
33 (7.38%)
7 (5.26%)

23 (30.67%)
42 (12.39%)
11 (10.78%)

3 (10.71%)
82 (12.22%)

8 (25.81%)
68 (14.02%)

(1) T FRE - HIRELRSTHRK
SHRETEREEHEES Rt L&
W _ZFRMER - ERERE - FiK
BRI TR ELE DBV E B MR A B K
MARRNBIEL T EIEZER -
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

Workplace health and safety is priority issue and we are
committed to maintain a safe, healthy and productive workplace
for its employees. We provide orientation training and ongoing
safety trainings to our employees, in particular to those who
worked at workshops and production lines of the plants to raise
employees’ awareness of work safety and help mitigate the risk

of accidents.

Both Injection Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion Machine
Business have formulated various production safety regulations,
which provide clear guidelines on handling personal injuries and
operating equipment accidents in case of occurrence, handling
dangerous chemicals and operating machines in accordance
with the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter
509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Law of the PRC on Prevention
and Treatment of Occupational Diseases ({7 BB ZERBHAED),
and Production Safety Laws of the PRC ((FREZEEEED). A
safety production committee made up of safety officers has been
put in charge of monitoring and managing safety initiatives and
preventing workplace accidents to monitor and reduce the risk of
occupational diseases.

The Group continues to focus on providing production safety
training for employees to raise employees’ awareness of
occupational safety and provide them physical body check
annually. They have to take and/or wear full set occupational
protective equipment provided by the Group when they are
handling dangerous chemicals or operating machines to protect
their health and safety. They should check if the operating
machines or equipment are in order and safe before use. All the
operating machines and equipment have been inspected regularly

to ensure safety.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group has regulated that all new employees in Mainland
China must take production safety trainings before taking up
their duties. Employees who have special job duties, such as
electricians, cranes, welders, forklift operators etc., must follow
the operation safety rules. We also provide trainings to Hong
Kong and the PRC employees, aiming to deliver a message of the
importance of occupational health and safety in offices. Apart
from providing intensive trainings to employees, we have also
arranged complimentary annual body check for all employees at
manufacturing sites to ensure their health and well-being.

Our employees’ safety and health remain our first priority. We
have established and updated from time to time a number
of preventive measures to ensure health and wellness of our
employees, such as implementing work from home arrangement
occasionally, enhancing cleaning and disinfection of premises,
providing hand sanitisers, measuring body temperature for all
employees and visitors at the workplace, minimizing business
travel and attending virtual meetings instead of face-to-face
meetings as far as practicable since the outbreak of COVID-19.

Number and Rate of Work-related Fatalities and Lost Days
due to Work Injury

Pursuant to Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Company should have a policy
of insurance to cover its legal liabilities for work-related injuries
in Hong Kong under both the Ordinance and common law. All
employees working at the PRC are protected from work injury
and work-related disease under China’s social security system.
If an employee has suffered from work-related injury, fatalities
or disease in his/her course of employment, we must report in
writing to the Labour Department of Hong Kong or Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC within
the period stipulated by the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Regulation
on Work-Related Injury Insurances (( TSR 1&4)) of the PRC
and The State Council of the PRC.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -#ERERRS (@

2021 2020 2019
Number (rate) of work-related fatalities - (0%) - (0%) - (0%)
ETEEMNERRINRE (EX)
Number of employee’s occupational injury incidents 9 9 3
BEIGEEHRH
Number of working days lost due to employee’s 275 260.5 275

occupational injury incidents
BERIGELIIEBE#

(1) The reporting scope of 2019 and 2020 ESG reports did not (1) —ZE—HNER_E_ZFEBEE - HEK

cover Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the number BRI E AR & HE N AR S
and rate of work-related fatalities and lost days due to work BORALERN_Z2—NERZIEZZE
injury for 2019 and 2020 in the above table did not include FHETEEANNGREIIRBERBELAT
that business. EEHBMBIR T N EiEZER -

(2) Reportable injuries refer to work-related accidents of (2) BFHREMITEEIEERER T IEHERE

employees resulting in incapacity for a period exceeding 3 Sho B (REMERA ) (BB EH5H282
days in Hong Kong under the Employees’ Compensation B) EREET BB =R RZPE(T
Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the EIREIEBYPFRERI RS -

days as defined under the Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurances in the PRC.

Compensation for Work Injuries TISEE{E

The Group complies with the laws, rules and regulations in ZAEBEBSTEBKRDEAME T 5 ERK
relation to compensation for work injuries or occupational EREBRMNEE EARMKG SE(EER
diseases in Hong Kong and the PRC, which include the (BI&fHI) (FHEEHIFE282F) « (THHBEE
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282 of the Laws )~ (THEREEH)  (PRAT D REE) K
of Hong Kong), Compensation Standard for Work Injury KT8 (ERE TEREELN)HDEZ TERFE
BE{EAZ 2 ), Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances (T B T{EFERIRERFHNEE S THE-
SR &M )), Social Insurance Law of the PRC and Regulation

on Work-Related Injury Insurance in Guangdong Province ({/&&

E ITEREEAF)) to pay compensation to employee who has

suffered from work-related injuries or work-related diseases.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Development and Training

The Group provides all Directors and employees of the Company
with continuous development training programmes/courses
which are designed to enhance their technical skills in production
and management, and professional skills and knowledge. Thus,
the Group has adopted training course management policies
which set out training structures to provide internal and external
training programmes/courses to different levels of employees of
the Group, such as at managerial grade or above, general staff
and frontline production workers. These training programmes/
courses offered to employees include orientation training, on-
the-job training, safety education, on-site training, simulative
practice, vocational training.

The Percentage of Employees Trained and Average Training
Hours Completed per Employee by Gender and Employee
Category

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the percentage of employees
trained by gender and employee category of Hong Kong
Headquarters, Injection Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion
Machine Business are as follows:

Percentage of Employees Trained &S H|{EEF 2Lt
Percentage of employees trained 2 EIIBE B DL
Percentage of employees who received trainings by gender
BURE N EZEIEER DL

Male &

Female %
Percentage of employees who received trainings by employee category
REESENENEZEIEET DL

Senior level B4R A&

Middle level AR A B

General staff —fRE K EE

(1) The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover
Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of
percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category for 2020 in the above table did not include that
business.

RIE-HERELARS (@)

SRR

AR S0 B R R B IR A R
58/ SRR LUR A P A AR B R 5 B
BAAE ) » LR B BRI A - B » 2
EIRE T U RRE RS AEEETH
RAMEER SEEEERU L —REE
AT A BRI P S RN B2 I 318,
B HEEYIH G REOEAREY
ARSI R2UE RHE - HEEE
BAENIS o

BN RESSENSONZIEBETDLER
BLEERMRIIN TR

TR FRIETEFTTA=+T—H
Ik BEARAREB EBREFRE LR ERE
MR REESEANEINZIRET DLW
T

2021 2020
96.42% 92.64%
96.14% 91.88%
98.06% 96.47%
51.85% 88.89%
54.93% 79.31%

103.33% 94.55%

(1) ZEZEFRE - HERELRRSENE
SHETEREEHMES BRIt L&
W _ZTFERENRESEREIDH
EREIEERSLENBBEL A EEZ
EFe
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE-HEREARS (B

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the average training hours
completed per employee by gender and employee category of
Hong Kong Headquarters, Injection Moulding Machine Business
and Extrusion Machine Business are as follows:

R —FERZFZFFFTA=+—H
b BB BT R IR T
R IEEER B DN SR RETMZIN
FHEHWT

Training Hours Completed by Employees (hours) {& £ 525 = 2l B 81 (/)\B5) 2021 2020

Total training hours completed by employees
BB TR IE I B2
Average hours of training per employee

BHREREFIHEIIRH

Average hours of training per employee by gender

#2585 E S TR H
Male 5
Female &

Average hours of training per employee by employee category

ZREHNE D EE 195 IR
Senior level S A&
Middle level &R A B
General staff —fR B EE

(1) The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover
Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of average
training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category for 2020 in the above table did not

include that business.
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8,542.80 10,664.50
12.22 20.67
11.86 22.65
14.31 10.64

7.09 5.86
19.67 10.30
11.57 22.62
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

LABOUR STANDARDS

We have formulated a comprehensive set of human resources
policies, including but not limited to stipulating rules on
recruitment, and also formulated a strict recruitment policy to

prevent child and forced labour.

Management Systems for Recruitment

We ensure that applicants and employees are treated equally in
respect of recruitment, assignment, development, evaluation and
reward. The Group has taken all practical measures to ensure
that applicant is lawfully employable subject to the Provisions on
the Prohibition of Child Labour ((ZIEFEHEEZETIRE)) of the
PRC and relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the
PRC and request new employee truthfully fill in their personal
information in the personal data form, and provide identification
documents and/or working visa (if any) to Human Resources and
Administration Department in a fair and equitable manner and
also under legitimate procedures. The procedures include but
not limited to verification of identity to prevent the Group from
recruiting employees under the age of 16 and forced labour.

Prevention of Child Labour and Forced Labour

In accordance with the Provisions on the Prohibition of Child
Labour ((ZIEFERAZETHEED) of the PRC and the Law of the
PRC on the Protection of Minors, the Group prohibits to recruit
employees under the age of 16 and forced labour. During the
year of 2021, the Group was not aware of any breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations in relation to
child labour and forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE-HEREARS (B

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group maintains good and long-term business relationship
with suppliers and conveys our concern on environmental issues
to them to guarantee better procurement and suit our production
requirement, as well as implementing similar practices. We are
committed to deliver fine quality injection moulding machines
and extrusion machines and rubber injection machines to our
customers. Both Injection Moulding Machine Business and
Extrusion Machine Business have established strictly procedures in
procurement management system, which manage the verification
of suppliers and purchased products. For the selection of new
suppliers, an evaluation procedure is in place in both Injection
Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion Machine Business
to ensure the suppliers and supplies quality fit our production
requirement. We rate supplier’s qualification based on a number
of factors, including price, quality, convenience in transportation,
reputation, financial condition, philosophy of environmental
protection and social responsibility etc. to select suppliers.
Besides, we mainly procure locally or in nearby places rather
than overseas so as to reduce carbon emissions from transport or

shipping.

Moreover, we constantly evaluate the performance of the
existing suppliers based on quality, on-time delivery, price, service
etc. All approved suppliers are incorporated into our qualified
supplier list. If any unsatisfactory practices are identified, we
will communicate with those suppliers and encourage them to
improve their practices. Unqualified suppliers will be excluded
from our qualified supplier list to ensure the quality of products
and services provided by the suppliers up to our requirements and
standards.

We aim to choose suitable suppliers with high quality raw
materials and good services. A series of procedures on supplier
management of the Injection Moulding Machine Business and
Extrusion Machine Business have been implemented on their
purchasing department to strictly monitor the quality of raw
materials, such as castings and steel, and review the rating of
those suppliers regularly.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region

The number of suppliers by geographical region for Hong Kong
Headquarters, Injection Moulding Machine Business and Extrusion
Machine Business for the years of 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Number of Suppliers ffEFE 2B
Hong Kong &%

Mainland China &7 E Ay ith

Total 485t

(1) The reporting scope of 2020 ESG report did not cover
Extrusion Machine Business. Therefore, the data of number
of suppliers by Geographical Region for 2020 in the above
table did not include that business.

PRODUCT QUALITY AND SAFETY

The Group pays utmost importance to the provision of products
with good quality and high safety standard to its customers,
aiming to maintain our “Welltec” and “Dekuma” brands
recognition in injection moulding machines and extrusion
machines and rubber injection machines industries. We monitor
the quality of different specifications of injection moulding
machines constantly to ensure that customers are pleased with
our products and obtain their long-term support and trust
and thus raise the profitability of the Group. To maintain the
customers’ confidence in our product quality, the Group provides

after-sale services to its customers.

D Series All-electric Injection Moulding Machine

D RIIEEHTEH

RIE-HERELARS (@)
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BEEWT

2021 2020
50 41
492 390
542 431
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RIE-HEREARS (B

In 2019, a certificate was issued to Dekuma by Vouching
Technical Inspection Ltd., a commercial services company
specializing in third-party certification business, providing quality
management systems certification to domestic and international
clients, which will be valid until 28 November 2022. In 2021,
two certificates were issued to Donghua Machinery and Jiangsu
Machinery by Vouching Technical Inspection Ltd. and Beijing
ZhongDaHuaYuan Certification Center (a third-party certification
body with an independent legal status which is authorized by
Certification and Accreditation Administration of the PRC (CNCA)
and accredited by China National Accreditation Service for
Conformity Assessment (CNAS) and ANSI National Accreditation
Board (ANAB)), which will be valid until 16 December 2024 and
14 July 2024 respectively. These certificates are intended to build
up or enforce the confidence of customers towards product
quality control, in particular for the design, development and
production of injection moulding machines, extrusion machines
and rubber injection machines and hydraulic presses.

For Injection Moulding Machine Business, it has customers’
complaint procedures and customer complaint form for customers
to make complaints. When customer complaints are received,
customer service department will first communicate with our
customer and arrange technical personnel to visit customer’s site
for inspection. Then, they will fine tune the products to suit the
requirements of customers (if necessary). Any corrective actions
will then be recorded and continued to follow up. All products
must be carefully tested and inspected by relevant departments
before delivery to customers. Unqualified or detective products
will be repaired or scrapped, and shall not be shipped to
customers, and relevant departments will make analysis and take
corrective actions. In addition, customers’ satisfaction surveys
are conducted every year to collect comments from customers
about our quality of products, efficiency on delivery and after-sale
service.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

For Extrusion Machine Business, it has pre-product quality
control procedures and a compliant channel for customer to
make compliant. All products must be inspected and approved
by the relevant departments before shipment to customers.
If a complaint about quality of product is received, relevant
department will conduct an investigation. Follow up actions and
feedback on the status will be reported to the customer to ensure
that the complaints are effectively handled.

In addition, in order to provide customers with perfect product
after-sales service, both Injection Moulding Machine Business and
Extrusion Machine Business are provided with after-sales service
including repair, replacement and return within the warranty
period of the machine.

We recognise the importance of intellectual property rights
protection. Intellectual properties are our Company's critical
assets, so we put effort to safeguard their rights and interests.
We sign confidentiality agreements with our customers and
adhere to our stringent policies to protect customers’ information
from unauthorized access, usage and leakage and maintain their
data properly. When we develop a new product or technology,
we will register a patent from the local or relevant intellectual
property administration to protect our rights and interests.
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RIE-HEREARS (B

There was no issue regarding material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have any significant impact on
the Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters during the year.

There are no products of the Group sold or shipped subject to
recalls for safety and health reasons for the year 2021.

Number of Products and Service Related Complaints
Received and How to Deal With

The complaint rate of Injection Moulding Machine Business and
Extrusion Machine Business is as follows:

FEBRREAFELREAERERZE E
S RBARAMERSEAAETHBE AR L
RMHETERRBUEAREENSEFo

FEER T -FRENZ2HEERIER

MmALRWNEEREEEER -

BEMMRBERZRFHREREES Z

TBREBRIBHBEB ZRFRNT

Injection Moulding Machine Business T ER
Unit Efi 2021 2020
Total number of products related complaints received No. of complaints/ 0 0
per million sales million sales
SEBHEENEEANEmNRHFEHE SN
SRR =S
Extrusion Machine Business B ER
Unit E1i 2021
Total number of products related complaints received No. of complaints/ 0.01
per million sales million sales
SEBHEENZEERANERNRHFEHE SNV
SE&ET
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

Ethics and Integrity

We are committed to maintaining high ethical standards and
integrity in our business and operations. The Group strictly
regulates the behaviour of employees, and requires all employees
to obey national and local laws and regulations on preventing
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including but
not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Anti-money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong, the anti-corruption laws of the
PRC, the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC and Interim
Provisions on Prohibiting Commercial Bribery ((RAR 22 1 5 2 B E&
TREETRED).

The Group did not provide anti-corruption training to Directors
and employees this year, but we have formulated guideline and
policies for the Directors, management and employees of the
Group, including the follows:

e  Conflicts of interest

e  Bribery, gifts and entertainment

e Whistleblowing to report improper conduct

e Discrimination, harassment and inappropriate conduct
e Inside information

e Equal opportunities

e  Privacy and information protection
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RIE-HEREARS (B

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group has zero tolerance for corruption or bribery in
our operations. We have put in place preventative measures
on whistleblowing policy among the Company and all our
subsidiaries. This policy provides procedures to whistle blowers
who have concerns about any form of suspect misconduct or
malpractice identified across our operations. Various reporting
channels are provided to employees who are allowed to submit
information anonymously. Following a report, the investigation
process will start and the Company will prepare an investigation
report and then submit to the audit committee of the Company
upon completion of the investigation. The audit committee
of the Company is responsible for monitoring and reviewing
the operation of the whistleblowing policy and providing
any recommendations attributable from the investigation of
complaints.

During the year, the Group complied with relevant laws and
regulations with significant impact relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, and was not informed of any
litigation of corruption involving the Group or its employees, or
the involvement in or occurrence of any violations related to anti-
corruption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group actively promotes and engages in community
activities, aiming to contribute to a cohesive community. Our staff
volunteer team has participated in charitable events regularly and
gathered donations and supplies for people in need.

A good team spirit is essential. It makes employees feel they have
a real role to play and creates a feeling of unity and promote
their pursuit of excellence. The Group organized some activities
outside work to promote team spirit and enhance cohesion.
Jiangsu Machinery held a rope pull game in January 2021. The
winner of the game would get the high cash prize, so it attracted
many employees to participate actively. In addition, Hong Kong
Headquarters participated in an online Zentangle Drawing co-
organized by Kowloon City District Office under Home Affairs
Department and the Lok Sin Tong Benevolent Society, Kowloon,
on 20 March 2021 and held an online seminar on mindfulness-
based stress reduction on 30 June 2021 to alleviate employees’
stress at work.

We continued to join “Konica Minolta Green Concert — 2021
Starcatcher Championship” with an aim to promote team spirit
and made monetary donations to Children’s Thalassaemia
Foundation through this activity. Further, we also made monetary
donations to Fu Hong Society.

Konica Minolta Green Concert —
2021 Starcatcher Championship
MERERERBTHLE -
2021 ERE
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H2NMENERRBEEBERERNELEER
BMNREEES UERRZTZ—FXA
= +EST—EFRINF L E L
FEEENIIEES-

BRPEES M FRREEGBETHEET —
202V E RS STEMBEKGE LEBE
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Rope Pull Game held by Jiangsu Machinery
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE-HEREARS (B

Caring for the Environment

Promoting internal environment awareness is important to
achieve an overall reduction of our carbon footprint. We
participated the Energy Saving Charter 2021 co-organized by the
EPD and EMSD. We share energy saving tips with our employees
by emails to encourage behavioural change. To reduce food waste
produced during festive periods, we participated in the food
waste recycling program to promote sharing and waste reduction
culture.

BEIRIR
ReABREEHENER2EADRMN
BENNEREMEZ - RMASM T HIRMRF
ENKBZESWBENT2021 - R MEE
BEFBHEEEDZMERT WA thfIck
BBIE 2RO E B BRI E £ BB ER
EA2M7T T 2021/H5 X LU0 BF &R 0] W 5t
B REH =R -

G, o

EPRE#YRE2021

- Energy Saving Charter
¥ REREIEEE - R
0 NIRRT (EHN2021)
BRIARE

(i ol EROAEARE - REAT SRR ERE I
@ MR ENIEIARE BN TRAREEEAS  SANNALE

R (TR -RREEE) R
(IEAL/BE/ AEAANAL L ERREAN

T wide I aving energy
we support the Government's Energy Saving Charter 2021

We pledge to
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raerve foorm bure 3001 oo b J3EE aned

FCheng e (LA 1 glucheniv sty b idopt T sowe efamny Living grmton

togeher

Energy Saving Charter 2021

EIRE#YE2021

We actively promote environmental awareness among our
employees through various communication channels, as well as
encouraging them to participate in green activities.

We participated in the Lai See Recycling
Campaign organized by Greeners
Action during the Chinese New Year
holidays. A box was placed at office
to collect used Lai See. Through this
campaign, we were able to minimize
our impact on the environment, as well
as raise our employees’ awareness of

HPEBEBEBEEERENEEHREIIRR
B TRBE T 28IRFEEH -

HPERBEFFREBEEZSMT
HGBITHREPNANEHEINE
BRI HRAEMAERE—E
EW B ERBIFEH - BEBE
REE) > HAFIESR D HIRIBHIR
B UiRSEEHAVEVERM
IR

the importance of waste reduction. Lai See Recycling Campaign

MERHEIKRERKRITE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

We continued our support to WWF Earth Hour by switching off
all lighting in our office for one hour on 27 March 2021.

We also donated 6 LCD screens, 5 desktop computers and 6
servers to Caritas Computer Workshop while reducing computer
and electronic waste to landfills, we can also transfer reusable
computers to people in need.

Caring for the Elderly

Apart from implementing green initiatives in office, the Company
has also contributed to the communities with love and care by
engaging in charitable activities.

We also took part in various volunteer activities, such as elderly
home visits organized by Home of Loving Care for the Elderly
organized by Hong Kong Sheng Kung Hui (HKSKH) and gift
donations.

RIE-HERELARS (@)

HMEETFHARGARAEES S MBk—/)
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1
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -#ERERRS (@

ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX TABLE (IRIBE-HEREARBREIEIDATE
EIE.S

General
Disclosures and

KPIs
—EHER Description
A SR I HE R

Subject Area A - Environmental

FTEHBA-RIE
General Disclosure Information on: 81-83
—RIE (a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BRBERERAERBHN  MKRIHMNEE S - EERBEREEYNELESN !

(@ BER; &

(b)y EFHBETABBAXENERZEZERRG

B &k o
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 84-86
B A RERA BE) TR ER Fe 4B RAHE IR ©
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) 85-86
RAREMIEEAL .2 and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

BH# (B8E) REREE (BE2) BEREBHKE UUEAE) k QER) ZE (U

BEBBEM BERMH) ©
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per ~ 88-89
R AEMIERAT1.3 unit of production volume, per facility).

FREEEEREEYMAE UWstE) Rk (ER) BE WINUSESE  §ERMET

&) o
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity 89-90
RAREMIERA1.4 (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

FTEEBESEEMHEE QUESE) Rk ER) BE WUSESE A SERE

8) o
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 87
BA A RIEIRA1S HAPAET L MBIRE B R R A ETE LB RN T B -
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a 90
RAREIEEAL6 description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

it RIER EREEEREYMN G 5 RBEMATET L ARE B R R A ERBLEB R

PREREY 2 BR
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— B ER
FAREMIEE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HHERERRS (8

Description

B

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

EBEA2 . BRfER
General Disclosure

—RINE

KPI A2.1
B S AR RIS 1RA2.1

KPI A2.2
SR AR IS 1RA2 .2

KPI A2.3
BRI IE1RA2.3
KPI A2.4

RS IERNIERA2.4

KPI A2.5
RS ARIS1RA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRERER (BFEFER - KR EAMRME) FEBER -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
RERADNERER SEEERME R0 EEE UTETRERSE) REE
INBESEE U BERXREE) °

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BEKERTE ONSESEL SERMEE) o

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HEt P ET I MY BE TR 8 FA At B AR Fe A i B 5 LE B AR AT ERER A 2 8% o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

SR EGE A AOR LRI B ERB R UK IMA KN & B IR kA ERELEEE
FTERER A 247 B% o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

SR mATABEMENEE (UEE) Rk WER) SEEEUEE-

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BEA3: RERXAER

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI A3.1
RAREIEIEA3.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and natural
resources.

MEETAHRRERRAEREMERZENER

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural

resources and the actions taken to manage them.
WM EF EHHRR R RAE RN EAZERERNEESALENTH

TR —FFR .

91, 94-95

91-92

92-93

91

87

93-94

94-95

94-95
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N ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
~— RE-HEREARS (@

General
Disclosures and

KPIs
— B ER Description
RASR B SIEAE BiL

Aspect A4: Climate Change
[EHEA4: RIZEME

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which 82

—RIRE have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
HAREHERRAIEEHBETAELEZENEARBREAEENBE

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those 82

AR AW IRAL1 which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

M BERAIEEHETAEEX ENEARGERER  REHTH-

Subject Area B - Social

TEHEB -1 E
Employment and Labour Practices
EBREREIER
Aspect B1: Employment
BEB1 : B
General Disclosure Information on: 96-99
—RINE (@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

BRI R R BEREN TR RA TERE 2 ob - RIERUREAM

Rk EAp

(@ BUER; &

(b) BTFHETABEAXZZNMEBERERRO

K&k o
KPI'B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age 100
RSB WIE1ER1 .1 group and geographical region.

IR BERE EBERR  FREANRMES HHNESEH-
KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 101
RASRAEXIETRB1.2 BRI FE AR R R B S EERALEE -

120 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



General
Disclosures and
KPlIs

— B ER
FAREMIEE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HHERERRS (8

Description

B

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

JEEB2 : BEHERS

General Disclosure

—RINE

KPI B2.1
R A NIE1ER2.1

KPI B2.2
RS IE1RB2.2
KPI B2.3

MR ANI51RB2.3

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

ERRMZETHRERFERESRMEMEEEM -

(@ BUER; &
(b) EFTHETABBAFZENMBBMEARRRG
BE R o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.

BE=ZF (BEERFE) SFRITHMABRLEX.

Lost days due to work injury.

AITGERITFEHR-

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

AP RAH B X RE R 228 U ITRERG %

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[EEB3 : &R RIE

General Disclosure

—RRIRER

KPI B3.1
SR AR5 1RB3.1

KPI B3.2
R A IE1ER3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work.

Description of training activities.

BRI EE BT TEH B YA 3 K 5% As BIBUR © i 5 AIlE & o

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).

ZERREELER MMEREEBE HREEE) B/NZIREB DL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.

RIER R EELENE D SRESTHR I FIIRR -

TR —FFR .

102-103

103-104

104

102-104

105

105

106
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= ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
~— RE-HERERRS (@

General
Disclosures and

KPIs
— B ER Description
RASR B SIEAE BiL

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[BEBA4 : %5 T8

General Disclosure Information on:
—RIRE (@) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
BRI LEE T M55 T :
(@) BR; &
(b) BFHETABBEAXEZNHEREERRG
&k o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced
A R AR A HEARBA. labour.
AR ST B ERIE F F M LB R & T Rsamlss T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
RASEAE XI5 1RB4.2 it 7 88 IR E AR 1B B JH PR A A 1B SR P EREN R 2 B o

Operating Practices

EEEG

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[ETEBS : fitFEHEEIE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

— R E EEMBEENRIERTEEEBRBER -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

R SR A8 25 4EB5. 1 Rt EE D HHREREE o

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the

R 4B WIS 1ZB5.2 practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.
Hal A R EE AR EEAVIES) > mENTHRREANHRERMME  UWREARITRER
Fike

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the

RE R A WIS1EB5.3 supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.
A B R R RS EIRANIRIE R ERBNIBAE > URBRAATRERR A

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and

R R AW IE1EB5 .4 services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

it ERREER R LS BIRRERKRBIED LURBMAITRER S %
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HHERERRS (8

\\

General
Disclosures and

KPlIs
—MRIRE R Description
RA AR IR B

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
JEMB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: 109-112
—MRIRE (@) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
BRIFMEHERNBRBNERRZE - BE EERMBEEEUARMBRAEN

(@) BR; &
(b) BEFHETABEAZENHEREERRM
BE R o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health 112
R R 4B A 15 12B6. 1 reasons.
EENEEXERBEHTRZL EEREAMBERNMNE D
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt 110-112
A 4R A 15 1RB6.2 with.
FERERA N B KR ARTS Y I SR 8 B A R FE ¥ 75 7% o
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property 111
R AN IE1EB6.3 rights.
H 3t B A 8 T R [ RN o EE 1 R RA R 1B o
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 109-111
RSB AE X3E12B6.4 I E ST BREREMREWRRER -
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are 111
) 3 48 35 1EB6.5 implemented and monitored.

HAUHBEEERRERAREER LRI RERS A
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RIE-HHEKRER

General
Disclosures and
KPIs

— B ER
FAREMIEE

wmE (@

Description

B

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EmEB7 . R&ES
General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI B7.1
RS AE 25 1RBT 1

KPI B7.2
RS AR AR 15 1RB7 .2

KPI B7.3
MR AEANI51RB7 .3

Community

HE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BRI LEHRRE  BER s IEF RO R ¢

(@ BUER; &
(b) BETHETABEAFZENMBEMEERRG
RIEH -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RERAARBTAREEBERLE Y EBENE SHRARGNEE RFRER
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

A H B IE M R BRI ET » U T RER G %

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

HmEERE TiRHENREFE -

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[BEBS : #tEIRE
General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI BS.1
RN I51EBRS. 1

KPI B8.2
A S AR F51RB8. 2

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

AU E2ERTBEEMEMRFTENRFEER EHETZBHLEF ZMI
*o

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport).

FIEMEE (WHE BREFE - SIHER - ER XL BAH) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIHBMBAER B °

REEHEERRAR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

9th Floor, Tung Ning Building
249-253 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 133 to 284, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

B IZBE RS

HAEHMEEBRIBRE
(R &EHBZMALLZ FRAE])

ER

AIZHED (U TREE P EFSHIIEN
£133FE284B KEIHMEEARAT (UT
BBIERE)) RENBAR A THBEIE
EB) RSV HRE WY HRREEN
2 —F+ZRB=+—HBMNGREHBRR
RAFEZHLEFENGEREaR HREE
ER@ZE GEEnEFRREEREMNE
ToOURGEVHRRWNE (BEEXTESS
BURIEE) o

KRR ZEROUHBRREBES BT
FEAE ((EEBGHMAE)) BHENCEE
PR EEDN) ((FBMBREEL)) B
EMAFTHKRMEERNR _Z_—F+_1
=+ HNGREMBRAREBEZEHIEFE
BEEENGAVBREREGERERE
W EEREAE(RBER) AR -

ERER
RPACREEBIMAERHBN(EERE
stER]) ((BBBSHER))) BETEZ R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENRE ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

FRBETER
HRBSFEZESRBRMOFEIE - DR
HEAMGEMBREANEARSEEZNSE
R-zERRRRERMBIFBEGEMBER
KRHATRRETREN UREMAFTE
HZEFREHEBHNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Key Audit Matters
MRESNEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BANEBZNARERREZER

Impairment of goodwill
Refer to note 18 to the Group consolidated financial
statements.

F2HEERGRGMBRRMT18

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has goodwill of
HK$53,483,000 relating to the acquisition of KFE Hong
Kong Co., Limited in 2013 which is engaged in trading
of printed circuit boards.

RIEB_—F+_-_A=+—H 8&EMRN_F—=
WEHRE _ERNKEBBRAR (HRENRIFBEIRE
7)) EEEETERA53,483,000/8 7T

As further disclosed in notes 2(6) and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements, determining whether
goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units (“CGU") to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU by considering the
budgeted sales and gross margin which are based on
past performance and management’s expectations for
the future change in the market and to determine a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate its present
value. Key assumptions for the value in use calculation
are future cash flow forecast, growth rate and discount
rate, where small changes of them can result in a
significant change in the value in use.
MEETHRRWT206)R18E—F i BEBER
TREFEHESPEFENREELBU ((ReEELS
i) EREENGSMEH FEFREER  8£E
BERENBARBLEEEHMIH ARSI TEAR
FEANFEEHEEREN MGt EHERETELE
MELHNARRERLEESBENMRXUGERE
SAEFHABENTIERSARKREEREA - BEXRK
IR, EZFEARR/NEFH oTHEHRABEERNE
Ko

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e« AREWMEEERAT

& RE
Our procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment included:

RO EEE ZRENEZREFEE

Obtaining the cash flow forecast prepared by
management, reviewing and discussing with
management on the major assumptions adopted
in the cash flow forecast for each CGU and
checking arithmetic accuracy of the forecast
calculation.

NEEEBRENIRENTEN HEEEER X
NmAMRERBEAMSEREESBMURA
NFEBREK TREAEEANERTEESER

Comparing the growth rate, budgeted sales and
gross margin to historical results and reference to
the market information based on our knowledge
of the retail markets to determine their
reasonableness.

IR -TEEHE R EMKEBTEEFILR
TRBRMHAZTETENTER2ETRER
MEEhRRESEaE

Assessing the discount rate used by management
in the cash flow forecast by benchmarking
against the required rate of return adjusted for
industrial specific factors.
DATERERAZRAENABELREAELE  HE
EERRSRIEAPPIANAEREEL TG



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

BIZHBERE (@)

Key Audit Matters
REEEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BB RERREZEE

Impairment of goodwill (Continued)

Based on the management’s assessment, impairment
loss on goodwill of HK$20,487,000 was recognised in
the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2021.

REEEEBZIHG @E-_FT-_—F+B=+—H
IEFE > BB ZHE20,487,0008 T 4R & W R A FE
7 6

The impairment assessment involves significant
judgements made by management and therefore is
identified as a key audit matter.

BB ST e B IR B 1F AV B K3 B > (R It 42 8 7l 2% B8
BESTFER-

mERE (@

Reviewing the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management on the significant assumptions
including the growth rate and the discount
rate to evaluate the extent of impact of these
assumptions on the cash flow forecast.
FREEENEARR (BEERIKRERER)
WENBRED UFTEZSRREBELAE
AT ERE-

Evaluating the accuracy of historical cash flow
forecast prepared by the management by
comparing the historical cash flow forecast with
the actual performance; and
FREETReRETEAHAERRITETLESR
AEHEEEEBENELRSRER AN ERE
%R

Evaluating the sufficiency of the disclosure of
impairment assessment by management in the
consolidated financial statements.
MHEEETRSMBRERPABETEHZIEE
E
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|NDEPENDENT AUDlTOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Key Audit Matters
RRESHEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BANEBZNARERREZER

Valuation of inventories
Refer to note 23 to the Group consolidated financial
statements.

F2HEERGRGMBWMRMT23-

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has inventories
of approximately HK$542,429,000 which are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value (“NRV").
The Group carried out an inventory review at the end
of the reporting period and made necessary allowance
for obsolete and slow moving items so as to write off
or write-down inventories to their NRV after considering
the ageing analysis of inventories and the relevant
historical sales and usage reports.
RZEBE_—F+"RA=+—H> E£EENEFENAR
542,429,000/ 70 JHRp A B P 37 E (IA] 217 )%
B AREES R EEENREPRETTIFES
T WHRENFHNY R IR T HENEE  UER
ZREENRE DM REANELHENERBERRS
B REEMBEMREETEFFE

The Group has made a reversal of written-down
inventories of approximately HK$1,094,000 to their NRV
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
BE_Z_—F+-A=+—HLFE> EHEEHBEME
BMURTEE 491,094,000 T E H A £ IR B E ©

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter due to the use of significant judgment
and estimates in identifying obsolete and slow moving
inventories and determining the NRV to assess the
amount of allowance/write-down.

RRER T BERFE(E ST RBPIRENFHNES
B HA SRR ER TG EE MOR S 28 EILEM
RHEENMEE# SHRETEE

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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&

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
assessment on inventory provision included:

HPMEREZFERBNGEZREFEE

Inquiring and understanding from management
the inventory provision policy of the Group.

MEREEERNNRTREEENFERFBER

Assessing the reasonableness of the inventories
allowance/write-down made by the Group by
obtaining the aging analysis and slow-moving
inventory lists from management and discussing
with management on the basis of inventories
allowance/write-down.
MEBEENSEFRKDTKRIERFERE I
BIEEE N REERE MR ELE > T
BEEEFEENEFERE MRARST S
Performing testing on the inventory aging to
assess the accuracy of the basic data used to
determine the allowance/write-down and re-
performing the allowance/write-down calculation
to check arithmetic accuracy.
MEFEMNEFRETRSE  LISTH A X e E
SR E AR T ER TENERE
WOR L IZ B EE LR -

Understanding from management the rationale
for the specific adjustments and assessing the
assumptions made where there are specific
adjustments on the inventories allowance/write-
down.

MEERETRETHAENIER TEMEERE
/ MORLE 5 T 5B BE R T (E L A9 R a8 o

Reviewing subsequent sales on the inventory
samples selected to assess whether the
inventories were able to be sold at prices above
their carrying values.
BERCENNTEREAZBEHER T
ERGUEERHERAENEREH

T



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

BIZHBERE (@)

HNFROEME R
BEAREFAEHMEN HthENGESE
WA ER EFEEGREMBRERIAR
IZEEMIR S o

RMEGEEMBRENERTINREAME
e AT A HEMBENEREMTANE

I 4t A
Bk

BERGEEHMBERER RANSEAHAER
fhER - RitBREF  ZEEMENE TR
AV BERRNBFNESBE T PTER
BERBEXRERE NELUFEERERR
e BRBMEATHIMFE HRMISHE
tMEMNBERERRL  BAMARKRETZE
Bt hm HARBEERERS -

EERBERZEEMAESMBRR
ARENTE

EAREFRAERBEEB GG EM
WEBYHREZERR(ABFRADBRES
FBERE ULHEEMBRERFLUEEMR
FHRB REBERD/HERGEEMHTERE
PR B2 EBIES] UEGREMHBRENE
R IREFE AR ME B E R R -

MURGEEUBRERF EFEETEEEE
REEENEN TEBABR T RELERF
BEEERENER UAERAFELESRS
SRR BRFEFARREEREFHEIEFEL
e YR EREMBERNENS R

BERZECaEREEREMBREBE-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENRE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control;

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

BRBEMEF GEMBRRNEE

BRPNER BEHGRAVHREAEEZS T
FHERREGFHIARME R H E AR
BNREERFED THASERMAERNZH
B S - A B RBE AR (QABEA) 55405
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.

BIZHBERE (@)

*(Ziﬂ)lﬁfﬁﬁﬁg?rﬁéﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁ

s MEEFHAUFEBCERERNEG
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ARFEEMHBRERANEEAEIRE
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KERIBE

o MEREMBRE (BREEHKRE NE
BRI -RBRAD URGEEHBR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENRE ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Chow Chi Tong.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN
Certified Public Accountants (practising)

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
e m=R

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F _——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2021 2020
—E-—5F —ETEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
k=3 FAET FAET
Revenue WA 5 3,075,305 2,432,021
Cost of sales THE A 23(b) (2,530,814) (2,024,043)
Gross profit EF 544,491 407,978
Other income, gain and loss, net HMW A > W & E1E 558 6 6,646 15,829
Selling and distribution costs DEHE B (197,414) (151,200)
Administrative expenses THEHR (213,423) (222,678)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE 18 (20,487) -
Operating profit 4 B | 119,813 49,929
Investment income KEWA 7 6,255 4,578
Share of results of associates BN} 20 5,140 2,617
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—BBE QB ZEIE - (49)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWRB AR ZEE - (1,231)
Loss on deregistration of HiH—RNE AR 2 EE
a subsidiary (348) (106)
Finance costs MBER 8 (17,741) (20,315)
Profit before tax PRIR AT EF 9 113,119 35,423
Income tax expense FTERER 11 (28,914) (9,545)
Profit for the year FEEFH 84,205 25,878
Profit attributable to: FEQEER :
— Equity shareholders —RATIREFEA
of the Company 89,732 19,578
— Non-controlling interests — IR R (5,527) 6,300
84,205 25,878
Earnings per share — Basic SREMN-EX 72 10.41HK cents &l 2.27HK cents A1l

The notes on pages 143 to 284 are an integral part of these H143F284B B AGSHHTRET

consolidated financial statements.

—8kfne
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
\\7|_ E%EL&

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &Z —&F _—&F+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEHF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
Vok=3 FAET FAET
Profit for the year FEEFH 84,205 25,878
Other comprehensive income/ FEHNRRERZHEMEE
(expense) for the year, net of tax: W&, (2 H) : 13
ltems that have been reclassified BEMDBNHEBAIEN
or may be reclassified subsequently DfEZEIEZHZIER
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising from S /BN EFE T F R KT
translation of financial statements E42ZERZE%E
of foreign operations 37,306 74,494
Share of reserves of associates FE(L B N B 20 934 1,904
Reclassification adjustments: B iEAE
Release of translation reserve upon HE—BEE QAR RKFILER
disposal of an associate fEEE D = 49
Release of translation reserve upon HEWEABBIER #E
disposal of subsidiaries B = (1,621)
Release of translation reserve upon 3t —RIM B AT RILESR
deregistration of a subsidiary REEEE 348 106
38,588 74,932
Items that will not be reclassified AEZEWDEEB@mER !
to profit or loss:
Surplus on revaluation of properties B %)% E L2k
held for own use 16,787 11,049
55,375 85,981
Total comprehensive income FEZEWEEEE
for the year 139,580 111,859
Total comprehensive income L2 mU s AEEE .
attributable to:
— Equity shareholders of the —RATIREFEA
Company 139,892 96,957
— Non-controlling interests —JFiEER R (312) 14,902
Total comprehensive income FEZ@KRERE
for the year 139,580 111,859

The notes on pages 143 to 284 are an integral part of these fF143E284BZMEBAGSHBERER
consolidated financial statements. — 3B 15 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
rE M BEIRRR

At 31 December 2021 R —_E _—F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEH
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
k=3 F&ETT FAET

Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L EN =Y 15 610,196 595,173
Right-of-use assets BREEE 17 85,578 93,638
Goodwill [k 18 32,996 53,483
Intangible assets EmILEE 19 2,305 3,688
Interests in associates BrE AR = 20 41,524 38,510
Finance lease receivables FEWRERENIE 21 76,205 28,434
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE 22 28,722 34,470
877,526 847,396

Current Assets TRENE E

Inventories =78 23 542,429 450,208
Finance lease receivables fEW RAE A E =8 21 200,143 171,526
Trade and other receivables 8 5 K B fE W R IE 24 887,400 865,814
Other financial assets HMEmMEE 25 53,571 4,998
Current tax recoverable ZSHA ] U [B175 18 759 67
Cash and bank balances B& KIRTTH R 26 406,057 494,669
2,090,359 1,987,282
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
REMBRRE (8

At 31 December 2021 R _E _—F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
% —ETEHF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Htat FET FET
Current Liabilities mENBE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERIE 27 853,744 809,969
Contract liabilities =N ON=R| 27 77,064 107,687
Bank borrowings RITER 28 289,469 284,469
Lease liabilities HESE 29 15,283 15,020
Current tax payable KERFE(TFRIE 10,683 10,464
1,246,243 1,227,609
Net Current Assets FREBEE 844,116 759,673
Total Assets less Current MEERTREARE
Liabilities 1,721,642 1,607,069
Non-current Liabilities ERIMEE
Bank borrowings RITER 28 11,698 37,875
Lease liabilities HESE 29 36,186 40,819
Deferred tax liabilities RIS (A 22 33,234 28,392
81,118 107,086
Net Assets FEE 1,640,524 1,499,983
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
mEaMBERRE (@

At 31 December 2021 R —_E _—F+_H=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEHF
Note HK$’000 HK$000
byaF F&ETT FAET
Equity i
Capital and reserves attributable to ZA&A T REIFAE AFEN
equity shareholders BARKfHE
of the Company:
Share capital A& s 30 609,027 609,027
Reserves EE 801,782 659,599
1,410,809 1,268,626
Non-controlling Interests JEVER TS 229,715 231,357
Total Equity EEEE 1,640,524 1,499,983

The consolidated financial statements on pages 133 to 284 were $F133E284B G BREAN _E -
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on FZHB=+HEZESgH ETTET T

30 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf by: HTIEERREE
TANG TO TANG YU, FREEMAN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EFE

The notes on pages 143 to 284 are an integral part of these S143E284BZMEBAGEMFHRERZ
consolidated financial statements. — 15 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARSEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% — =

T A=+ —HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KRERERE NELE
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves profits Total interests equity
fek HftifhE REEH aE  FERER BEaiE
HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr FEr
Balance at 1 January 2020 AZEIFE-F-AEH 609,027 92,7172 469,870 1,171,669 214,772 1,386,441
Profit for the year FERA - - 19,578 19,578 6,300 25,878
Other comprehensive incomel(expense) EEEMRAERE/
for the year: (Z)
Share of reserves of associates FUEHEATGE - 1,904 - 1,904 - 1,904
Surplus on revaluation of properties BRAMEERRE
held for own use - 12,584 - 12,584 1,123 13,707
Deferred taxation adjustment EERERE - (2,486) - (2,486) (172) (2,658)
Exchange differences arising from translation of 885N MBI BR KA
financial statements of foreign operations EEZERER - 66,843 - 66,843 7,651 74,494
Release of translation reserve upon disposal of ~ HENBAEE
subsidiaries HEREERS - (1,621) - (1,621) - (1,621)
Release of translation reserve upon HE-ENEARN
deregistration of a subsidiary HERGESY - 106 - 106 - 106
Release of translation reserve upon disposal of ~ tHE—FHEAER
an associate HER GRS - 49 - 49 - 49
Total other comprehensive income EREMZENELE
for the year - 71379 - 71379 8,602 85,981
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXARGAE - 71379 19,578 96,957 14,902 111,859
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREAR - - - - 1,683 1,683
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIZZEE
+ZA=t-H&H 609,027 170,151 489,448 1,268,626 231,357 1,499,983

Details of other reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
SERRBHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AATRERA AR
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves profits Total interests equity
% Eftiita fRE R BE  FERER Rl

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
FET FET FE7 FiE7 FE7 FE7

Balance at 1 January 2021 RIEZ-E-F—-A%H 609,027 170,151 489,448 1,268,626 231,357 1,499,983
Profit for the year FERA - - 89,732 89,732 (5,527) 84,205
Other comprehensive income/(expense) EEEMRENE/

for the year: ()
Share of reserves of associates EREBEATGEE - 934 - 934 - 934
Surplus on revaluation of properties BRAMEEHERE

held for own use - 15,699 - 15,699 1,762 17,461
Deferred taxation adjustment EERERE - (402) - (402) (272) (674)
Exchange differences arising from translation of HBEENERH BHRE

financial statements of foreign operations EEZERER - 33,581 - 33,581 3,725 37,306
Release of translation reserve upon HH-ENEATR

deregistration of a subsidiary ERGRERL - 348 - 348 - 348
Total other comprehensive income FERMRANGER

for the year - 50,160 - 50,160 5,215 55,375
Total comprehensive income FEZANGAE

for the year - 50,160 89,732 139,892 (312) 139,580
Partial disposal of a subsidiary without HE-BRBLIDHES

loss of control BREEETIE - 2,291 - 2,291 (1,330) 961
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIBZ-%

+ZB=+—B&# 609,027 222,602 579,180 1,410,809 229,715 1,640,524

Details of other reserves of the Group during the year are set out AEBMPAEEZ HihEHEIEFEHN L
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements. B BWRMEE31R-

The notes on pages 143 to 284 are an integral part of these SF143E284BZMEBAGEMBEIRTRZ
consolidated financial statements. — &b {57 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Bank and other interest income
Covid-19-related rent concessions
from lessors

Finance costs
Impairment loss on goodwill
Realised and unrealised gain on
other financial assets
Loss on disposal of an associate
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on deregistration of
a subsidiary
Share of results of associates
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance
for impairment of
bad and doubtful debts
(Written back)/written down of
inventories, net

ﬁmﬁﬂitigj

PRI A= A

BTG IEREE .

IRIT R EMF] S WA

kB HMEAE2019
7 8U 7 K 95 55 4B A
mmé 2%

MEER

e R ERIE

Hth&m&EE2 B8R
R R IR I =

HE—MBE AR Z A

HENBARZEIER

B ARZ
18

i —U/NCIES

ME- -BERREITE

ERREEITE
mIVEE#
HEME BB K
= Z W
RIZRRBE (B8 HBE

EFaRE (a8 #E
FEE

CEC— A=A

2021

B %

Notes HK$000
&t FET
113,119
7 (1,911)
8 17,741
18 20,487
7 (4,344)
348
20 (5,140)
9 59,935
9 16,086
9 1,383
6 (416)
9 (16,616)
23(b) (1,094)

2020

=
_7_7

HK$000

TFHET

35,423

(3,759)

(405)
20,315

(819)
49
1,231

106
(2,617)

61,108
15,239
1,383

(1,630)

11,053

4,661

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED

o KEHMEEBIRAR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
HERERER (@

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & —E_—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

2021 2020
g —F “E2TE2HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Operating cash flows before CEESEHAZ
changes in working capital BERET 199,578 141,338
(Increase)/decrease in inventories  f7& (&) /@D (78,060) 5,876
Increase in finance lease FE W R 25 7E & =R B I 0
receivables (56,838) (49,569)
Decrease in trade and other B 5 R EMmEWRIE
receivables B 1,523 57,210
(Decrease)/increase in trade and %%&ET’@WHWIEEZ
other payables and contract axaE (rl) /1Em
liabilities (10,210) 114,522
Cash generated from operations RESEFESY VRS 55,993 269,377
Hong Kong profits tax paid BN EEFER (1,446) (2,874)
Overseas tax paid B EINE (17,884) (10,006)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RS ETELX RS FEE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 36,663 256,497
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREES
Increase in pledged BIRRRITEIUE M
bank deposits (2,122) (2,702)
Purchase of property, plant and EEYE -BERKE
equipment (39,765) (26,348)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE BEKRRKREZTIE
plant and equipment 2,357 5,315
Interest received Eells 1,911 3,759
Net proceeds on disposal of other i} :./\ﬁﬁﬁnﬂﬁﬁz
financial assets RIEFEE 2,182 819
Net payment for other financial TN EMEREEFEE
assets (45,586) (9)
Dividend received from associates ~ WRERE#E A TG B 1,528 571
Repayment from/(advance to) YNt
associates (B 1,532 (1,751)
Increase in short-term bank deposits Z/H8 H BB =181 Z 5 &8
with maturity over three months RITERIE 0 (3,875) (3,110)
Proceeds from disposal of HE—RENB AR ¥R
a subsidiary 2B 961 4,190
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REEZBIFERAZREFHE
ACTIVITIES (80,877) (19,266)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

I\7|—\ Iﬁ%/}ll%% (%E)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &Z —&FE _—&F+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

2021 2020
% TECEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Htat FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEH
Repayment of bank loans BERTER 33 (203,244) (246,558)
Interest paid EFE 33 (13,442) (15,780)
Capital element of lease rentals BNHERESNAEE KD
paid 33 (17,685) (14,360)
Interest element of lease rentals S HEERENF BEHD
paid 33 (4,299) (4,535)
New bank loans raised MIGIRTTER 33 180,842 212,654
Repayment to an associate BE—FEBRENE 2B 33 - (169)
Repayment to the non-controlling  {B38 45 X IR IR R 70 1B
shareholders 33 - (9,600)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING REZBFERHZIEEFE
ACTIVITIES (57.828) (78,348)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN  RE&ERREEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  GEi’b) /18 hn:3 %8 (102,042) 158,883
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS F#REKEEL%E
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 485,532 309,731
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ESRS &
RATE CHANGES 7,007 16,918
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HR&REREFESEE
AT END OF THE YEAR 26 390,497 485,532
The notes on pages 143 to 284 are an integral part of these SH143E284BZMEBAGEHHEIRRZ

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F _——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

GENERAL

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited is a public limited
company domiciled and incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
address of its registered office is 10/F,, Billion Plaza 2, No. 10
Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 41.

Saniwell Holding Inc. (a company incorporated in Cook
Islands) is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(1) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Listing Rules. A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of interest in leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of the property
interest and certain financial assets, which are carried at
fair value.

M)
AR EHRAR TR E B A
U2 AREMAT > TERID B PR
Efe

KRB EH—EREZER AT o sEfih it
AEBNEEVEREREHIORERE
B2RI0B -HFERNBADZETEE
YA EE41 o

Saniwell Holding Inc. (Rl 52 8t &5/
M BBRAE) AARABREERA
ao

FEEHBREE

MR EGMBREREBZIEG SN
RPN TX FRABARBPI ILEEHR
EFMEBRFMEFERNEMER-

(1) HwRREE

AABREMBAT CUTHENE
EB)NGREHMBREREREES
steing (TEBEsMAE)) B
MNEBYHREER (THBH
BHREER)) (BE(EBEE
) K (2R)) - BB ARG R
RARBRBD) IR ERE - B4R G
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AR N T - HREMBREE
BREENAERRE W AER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
~  REMBREME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FECHBERE (&
POLICIES (Continued)
(1) Basis of preparation (Continued) (1) RUEE E

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRS that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

REEBMBREENRRES
B BmREREEB LA E &
SEARER - BEFE - e MERR
ERECHRRNERUAKREE
BE -WARIHNEREE B
LEAFMARRRDIKEELE
BRhHEMEARRBERTESERN
EZ=FRIEL » SRR B E EOAEH
thaCERENEEMNA RN
EEENFIEERE - BRBRAEE
BB LS A E -

BEGHREERREFET N
5T o U0 5T b 5t BVEST EEERT
HEELERE REZEREAE
HARESD ; & 5HA ST BVERT HERT
B R KRB EETE > R
FEREE RN R R T

B
e ©

EERBYEHERAEEBEVMBRS

B REHAGEMHERREE
TEREEIREEZEEE

EREM AR TR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & —E_—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and the entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

—  has power over the investee;
- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group's accounting policies.

2.

(2)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
~  REMBREME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FETHBERBE (&
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS).
The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 (note 2(9)), when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture (note 2(3)).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

— deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
benefits respectively;

— liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

2.

(2)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity's net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

(3

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depend
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates
in accordance with HKFRS 9, or HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
at that date.

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

2.

(2)

(3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
-  IREMBRRME (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FETHBERBE (&
POLICIES (Continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter,
the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group's share of the investee’s net assets
and any impairment loss relating to the investment.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated income statement,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associates or the joint ventures, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associates or the
joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(3) Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and the joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost, is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (note 2(9)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint ventures are stated
at cost less impairment losses, unless classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
-  IREGMBWERNE (6@

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(4) Property, plant and equipment

2. TEGFHERBE (&

(4) ME- -BEKRKHE

Interests in leasehold land and buildings held for own
use where the Group is the registered owner of the
property interest is stated at their revalued amount,
being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation
is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Revaluations on properties held for own use are
performed with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) =
REMBRRME B -

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEGHHERRBE &
POLICIES (Continued)
(4) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 4) ME-BERSZE (B
Changes arising on the revaluation of properties REHBRWEELEZEH —K
held for own use are generally dealt with in other TFHMEE WS N REIEL Y E
comprehensive income and are accumulated separately BEhEHBE R TERR -EA
in equity in the property revaluation reserve. The only BISMERWT

exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be — MELABEGHBA BHEEE
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it ERMBEBEERRERBAF
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect BzsHENBMBTEERE
of that same asset immediately prior to the PRR 5 &

revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be — MWELBEGHRG BERFFA
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a deficit BE&x BURE—BEEL
on revaluation in respect of that same asset had AEREmRAHEZEM
previously been charged to profit or loss. B AL 2 PR o

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is Y BB R R BT ER BT

calculated using the straight-line method to allocate AR FHARSN AR EGERE

cost or revalued amounts to their residual values (if any) BEDHERGEE WA OT .

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Ownership interest in leasehold Unexpired term of BAMHAE T FIgRFAE S
land held for own use the leases FRBE#E# D

Ownership interest in buildings 40 years or BREFH 40FFENIEZ
held for own use unexpired term of B EER FerAEEH

the leases, if shorter
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 10 years RBREER 3E1045
RE
Plant and machinery 5 - 10 years iR 55 e 1 23 5ZE 104
Motor vehicles 3 - 10 years AE 3E104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
~  REMBREME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FECHBERE (&
POLICIES (Continued)
(4) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 4) ME-BERSZE (B

The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. An item of property, plant and
equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset.

Assets under construction represent buildings,
structures, plant and machinery and other fixed assets
under construction or installation and are stated at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, and
are not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs
of construction, installation and testing as well as
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation.
Assets under construction are reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
or investment properties when completed and ready for
use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained
profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note

2(10)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & —E_—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(5) Leases
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee
Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

BEEBRAE (&

(5) #H&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(5) Leases (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. The right-of-use asset is subsequently
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(10)(ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change
in the Group's estimate of the amount expected
to be payable under a residual value guarantee,
or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(5) Leases (Continued)
(iij) As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with note 2(23)(ii)(a).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies
the exemption described in note 2(5)(i), then the
Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.

(6) Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(6)

(7)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may
be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Research and development
Research expenditure is recognised as an expense
as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects
(relating to the design and testing of new or improved
products) are recognised as intangible assets when the
following criteria are fulfilled:

(i) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(i) management intends to complete the intangible

asset and use or sell it;

(iii)

there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset
will generate probable future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & —E_—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(7)

(8)

Research and development (Continued)
(vi) the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset
during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which
the asset is ready for use on a straight-line basis over its
useful life.

Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date
(which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(10)(ii)),
assets that are acquired separately.

on the same basis as intangible

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the assets’ estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.

(7)

(8)

BEEBRAE (&

MERREE @)
(vi) SEF]REStERELEENRH
RS RFE RIS -

AREULEEAENEMBA S W
RELERERSER p BT
HERANRAENETEERERH
BREAEE BERCHRAEME
JmmEEE THEMEEES
PIERAREETERAIERF
HAR B R -

B EE (BRI

FEHa AT R KR R
RBZEVEENTIRWEERZ
NPEE (RBREFHME) FER-

RANIaRES R EH ST
ZEVEEDEASERRS#
HEGATRAFHRAAR KRG
MERE (RMEE2(10)0) > #2{E 5
WEZETEEZRAREE T
e

REERERFHZELEEL
BEDRREZAFERENR
BRRHHE -t R F R
BAEDREREEEAERER
o AEtEB R ERABEREEA
fRe

R EEDR L ER S EST
B 42 15 PR o L o 19 R RS
R IR R LR B E
B R 2 2 W R RS 1R (et B
BRESERAEREER #
S5 E) To 5 E A L RSB 14
EELS

ZZT—FEH o Annual Report 2021

159



160

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(9) Financial assets
(i) Classification

CEC— A=A

2. FEGHBERREE &
(9) ERMEE
(i) 2%

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair

value (either through other comprehensive

income, or through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the

contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and

losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or

other comprehensive income. For investments

in debt instruments,

this will depend on the

business model in which the investment is held.

For investments in equity instruments that are

not held for trading, this will depend on whether

the Group has made an irrevocable election at

the time of initial recognition to account for the

equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

See Note 39(a) for details of each type of financial

asset.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and

only when its business model for managing those

assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&FE _—F+_FH=+—HIFFEZ

—_—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in profit or
loss. Financial assets with embedded derivatives
are considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= A
RER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%

FEsER AR M EE ()

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income or other income using the effective
interest method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"): Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVTOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/(losses) — net.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income or other income using
the effective interest method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMBRRME B -

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FECHBERE (&
POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)

(9) =WMEE #@)

(iii) &2 (&)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Assets
that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
the consolidated income statement within other
losses/gains, net in the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established. Changes in the fair value
of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised in other
gains/(losses) — net in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at FVTOCI are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments
The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on the following

items:

—  financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and bank balances, trade and
other receivables); and

—  finance lease receivables

Financial assets measured at fair value including
other financial assets are not subject to the ECLs

assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an approximation

thereof;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o

~ N = -
B EmRMEE (B w”
For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHBRBE (&
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (10) EEBEREERE (&
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (i) THTAELEZIEEER

(Continued) (4

Measurement of ECLs (Continued) EHEEEENTE (B

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective — FELTHREE:NHEEXR
interest rate; FE

- finance lease receivables: discount rate used — EWmREREERIE . LA
in the measurement of the finance lease REFEEUMERE
receivable; MIE ;

The maximum period considered when estimating Gt TEREEGEBRMERE

ECLs is the maximum contractual period over NEREHRBARERAZ(E

which the Group is exposed to credit risk. SRENEESAHMB-

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account Rt ERAEEBEER  &~&E

reasonable and supportable information that BEgEEEELTERNNER

is available without undue cost or effort. This AFFE I ATERNEGER
includes information about past events, current BERENER GFERRBE
conditions and forecasts of future economic EH BRI B R R HAR

conditions. RIER &R o

ECLs are measured on either of the following HEEHEEEEEZUTARZ

bases: —5t2

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are — TZEBFEHEERIE:
expected to result from possible default events FAstREBEHE+ @
within the 12 months after the reporting date; BRAEEENENSE
and HMENNEIE; &

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are — Z2HATEEAEERIE . 85t
expected to result from all possible default FERTRHAEEEREER
events over the expected lives of the items to NIEEBTEEEHABMME
which the ECLs model applies. AEZEENENEHMm

EYMEEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
~  REMBREME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FETHBERBE (&
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(10) EEHFEREERE (&

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments () THTAELZIEEER
(Continued) (4

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables and finance
lease receivables are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision
matrix based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor's ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the
ECLs amount is recognised as an impairment gain
or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in debt securities that are
measured at FVTOCI (recycling), for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve
(recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2(23) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

2. TEGFHERBE (&

(10) EEHFEREERE (&
() EHBTRELZIFEEHE

(&

EERRAELA (&
RMEEEERSBRSHEH
ETEWSIEUARMRESRT
BEBEMHRESUARNEER
REs - RMEEEESEN
EREHHRBE PR D
BB m SRR o AN E B FLPT
BRI ARRREWD N
BE A BEREARER
FZREEFHAEARBEE &
REAFEBEFAEMEZE
Wz (FT8188) st ERESES
ZERERRI UL IR EE
Th i E fth & IR o FE SR I Y
AP EERFE (A8 Rt

FEWAGEREE

RIEMT 5E2(23) 8 2 F) B IR
ARERMEENBREES
BoBREZEREELEREE
BE R BRAREREE
RO 85 A A (B 48 AR E B RS
BEH) 8-

RERESBH > ~EEFEE
MEEESHEBEEERE B
RE-HUZTHENTMEE
ZEARKRBEEREFTAES
FEZEMAE ERMEERH
RIEERE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
or finance lease receivable is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets (other than ownership
interest in leasehold land and buildings held
for own use carried at fair value);

— investments in subsidiaries and associates
(except for those classified as held for sale or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale) in the Company’s statement
of financial position;

—  goodwill; and

— intangible assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for
use and intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &Z —&F—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).
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Ny NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

N

= BARBRRNE @

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEGHHERRBE &
POLICIES (Continued)
(10) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued) (10) EEBEREERE (&
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) BtIFmEEZERE &
(Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses — BERERE
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an MEEZHINZEEMS
impairment loss is reversed if there has been MEREBEIWE %8
a favourable change in the estimates used ZiEEt IR AR PR BY
to determine the recoverable amount. An BEURERIE - mENRE
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not EL SR BRI
reversed.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited B[Rz HEBEERER
to the asset’s carrying amount that would WHRBETEEERESB
have been determined had no impairment BEHEEMET2EER
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals HEE o EEE BT
of impairment losses are credited to profit MR hlz FE s AR
or loss in the year in which the reversals are Ho
recognised.
(11) Borrowing costs (11) BEM %
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, BEEAKE ERNELE—EBEHE
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. RE—KREERBATBERTE
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of ARG ENEEMEENES
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are WA OB RTEEMANN—ID
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Other HtEER B TEESE SHH-
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which ERMENEERABEEEEAN
they are incurred. Capitalisation of such borrowing Lo BB AR ERGRNHE
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for BRIt ENEENEGFEHR
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned RNEBHSERNEERBERSY
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings KEMMENEERANERTE X
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is MNESRABRR -

deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(12) Government grants

2. TEGFHERBE (&

(12) BT 4E AL

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
~  REMBREME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TEGHHBREBE (&
POLICIES (Continued)
(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and (13) BHUFEFE -BERIAERE
contingent liabilities (Continued) (%)
(i) Financial guarantees issued (Continued) (i) FrEFEER (B

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee (being the transaction
price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred
income within trade and other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees issued at the time
of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transactions for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category of
asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 2(13)(iii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of
that guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(13) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised at
fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair
value, such contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation where appropriate,
and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with note 2(13)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that
cannot be reliably fair valued or where not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are disclosed
in accordance with note 2(13)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(14) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less applicable
variable selling expenses.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMBRRME B -

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHBRBE (&
POLICIES (Continued)
(14) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued)
(ii) Other contract costs

(14) ZEREMEHME (&
(i) BEME#EE

Other contract costs are either the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer or
the costs to fulfil a contract with a customer which
are not capitalised as inventory (see note 2(14)(i)),
property, plant and equipment (see note 2(4)) or
intangible assets (see note 2(8)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are
those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a
contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained
e.g. an incremental sales commission. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when
incurred if the costs relate to revenue which will
be recognised in a future reporting period and the
costs are expected to be recovered. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised if the
costs relate directly to an existing contract or to
a specifically identifiable anticipated contract;
generate or enhance resources that will be used
to provide goods or services in the future; and
are expected to be recovered. Costs that relate
directly to an existing contract or to a specifically
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that are explicitly chargeable to the customer and REHRAEBT LM

other costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract (for example,
payments to sub-contractors). Other costs of
fulfilling a contract, which are not capitalised
as inventory, property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets, are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
- REMBEEMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEGHHERRBE &
POLICIES (Continued)
(14) Inventories and other contract costs (Continued) (14) FEREMENRE (&
(i) Other contract costs (Continued) (i) BEME#IaLZ (&)
Capitalised contract costs are stated at cost less BABARANG N AZEA
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. AR R EERY R
Impairment losses are recognised to the extent HEHARAEERBEEBRAG
that the carrying amount of the contract cost KNEBEFERBINURIRE R
asset exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount of ZEENERIRBNEGT
consideration that the Group expects to receive in RE2E BIVENEZERS
exchange for the goods or services to which the REZFERURT > MARE
asset relates, less (i) any costs that relate directly RAMAZMARNFEE B g
to providing those goods or services that have not SRR EEE

yet been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is EHNEERABANKDERR
charged to profit or loss when the revenue BF o R B AR & A R AN # 8
to which the asset relates is recognised. The HEERNR W EINE
accounting policy for revenue recognition is set out TR MY ER2(23) 0

in note 2(23).

(15) Contract assets and contract liabilities (15) BHEEREHNERE
A contract asset is recognised when the Group MAEBERRBESORRE Z T
recognises revenue (see note 2(23)) before being FRHAEERBERGEBNRKEZ
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the AR SRR A (R FI5E2(23)) > BUFERR
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets BREE-aNBEERBEHNMH
are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the policy set 2000z R HE TR A E B/ 1B
out in note 2(10)(i) and are reclassified to receivables S WER (B 2 R AR A B K
when the right to the consideration has become RE B D SR E B WEIE (R
unconditional (see note 2(16)). 2(16))
A contract liability is recognised when the customer MERNAEBRBDEBAKAZ
pays consideration before the Group recognises A B BESSNEBEW
the related revenue (see note 2(23)). A contract 5£2(23)) o HASE BB EIRFE
liability would also be recognised if the Group has an Me R AEEEDEBEBA ZA
unconditional right to receive consideration before the WEARE TREDSHNER/ T
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a ZEBRT > 754 FE S8 B FE 09 FE UK
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see IR MEE2(16)) ©

note 2(16)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(15) Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)
For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.

(16) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset (note 2(15)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

(17) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(10)(i).

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and
cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
-  IREGMBWERNE (6@

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FETHBERBE (&
POLICIES (Continued)

(18) Share capital (18) ig =<

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction (net of tax) from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity shareholders until
the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income
tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company's equity shareholders.

(19) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
(if any) measured in accordance with note 2(13)(i),
trade and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & —E_—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(20) Bank and other borrowings

Bank and other borrowings are initially recognised at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction
costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset
or financial liability, including fees and commissions
paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies
by regulatory agencies and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Bank and other borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Bank and other borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.

(21) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
-  IREMBRRME (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FETHBERBE (&
POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued)

(21) FRIEM (7

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FETHBERBE (&

POLICIES (Continued)

(21) Income tax (Continued) (21)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(22) Employee benefits
(i) Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution plans under
the mandatory provident fund scheme, the ORSO
scheme and state-managed retirement benefits
scheme are charged as expenses as they fall due.

(ii) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

(iii)

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula
that takes into consideration the profit attributable
to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Share-based compensation

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share option reserve
within equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the Hull White Trinomial Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the
total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(22) Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii)) Share-based compensation (Continued)

(iv)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged or credited to the income
statement for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share capital) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period are discounted to their
present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME B -

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEGHBERBEE (&
POLICIES (Continued)
(23) Revenue recognition and other income (23) WA R EMUTA

(i) Revenue recognition (i) Wz rEsR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied or service
performed, stated net of rebates and returns.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity; and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group's activities, as described
below. The Group bases its estimates of returns on
historical results, taking into consideration the type
of customers, the nature of transactions and the
specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of products

Revenue from the sale of goods directly to the
customers is recognised at the point that the
control of the inventory have passed to the
customers, which is primarily upon the acceptance
of the products by the customers. The customers
have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customers’ acceptance of the products. The Group
collects cash or bank acceptance notes from the
customers before or upon deliveries of products
through banks. Cash or bank acceptance notes
collected from the customers before product
delivery is recognised as contract liabilities (Note
2(15)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(23) Revenue recognition and other income (Continued)
(i) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

Installation services income
Installation services income is recognised when the
relevant services are provided.

The Group's obligation to repair or replace faulty
products under the standard warranty terms, which
cannot be purchased separately and serve as an
assurance that the products sold comply with
agreed-upon specifications at the time of sale.

Finance lease income

Interest income from the finance lease is
recognised on a basis that reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the net investment in the
finance lease.

Other income

(@) Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME B -

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FETHEBERBE (&

POLICIES (Continued)

(23) Revenue recognition and other income (Continued)

(23) rm MR R EMBA (&

(iij) Other income(Continued)
(b) Handling and services income are recognised
when services are provided.

(i) BMEA (&)
(b) MIkBBERATZE
RMARB RS -

(c) Interest income is recognised as it accrues () FEBEWATIHASERF
using the effective interest method. For EETES o B LU 85 AR
financial assets measured at amortised cost KEENETMEELN
or FVTOCI (recycling) that are not credit- NREEBEFTEEHES
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied FAHEMEEm K E (EH

to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see note 2(10)(i)).

(d) Dividend income is recognised when the

WA LHEEERE &
RAMEBERREEDN
ABIREE - B LUE AR
ENEREE BRAX
ThFE R # 85 pl A (BR4B
MREENREREE) 5t
ENEE (RWE2010)
(i) °

(d BEREMIEBZERER

shareholder’s right to receive payment is AZHERAEREREER
established prior to the end of the reporting REGEEBSEIIWE
period. =i
(24) Dividend distribution (24) % B 9k
Final dividends proposed by the Board are classified as a HEEg RS RENEKBERERE

separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when

they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(25) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s top management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria. A discontinued segment is
separately presented from continuing segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ —E -——#F+_—F=+—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(26) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency. All values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in profit or loss, except
those arising from qualifying cash flow hedges
or qualifying net investment hedges which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities, such as equity instruments
held at fair value through profit or loss, are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated

separately in equity in the fair value reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
(26) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iiij) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency

are translated into the presentation currency as

follows:

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the
translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(26) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii)) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when gain

or loss on disposal is recognised.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the year-end closing rate.

(27) Related parties

(i)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or
(3) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
(27) Related parties (Continued)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(1

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in note 2(27)(i).

A person identified in note 2(27)(i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

2. TEGFHERBE (&

(27) RAE 7S ()
(i) HFE TIMEREAS > BB R

HALBARE
(1) ZEREEAEEER—

EEZRERE BIRE
NEWEBAB KRB R
B AR ILE A R ©

—HEEAT —BEN
BEATANEERE (
S—EEANBERTZ
EEETHREREZH

BARRAELE) -

mMEBEAAE—F=
AREERZE-

—HEREAF=FEER
WEEtE ME—8E
RMEE=_HERNKEE
NCI

EEMEEREMES
) 4 5% 37 BY BE B 42 A T

2o

BERZMEE2(27)(i)Fr &
BIA LGN ZHFE

R EE2(27)G) (1) P 5 BY
ATHERBEEAEZE
NoBZER (WZER
MWBAE) TEEEEK
EO

ZERABEZERAET
— WO ERETEM
B RT & MEAERH
AEEFGRARRHEEE
EEABRS -

FAALTZERBRAZBEERS
REARTZEZALTRNRZZAL
FTENRKEMS -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective
for the current year

In current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

e Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase
2

In addition, the Group has early adopted the amendment
to HKFRS 16, Covid 19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 2021, which is effective for the annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set in these consolidated financial
statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The assumptions, estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(i) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 2(10). The recoverable amounts
of cash-generating units have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require
the use of estimates and assumptions. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of goodwill
and the impairment (if any) in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

()

(ii)

Estimated impairment of goodwill (Continued)

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and
also to choose a suitable discount rate and growth rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. The net carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2021 was approximately HK$32,996,000
(2020: HK$53,483,000).

More details of the impairment assessment are given in
note 18.

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables and
finance lease receivables

For trade receivables and finance lease receivables,
the Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECLs as prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires
the use of the lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables and finance lease receivables.
The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. A considerable
level of judgement is exercised by the directors when
assessing the financial condition and credit worthiness
of each customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally
relate to allowance for doubtful debts and tax losses,
depends on the management’s expectation of future
taxable profits that will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual
utilisation may be different.

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of inventories
at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether the inventories are carried at lower of cost
and net realisable value in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(14). The directors
estimate the net realisable value based on the current
market situation and historical experience on similar
inventories. Any change in the assumptions would
increase or decrease the amount of inventories write-
down or the related reversals of write-down and affect
the Group's net asset value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
~  REMBREME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BEEGH Gt RFE 2B)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(v) Classification of interests in leasehold land and

(v) HFERNEEIMRIEFTHE

buildings held for own use

In accordance with HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment, the Group chooses to apply either the cost
model or the revaluation model as its accounting policy
for items of property, plant and equipment held for
own use on a class-by-class basis. In applying this policy,
the Group has concluded that its registered ownership
interests in leasehold properties and the right to use
other properties leased under tenancy agreements
are two separate groupings of assets which differ
significantly in their nature and use. Accordingly, they
are regarded by the Group as separate classes of asset
for subsequent measurement policies in accordance
with notes 2(4), 2(5) and 2(10)(ii). Specifically,
registered ownership interests are carried under the
revaluation model, while rights to use properties under
tenancy agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

In making this judgement, the Group has taken into
account that, as the registered owner of leasehold
property, the Group is able to benefit fully from any
changes in the valuation of these properties whether
as holding gains or by selling the property interest to
others, as well as being able to use the properties in
its operation free of paying market rents. In contrast,
the shorter term tenancy agreements are typically for
periods of no more than 10 years and are subject to
other restrictions, in particular on transferability of
the Group’s tenancy rights to others. These shorter
term tenancy agreements are executed in order to
retain operational flexibility and to reduce the Group's
exposure to the property market fluctuation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) -

-

REMBRRMEE (B -

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. BEEGH At RFE )
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(vi) Determining the lease term (vi) EEHER

As explained in note 2(5), the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term. In determining the lease
term at the commencement date for leases that include
renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group
evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal
options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favourable
terms, leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group's
operation. The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstance
that is within the Group’s control. Any increase or
decrease in the lease term would affect the amount
of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in
future years.

MM EE2(5)FrE A > HE &R
HERANENEERNIREET
NEERD-NHEENEEESE
EE AT EAYETE R &8 H
By AEB G EITEEREZA
FEME > W E B EIFT B BETL A B 5
(Al ffe {8 2= &= [ 17 o 45 70 1 2 18
FERBER (BEAMNGER BIF
EZHERERZEREEHL
EEEEZEEN) - HEEEX
EHFFERHFEEREHMEE
FHhREHTAEBES ARE
M LA - EEMNERLER
HEEHEE L EN RRFEERERD
WHHEERREREEESE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
-  IREGMBWERNE (6@

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5.
(a) Revenue (a)
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents
the amounts received and receivable for goods sold
to customers, less returns and discounts and interest
income from finance lease receivables during the year.

WA R D EBHRS

A

WA TR AEEZ IHERE 15 F
REEERERMSIMNERBESR
R ERITN%® 2 EWR EWRRIEA
REWRBERERBELEZHME K

An analysis of revenue is as follows: A BREEZWARTUWT :
2021 2020
—E—5F —EEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Revenue WA
Sales of goods EmiiE 3,025,320 2,398,764
Installation services for machinery T 22 8 AR 75 7,271 6,482
Revenue from contracts with KEELGHZWE
customers 3,032,591 2,405,246
Finance lease income MEAERA 42,714 26,775
Total revenue 4B A 3,075,305 2,432,021
Disaggregation of revenue WA 748

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

RIZERBNDENERGN

customers by major products is as follows: WAWT :
2021 2020
—E-—% —ToTE
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Trading of industrial consumables THHERES 501,130 339,105
Sales of plastic products TR mIEE 554,370 435,523
Sales of machinery 145 10 2 5 1,175,910 933,693
Sales of printed circuit boards EN P A B8 A 35 & 793,910 690,443
Installation services for machinery 1 22 8 AR 75 7,271 6,482
3,032,591 2,405,246

The timing of revenue recognition of all revenue from
contracts with customers is at a point in time when
customers obtain control of goods or services.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & —E_—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WAKRDEHRE (&
(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (b) SEERS

The Group manages its business by a mixture of
both business lines and geographical location. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s top management
for the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group
has identified, on a product basis, the following four
reportable segments.

(1) trading of industrial consumables;

(2) processing and manufacturing of plastic products;
(3) manufacturing of machinery; and

(4) processing and trading of printed circuit boards.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group's top
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following basis:

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis
to that segment. For example, segment assets may
include inventories, trade receivables, right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment. Segment revenue,
expenses, assets, and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except
to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between group entities within a single
segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similar terms
as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets and corporate expenses.

AEEREEBRMBAUERE
BEB - BENHENZE2HASA
HREHTFAEESREERMHEA
EDEZ KRB R DEERA S
BREE-—B FEEREBEERE
> BHBIUTHIEZ|R D -

(1) IFHERES

(2) FBHMMIRHRE ;
(3) MWMRE; K

(4) ENRIGERARIMIRES -

DEHBEE - BERER

FE G DB RIBE R DR EE IR
R AEBNSRITHEEREERE
UTEREEZETRES - ER
NMZzEBE BEEREGRE:

DEWBEAZH EE - BERER
BE—EIMEREBGEZER U
KRB EEEEDBRDE DA
HE BN DEBEERBEEFE
BUBEBZER EREEERY
E BB Rk o DR EE S ST
BEENGETERRNRTBGRK
EBERAEERXZEREHE (L
REREBREZ M AEE &
HILEERBNABDBEFRRIZZ TS
EEEBREE—DSRELESE ]
{ERIER 2 BB 8 2 E B TH LU BIHE
N FRA LR ZARRBER

DEEARMXTHEABRRARE
RA—ESRENEZzDEEEME
2R

AOEBRETECREMREE
BERTEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &Z —&FE _—&F+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARSDERE (#)
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b) AEHRE &
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) ﬁ""/f%‘ﬁﬁ “BERER (&
The segment results for the year ended 31 December g#E_T_—F+-_HA=+—H
2021 are as follows: thEF“ZﬁuB%“ SUIN
Printed
Industrial Plastic circuit Other
consumables products  Machinery boards  operations Eliminations Consolidated
T4HE%ER AR W EDRIARRER HitEE bis &a
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
FET FET FET FET FET FAET FET
REVENUE KA
External sales HIMEE 501,130 554,370 1,183,181 793,910 42,714 - 3,075,305
Inter-segment sales (Vote) DHEHE iz 21,857 260 3,433 - 4 (31,554) -
Total revenue EETON 528,987 554,630 1,186,614 793,910 42,718 (31,554) 3,075,305
Segment results RS 44,763 31,285 50,432 (19,670) 39,957 - 146,767
Unallocated corporate APk
expenses TtEER (26,954)
Operating profit =t 119,813
Investment income BEWA 6,255
Share of results of associates ~ FEMEIHE ABI %% 5,140
Loss on deregistration of SE-ENEAR
a subsidiary B8 (348)
Finance costs HHBER (17,741)
Profit before tax PRiREDRR 113,119
Income tax expense FIEHMER (28,914)
Profit for the year FERF 84,205
Note: Wiz

Inter-segment sales are determined at prevailing market rates.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & —E_—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. WARAREBRSE &
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued) (b) DEIRE (&
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) DU EE EEREE (B)
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December wW_E2_—F+_A=+—Hx
2021 are as follows: SEHBEREEWT -
Printed
Industrial Plastic circuit Other
consumables products  Machinery boards  operations Consolidated
THH#ER ABRG Wi EDRARRRIR Htn&E =8

HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

ASSETS BE
Segment assets NBEE 334,356 330,963 1,099,893 525,802 521,359 2,812,373
Interests in associates B AT S 41,524
Unallocated corporate assets RANEZz L £EE 113,988
Consolidated total assets REEELE 2,967,885
LIABILITIES =]
Segment liabilities AHEE 107,810 115,011 510,766 204,078 40,255 977,920
Current tax payable REEMRE 10,684
Borrowings L 301,167
Unallocated corporate liabilites KA pEzhE&E 37,590
Consolidated total liabilities REBBEEE 1,327,361
OTHER INFORMATION Hitt &R
Capital additions BEAREM 6,841 8,632 29,504 6,066 102 51,145
Depreciation and amortisation 3 & R #8H 5,402 15,534 24,096 26,481 5,891 77,404
Allowance for impairment of RIERAERE

bad and doubtful debts 10 15 (3,955) - (12,686) (16,616)
Share of results of associates EEHEABEE - - 5,140 - - 5,140
Interest income FISBA 78 173 1,000 554 106 1,91
Finance costs HBER 401 5,285 4,957 3,998 3,100 17,141
Income tax expense FiisiiER 10,461 3,262 2,403 2,098 10,690 28,914
Other non-cash item: HEtIEREER
(Reversal of write down)/ =5 (MiseE) /

written down of inventories R (3,633) - 2,539 - - (1,094)
Impairment loss on goodwill BHERERE - - - 20,487 - 20,487
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &t — & ——F+_H=+—HIFFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment results for the year ended 31 December

5. WARDE®RSE (&)

(b) DEIRE &
DEEE BEREE (B)
BHE_Z-_ZEHF+_-_A=+—H

2020 are as follows: EFEZDEEEEWNT
Printed
Industrial Plastic circuit Other
consumables products Machinery boards operations  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
TEHER EELR B HRIERR HitgE g &a
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL FEn FET FEr FET
REVENUE KA
External sales HIMEE 339,105 435,523 940,175 690,443 26,775 - 2,432,021
Inter-segment sales (Vote) DB E (W) 27,839 325 4312 - 40 (32,516) -
Total revenue EETON 366,944 435,848 944,487 690,443 26,815 (32,516) 2,432,021
Segment results RS 20,522 9,361 25,777 14,086 6,768 - 76,514
Unallocated corporate Fankz
expenses TEER (26,585)
Operating profit =t 49,929
Investment income BEWA 4,578
Share of results of associates ~ FEMEIHE ABI %% 2,617
Loss on disposal of HE-BRERT
an associate B8 (49)
Loss on disposal of HERBAR
subsidiaries B8 (1,231)
Loss on deregistration of SE-ENEAR
a subsidiary B8 (106)
Finance costs HHBER (20,315)
Profit before tax PRiREDRR 35,423
Income tax expense FEHER (9,545)
Profit for the year FEERR 25,878
Note: Wiz

Inter-segment sales are

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES

determined at prevailing market rates.
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5.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December

2020 are as follows:

ASSETS

Segment assets

Interests in associates
Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES

Segment liabilities

Current tax payable
Borrowings

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION

Capital additions

Depreciation and amortisation

Allowance for impairment of
bad and doubtful debts

Share of results of associates

Interest income

Finance costs

Income tax expense

Other non-cash item:
Written down of inventories

HE

NEEE
NG5
FANkZEXEE

RoEENRE

&ff
PEER
FHEARE
&

FANEZEEAE

HtE R
BREM
RS
RERAERRE

BlEBEARRE
MEHA
HHER
FIMER

HitFHEER
FEME

Industrial
consumables
TEHER
HK$ 000
FEn

274,225

75,678

166
4,828

1,154
83

454
1,978

2,242

Plastic
products
padiek-
HKS000
FAT

308,919

110,967

11,760
15,693

101
1,570

3,890
2,662

PA=EAN
g g =

RAFFERR M EE ()

WARDERRE (&

(b) DERERE (&

=
=]

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

DEEE EEREE (B)
W_E_EF+_F=+—HZ

NEEEREGENT !
Printed
circuit Other
Machinery boards operations
B EDRIRERAR Htvgg
HKS000 HKS000 HKS$'000
FAET FAET FAET
1,053,292 577,948 467,784
546,003 225,996 7,893
8,923 8,026 950
21,747 29,453 6,009
5,826 - 3,972
2,617 - -
1,090 31 705
7,244 4,192 4,535
805 1,763 2,337
2,412 - -
“E_—FFR o

Consolidated

VEPS
=

HKS$ 000
FET

2,682,168
38,510

114,000

2,834,678

966,537
10,464
322,344

35,350

1,334,695

29,825
77,730

11,053
2,617
3,759

20,315
9,545

4,661
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Geographical information
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, other Asia-Pacific countries, North
America and Europe. The Group's trading of industrial
consumables division is located in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The manufacturing of plastic products,
machinery and printed circuit boards divisions are
located in Mainland China.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue by geographical market:

5.

WARDER®RSE (&

(b) AERERE (&

e B
FAEENEBURER FER
U= D N S S D4
MeAEBMZ THHEREZLER
UREBBRABEAM EBER G
P R EN R 4R B th & RIEFE 85!
BR R E A

AEBWARME TS Z DN
T

2021 2020

—E-—F —EIZH

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Hong Kong 55 356,623 305,626
Mainland China R g 2,164,007 1,731,421
Other Asia-Pacific countries Hhiz KEZX 434,691 317,556
North America 16 M 30,154 19,563
Europe BRM 89,830 57,855
3,075,305 2,432,021

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) -

-

REMBRRMEE (B -

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5.
(Continued)
(b) Segment Reporting (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

WARDERRE (&

(b) DERERE (&
HMEEH (&
AEENME -BERRE EH
REE - BHEREVEE (H5EF
RBEE)) RIEEFRBEEZIE
AEtEZ 2mTE

The following is an analysis of the Group's property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill and
intangible assets (“specified non-current assets”), and
additions to specified non-current assets, analysed by
the geographical area in which the assets are located:

Additions to
Specified specified
non-current assets non-current assets
EEFRBEE IEEIEREEEZIER
2021 2020 2021 2020
—S_—-—F | T Z®¥-F _"EB_EF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FHET FAET FAET
Hong Kong 58 176,114 197,645 473 867
Mainland China R A 31 554,961 548,337 50,672 28,958
731,075 745,982 51,145 29,825
Information about major customers TEZXAREH
No customer of the Group has individually accounted AEBHERAYNEE{GAEBEE
for over 10% of the Group's total revenue during AW AMEZEBRI0O% (ZE-Z=E
the year (2020: Nil) and no information about major T8\ O RNIEZYNTEZTRE
customers is presented accordingly. #lo
ZZT—FEH o Annual Report 2021 207
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OTHER INCOME, GAIN AND LOSS, NET

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

6. HtUA - Um R B5187F 88

2021 2020
—EZ-F —TITF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Other income Hihug A
Gross rental income from MERSEZHERE
properties and equipment 2,008 3,460
Handling, tooling and sales of ~ EEIE - THE K IHEEER
scrapped materials 1,695 2,613
Government grants B 488 B 5,669 9,156
Sundry income HA A 1,452 4,619
10,824 19,848
Gain and loss, net W2 R B5 18 5 2B
Gain on disposal of property, HEYZE- BB REE
plant and equipment Z W 416 1,630
Exchange loss, net EREIBFEE (4,594) (5,649)
(4,178) (4,019)
6,646 15,829

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

INVESTMENT INCOME 7. BREWA
2021 2020
—E-—=F —ETEF
HK$'000 HK$°000
FAET FAET
Bank and other interest income R1T R EAF] 2 U 1,911 3,759
Total interest income on financial WIEE A EEGTEER
assets not at fair value through BomzEMEEZ
profit or loss “H B U A 1,911 3,759
Realised and unrealised gain on other EHfth&fEEZ B&IR
financial assets Ko REIR U 4,344 819
6,255 4,578
FINANCE COSTS 8. MHBEH
2021 2020
—E-—F —E2TE2HF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FAET
Interest on: HTIEEEENAE
Bank borrowings wholly repayable BRAFRERZ
within 5 years RITER 13,442 15,780
Lease liabilities HESRE 4,299 4,535
Total interest expense on WIEE A EESE2EB
financial liabilities not at fair value BmzesmEaEz
through profit or loss BAEZH 17,741 20,315
ZZT—FEH o Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
~  REMBREME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BRMRATEF
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging/ BRERAEFI B GIA) TF&E :

(crediting) the following:

2021 2020
—E-—F 2R
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Staff costs (including directors'’ BTN (BEEEME)
emoluments)
— Salaries and other benefits — = REMBER 377,548 338,859
— Retirement benefits scheme —RREFIETEHRR
contributions 38,116 21,046
Total staff costs WE TR A 415,664 359,905
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance FIRERRE (B8 B
for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts (16,616) 11,053
Auditors’ remuneration TZ BB AN &
— Group auditor —E B 2B 2,848 2,648
Depreciation and amortisation on: 78S R i
— Property, plant and equipment —ME-BERFE
— Ownership interest in leasehold —BERAEELTHRIEFTY
land and buildings held for B R m
own use 15,990 15,171
— Other owned assets —HMWBREEE 43,945 45,937
— Intangible assets —mEE 1,383 1,383
— Right-of-use assets —FREEE 16,086 15,239
Research and development expenditure #f 25 & /A 66,177 21,112
Short-term lease payments IRHAEEMEE 2,077 2,416
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

=]

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 1AEESEF KR iER
Directors’ emoluments (i) ZE=Ms
The emoluments of each Director are set out as below. SHESZMESEINWT
For the year ended 31 December 2021: BE_E”-_—H+Z-H=+—H
IEFE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
REAAREES FRAFATAEMBATER) BEEAAREHE
Employer's
contribution to
Allowances  a retirement
Discretionary  and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries bonuses in kind scheme Total
ExH
2R RIKER
ik g RETEAL BWER IR at
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FAET FET FET
Executive Directors HITEE
M. Tang To BERE = 152 1323 = 105 2952
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman BRRE - 2,032 2,645 - 18 4,695
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Kan Wai Wah BRELE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Qu Jinping (Note 7) E2TR4E W) - - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEE
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan Yt s 168 - - - - 168
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin PEERE 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Ho Wei Sem (Note 2) MRHRRE Wa#2) - - - - - -
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei (Note 1) BTELE W) - - - - = =
288 3,556 3,968 - 123 7,935
Notes: Bzt

1. During the year, Mr. Qu lJinping and Mr. Huang Zhi
Wei waived their directors’ fees under their letters of

appointment.

2. Mr. Ho Wei Sem resigned as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 1 August 2021 and
waived his director’s fee during his term of office under

his letter of appointment.

None of the Directors received or will receive any
emoluments in respect of a person accepting office as a

director during the year.

1. REEETARERETIELEDN
Z2EE BRENFARERRE

ElE o

2. [AEREEH-ZE-_—FENB—
HERTBIIIENTES Rk
HEZEAE  WREHRRERE

BEFME-

FROBECAESIEMEEH

37 Y 310 ik UL

TR —FFR .

E(E I BN < o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

()

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020:

(i)

AESZEH RiED (&

EEME (&
BE_Z-_ZTHF+_-_HF=+—H
EFE:

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

ABAREESE FRAXATIENBLATER) BHEENAELME

Employer's
contribution to

Allowances  a retirement
Discretionary Pension  and benefits benefit
Fees Salaries bonuses fund in kind scheme Total
BEH
2R BT
ik e BT i3y BYER HEEE Eh
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FiEr FET FiEr FET FiEr FET FET
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Tang To BEEE - 1,440 - - - 100 1,540
Mr. Wong Yiu Ming (Note 1) BIBRARLE (1) - 4,456 2,140 4,037 - 287 10,920
Mr. Tang Yu, Freeman BEREE - 1,920 359 - - 18 2,297
Mr. Mei Zheqi (Note 2) ISESRE (H2) - 583 - - - 4 587
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Kan Wai Wah BEERE 60 - - - - - 60
Mr. Qu Jinping (Note 3) BETRE (3) - - - - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUHHTEE
Ms. Yeung Shuk Fan it s 168 - - - - - 168
Mr. Cheng Tak Yin BEELE 60 - - - - - 60
Mr. Ho Wei Sem (Note 3) ARHRLE (Wt3) - - - - - - -
Mr. Huang Zhi Wei (Note 3) BRBRE (I:3) - - - = - - -
288 8,399 2,499 4,037 - 409 15,632
Notes: Hfat -

1. Mr. Wong Yiu Ming retired from his position as the
executive Director and executive vice chairman of the

Company with effect from 1 January 2021.

2. Mr. Mei Zheqi resigned as the executive Director with
effect from 12 November 2020.

3. During the year, Mr. Ho Wei Sem, Mr. Qu Jinping and Mr.
Huang Zhi Wei waived their directors’ fees under their
letters of appointment.

None of the Directors received or will receive any
emoluments in respect of a person accepting office as a

director during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ —E -——#F+_—F=+—

10A.BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the Directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2020: HK$4,036,500).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

the
Company did not pay consideration to any third parties

During the year ended 31 December 2021,

for making available directors’ services (2020: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and

connected entities with such directors (2020: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts
Save as disclosed in the heading of “Subsequent

Events” of the section “Management Discussion and

Analysis” of this annual report and related party
transactions as disclosed in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the heading of “Related
of the section

Party Transactions” “Report of the

Directors”, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Company'’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year (2020: same).
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

10B.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 10B.EEfRFIRZ
2021 2020
T —F —EFF
HK$000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Wages, salaries, allowances and fresTE 2R

other benefits HAEH| 377,548 338,859
Pension costs — defined contributed plans  3RKIEFI5T &I 2 # 2,063 2,536

Pension costs — social securities BIKER B 2 U
in the PRC FENTERES 36,053 18,510
415,664 359,905

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, two (2020: three) were the Directors, details
of whose emoluments are included in note 10A to the
consolidated financial statements. The emoluments of all
of the five individuals with the highest emoluments for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

EaLiiMzES
rEESSMERAMNEE ZD > WML
(CBE-TF =) HESF HEE
ABEZEVMESEHINGREMBHREN
HIOABE_Z - —GFRER_ZBE_EF
+BA=+—HLEEERSMEN AN
BEMNMEETOT

2021 2020

B —fF —ETEHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FAET FAET

Fees wE - -
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e B REMERN 7,366 9,734
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 8,483 6,831
Pension fund BIKE - 4,037
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BK@F] 5128 2 R 311 447
16,160 21,049

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

10B.EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
Their emoluments are within the following bands:

108. I EBFIHZ (&

RELfifFMzER &
BEZME T FTIAER

Number of individuals

EE%E
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIERF
Emolument bands B < &8 &
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 B TE
2,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 BT E
2,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 TE
3,000,0007& 7T 2 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 E
4,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 TE
5,000,0007 7% 1 1
HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000 10,500,0018 5 E
11,000,0007& 7T - 1
5 5

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
or other members of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join, upon joining the Group, leave the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

BE_T_TER-_FT-—F+A
Z+—HLEFE AEEHEREAR
SERIEE P A AR
T UMERRSIREFEMA S RINAEE
B Sl Rk R A S By 2 S S A R R A

&e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11.

Hong Kong profits tax

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for 2021 is
calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-
tiered Profits Tax rate regime. For this subsidiary, the first
HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits are taxed at 8.25% and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.

The PRC enterprise income tax

(i) Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
"EIT Law") and implementation of the EIT Law, the rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%. The Group's subsidiaries
in the PRC are subject to the PRC income tax at 25%
unless otherwise specified.

(ii) High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE")
According to the EIT Law and its relevant regulations,
entities that qualified as HNTE are entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15%. Certain of the
Group's subsidiaries are qualified as HNTE and are
subject to income tax at 15% for 2021.

The 15% preferential tax rate applicable to HNTE is
subject to renewal approval jointly by the relevant
authorities, upon expiry of the three-year grant period,
according to the prevailing income tax regulations.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1. FRiSIMER (&
2021 2020
—B_—F —EIEHF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET
Tax charge comprises: MIEZHEE
Current tax HARR I
Hong Kong profits tax EANER
Current year KEE 2,388 1,429
Over-provision in prior years FTFEEZR (124) (191)
2,264 1,238
The PRC enterprise income tax PEEEMSR
Current year KEE 18,677 16,059
(Over-provision)/Under-provision in prior FEE (Z18) /iR
years (2,294) 164
16,383 16,223
Deferred tax (note 22) IEIEFRIR (Hf5E22)
Deferred taxation relating to the REREREES K (FH) 2
origination and (reversal) of IRIETR TR
temporary differences 7,373 (7,916)
Impact of change in tax rate MEEEHTE 2,894 -
10,267 (7,916)
Income tax expense for the year FEZFERER 28,914 9,545
ZZT—FEH o Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
-  IREMBRRME (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &Z —&FE _—&F+ _H=+—HIFFEZ

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11.
The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using

FRSKER (&)

FEBBFRRANGA B LUERRES AT
w2 AR R ELE ZIEmME A

the domestic taxation rates applicable to profits of the 2Mh
consolidated companies as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEHF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Profit before tax BRI A& 113,119 35,423
Tax calculated at the domestic income WU ZAHFFEE16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) (ZE-FF 1 16.5%) 5178 18,665 5,845
Tax effect of share of results of e =—YNCIESEap =P
associates T (848) (432)
Tax effect of expenses that are not ST E PSRRI A BF A AT
deductible in determining MENEZHREBE &
taxable profit 7,295 6,945
Tax effect of income that is not ST EFESR IR A R E AR
taxable in determining HWABREBEZ 2
taxable profit (606) (2,019)
Under-provision of current tax NEFERPRIEEE
in current year, net IR ER 603 313
Over-provision of current tax BREFERPRIERE
in prior years, net EZ- (2,418) (27)
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible  fERBERFER Z BIH0E
temporary differences previously EEMEEREZEE
not recognised - (3,150)
Tax effect of temporary differences/tax IR BHRMHEE RIE
losses not recognised EEERBECEE 5,827 810
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses  FRBFRERZIRIE
previously not recognised BiECEE (3,259) (1,494)
Impact of change in tax rate MEEEFTE 2,894 -
Additional deductible allowance for  #ff & & FHBIZEINMRFEITA
research and development expense (5,485) -
Effect of different tax rates of FHMAZEHEELE 2
subsidiaries operating in other MEARMREERZE
jurisdictions 6,246 2,754
28,914 9,545
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12.

13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 BiZ —E -——#F+_—F=+—

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

The calculation of basic earnings per ordinary share
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company is based
on the Group's profit for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company approximately HK$89,732,000
(2020: approximately HK$19,578,000) and the weighted
average number of 861,930,692 (2020: 861,930,692)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were

no potential ordinary shares in issue for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE)

12.

13.

e MBS ERRME ()

HILFEEZ

sREBEHN-—E

AABIREFBAEEESREERER
BFDERAABIRERBE AEBOEFE
NEBEEFN L %89,732,0008 T (ZF
TE4E 1 4919,578,0005B ) RERB
T E @G INHE T I AL 80861,930,692k%
(ZZ =4 :861,930,6920%) st&E -

HREBE_E - —FRZE2ZTF+Z
B=Zt+—BIEERTEBEEELET

ZER ALTE2SREEIR R
R o
FEMNFERER ZEMEE

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX Wz, (ZH)
Tax effects relating to each component of other BREMEERE (ZH) AR5
comprehensive income/(expense) are as follows: ZIRBEEWNT .
2021 2020
ZEZ-f Z2I%F
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax  Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount  expenses amount amount expenses amount
3] nisiRE EEl NEE
&8  MEER &8 8 RBEAR &8
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Share of other comprehensive e AT H A
income of associates 2ENE 934 - 934 1,904 - 1,904
Surplus on revaluation of properties ~ ERYEEHRE
held for own use 17,461 (674) 16,787 13,707 (2,658) 11,049
Exchange differences arising from BEENEBUHRRN
translation of financial statements EEZERER
of foreign operations 37,306 - 37,306 74,494 - 74,494
Reclassification adjustments: ENNEEE:
Release of translation reserve upon HERE AR
disposal of subsidiaries REREERL - - - (1,621) - (1,621)
Release of translation reserve upon FH—BRE AT
deregistration of a subsidiary RERHERL 348 - 348 106 - 106
Release of translation reserve upon HE—REEARN
disposal of an associate REREERL - - - 49 - 49
56,049 (674) 55,375 88,639 (2,658) 85,981
ZZT—FEH o Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &t — & ——F+_H=+—HIFFE

14. DIVIDEND

15.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final

14. g8
EESrESREEE_S_—F+=

dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (31 B=+—HLEFERPRE (CTEZF
December 2020: Nil). F+ZA=+—H 8] -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. W% -BE KRB
Ownership
interest in
leasehold land
and buildings Furniture, Assets
held for own fixtures and Plant and Motor under
use equipment machinery vehicles construction Total
BREE
THREFH HiRE
FiE Rk T BERE% RE TEIR fafE
HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
COST OR VALUATION RAHEE
At 1 January 2020 RZ2Z%5-F-H 422,764 195,132 654,673 31,274 2,327 1,306,170
Exchange realignment EREE 18,469 10,426 29,656 1,305 150 60,006
On disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT - (1,878) (7.913) (190) - (9,981)
Reclassification ENNE - - 148 - (148) -
Additions RE 118 10,814 13,732 1,677 7 26,348
Disposals HE - (19,940) (40,650) (2,409) - (62,999)
Adjustment on revaluation EGrckd (2,039) - - - - (2,039)
At 31 December 2020 and RZZZEE+-A=1-H
1 January 2021 RZEZ-5-F-H 439,312 194,554 649,646 31,657 2,336 1,317,505
Exchange realignment ERBE 8,902 5,073 13,962 609 314 28,860
Transfer from right-of-use assets upon RIREERE
exercise of purchase option (note 17) RERREESES (H17) - - 8,519 - - 8,519
Reclassification ENNE - 2,404 - - (2,404) -
Additions RE 82 7,510 12,630 2,236 17,307 39,765
Disposals HE - (7,148) (29,330) (3,103) - (39,581)
Adjustment on revaluation BB 1,317 - - - - 1317
At 31 December 2021 RZE2--%+-R=+-H 449,613 202,393 655,427 31,399 17,553 1,356,385
Analysis of cost or valuation: AR EEZ 2
At 31 December 2021 RZE2-_-£+-A=+-H
At cost BHAE - 202,393 655,427 31,399 17,553 906,772
At valuation BihfE 449,613 - - - - 449,613
449,613 202,393 655,427 31,399 17,553 1,356,385
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEF+°A=+-H
At cost AR - 194,554 649,646 31,657 2,336 878,193
At valuation Bt 439312 - - - - 439,312
439,312 194,554 649,646 31,657 2,336 1,317,505

REEHEERRAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PA=EAN
g g =

RAFFERR M EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

15. ME -BERRE (&

(Continued)
Ownership
interest in
leasehold land
and buildings Furniture, Assets
held for own fixtures and Plant and Motor under
use equipment machinery vehicles construction Total
BRHEE
THREFH RS
iR ELH BERER HE HRIR af
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION, RE BERAE
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-%£-F-A - 173,545 511,443 23,765 - 708,753
Exchange realignment EREE 575 8,944 20,986 943 - 31,448
On disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT - (767) (3,025) (125) - (3917)
Depreciation provided for the year KERERE 15,171 9,136 34,289 2,512 - 61,108
Written back on disposals HER R - (19,641) (37,395) (2,278) - (59,314)
Eliminated on revaluation ERY 6l (15,746) - - - - (15,746)
At 31 December 2020 and RZEZ%F+-A=1+—H
1 January 2021 RZE--%-A-H - 171,217 526,298 24,817 - 722,332
Exchange realignment EREZ 154 4,343 10,145 455 - 15,097
Transfer from right-of-use assets upon RiTEEE R
exercise of purchase option (note 77) FREEESY (H#17) - - 2,609 - - 2,609
Depreciation provided for the year FERERE 15,990 9,671 31,681 2,593 - 59,935
Written back on disposals HEREE - (6,963) (27,984) (2,693) - (37,640)
Eliminated on revaluation ESGyite (16,144) - - - - (16,144)
At 31 December 2021 R-2-_-£+-A=+-AH - 178,268 542,749 25,172 - 746,189
NET BOOK VALUES KEFE
At 31 December 2021 RZE--%+ZB=+-H 449,613 24,125 112,678 6,227 17,553 610,196
At 31 December 2020 RZBZEFE+ZA=+-H 439,312 23,337 123,348 6,840 2,336 595,173
ZZT—FEH o Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings of the
Group were revalued as at 31 December 2021 on the open
market existing use basis by Cushman & Wakefield Limited,
independent firms of professional valuers. The surplus
arising on revaluation attributable to the Group has been
credited to other comprehensive income for the year and
is accumulated separately in equity in property revaluation
reserve.

Depreciation expense of approximately HK$44,037,000
(2020: approximately HK$46,238,000) has been expensed
in cost of sales, approximately HK$814,000 (2020:
approximately HK$755,000) in selling and distribution costs
and approximately HK$15,084,000 (2020: approximately
HK$14,115,000) in administrative expenses.

Had ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortisation, the carrying value of leasehold land and
buildings would have been approximately HK$304,508,000
(2020: approximately HK$312,198,000).

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's ownership
interest in leasehold land and buildings held for own
use with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$159,970,000 (2020: approximately HK$158,958,000)
were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings granted to
the Group (note 38).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

15. ME -BERRE (&

HERTERAE (B2 EEMHE)
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BFNmEEEGRETEG - FEHM
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WEERAA44,037,0008 7 (ZF
Z T4 446,238,000 70) B ET
AR ERZ > 49814,0008 7T (T8
T EFE I 4755,0008 ) ROHER
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14,115,0007% 7T) RITEER
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AR REHITE R #HE > HE T &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs, i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

16. ERFEEFE

(i

AT BEEREE
TREIWRKREEEHFESE
EENMEZAFEE LEREE
AP RS 2ERI 1357 A EES
EFMRAEZATEBE=ZBEES
RHEMTERAE - BATEENE
DEZZERDE2ENTHERS
AFRBBEZIEREREEY
BET:

—RBREE: EERAF - ERE
AHE BRFEAREEENS
BRERHH 2 REHERE) 5t
B2 RTVEE

BERMEE: @ﬂ%%:#&@)\
g BIREEINFEF—REBRZIE
BEAYME BXREAEARTT
BERBUARRB sSTEZAFEE.
TR HREARESED S EE
ZEABIE -

B-EREE  KAEATITEREE

R EZATFEE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES

(Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Recurring fair value
measurement of assets:
Ownership interest in leasehold
land and buildings held

for own use

Recurring fair value
measurement of assets:
Ownership interest in leasehold
land and buildings held

for own use

224 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

RN AT B
SR
EAELIR
BPORARR

RENATRE
HEEE:
SREALIR
B R

(i)

31 December
2021
RZEZ—%
+=ZB=+—H
HKS$'000
FAET

449,613

31 December
2020
RIBZEHF
+ZB=+—H
HK$'000
FET

439,312

16. MELAFEEHNE (B

ATFEERS (E

Fair value measurement at
31 December 2021 categorised into
RZEBZ—-F+"A=+—8H
ATAEHRIENTHHE

Level 1

F—EB=R
HK$000
FET

Level 2

BIER
HK$'000
FHET

Level 3

F=EX
HK$ 000
FAET

449,613

Fair value measurement at

31 December 2020 categorised into
RoE-SE+-A=+—8
NTBEFEFUATHE

Level 1
E—E%
HK$'000

FAET

Level 2

FEX
HK$ 000
FET

Level 3
EZER

HK$'000
FET

439,312



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021,
there were no transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s ownership interest in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use were revalued as at
31 December 2021. The valuations were carried out by
independent firm of professional valuers, Cushman &
Wakefield Limited, which is a world-wide commercial
real estate services firm with recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued. The
Group's property manager and the chief financial
officer have discussion with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuations
are performed at the annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

Valuation techniques

fhE Rl

Ownership interest in leasehold (a) Direct comparison approach

land and buildings held for

own use BEELEBRHER
BERAETHRIEFTH
PrEEED (b) Income approach

WG B

16. MELAFEEHNE (B

()

AFEERS (E

R _EBE_EFER_EB_—F+Z
A=Z+—HEFEERIL KA &3
Eo-EARIRE=BREL -EF
AT EERBERzEREE &
BRAEEZBR RREEEAR

=7
a1 ©

FTEXASEEZZBEREE LM KIZ
FHAMBEEEZN T - —F
+TTRA=t—HESTEMRH-ZEM
TFRBIzFXGEM-BER
TERAS (RRMNBERME
BRHEABDEEEREMRYER
BRAMEGLER) Tl -REE
RERA AEEZYELERERE
MEREENFEEGRZRR
oA REE(ENE 5% ©

(i) FZBRATFEEFEEH

Unobservable input

TABREYE

(Discount)/premium on quality
of building
BFEEN (M) aE

Capitalisation rate
BAEX

Range

#

-1% to 10%

-1%ZE10%

4% t0 7.5%
4%ET7.5%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES
(Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

(Continued)

(i)

(a)

The fair value of properties located in Hong Kong
is determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis,
adjusted for a premium or a discount specific to
the quality of the Group's properties compared
to the recent sales. The valuations take into
account the characteristic of the properties which
included the location, size, view, floor level, year
of completion and other factors collectively. Higher
premium for higher quality properties will result in
a higher fair value measurement.

The fair value of properties in the PRC is
determined using income approach by the
capitalisation of the net rental income derived
from the existing leases and/or achievable in
existing market with reversionary income potential
by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates.
Capitalisation is estimated by the valuer based on
the risk profile of the properties being valued. The
higher the rates, the lower the fair value. Prevailing
market rents are estimated based on recent lettings
within the subject properties and other comparable
properties. The lower the rents, the lower the fair
value.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

>
-
—

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

16. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF PROPERTIES 16. MEALAFEEGTZE B)

(Continued)
(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement (i) F=ZBRXLATFEEI=EEN (&
(Continued)
(b) (Continued) (b) (#&
The movements during the year in the balance FEZBARFTEBESENG
of these Level 3 fair value measurements are as BRAFEENZEBUT !
follows:

2021 2020
—E-—%F —EIEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Ownership interest in leasehold BERAE T KRIEFH
land and buildings held FrE#ERR
for own use:
At 1 January w—A—H 439,312 422,764
Additions wE 82 118
Exchange realignment EREE 8,748 17,894
Depreciation provided for the year FEEITERH (15,990) (15,171)
Surplus on revaluation EERER 17,461 13,707
At 31 December W+-B=+—H 449,613 439,312
Surplus on revaluation and currency adjustment of BREBEE T MRIEFTHME R
ownership interest in leasehold land and buildings mZ2EBEHBRBRREBRAEE DA
held for own use is recognised in other comprehensive BRREMEZERGETN MES
income in “property revaluation reserve” and EREEHIMDER G -

“translation reserve” respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

CEC— A=A

17. EHESE

Land use Plant and Land and Motor
rights  machinery buildings vehicles Total
iiﬁ!ﬁﬂﬂg BEREE IHRIETF _E 1
(note a) (note b)
(fifsta) (Hitztb)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
cosT zt:
At 1 January 2020 S = 54,033 7,775 67,804 608 130,220
Exchange realignment ,ERDH” 3,788 677 3,937 - 8,402
Additions NE - 3,137 340 - 3,477
Early termination of RAIZIETHEEARR
lease contracts - - (290) - (290)
Written off s - - (1,210) - (1,210)
At 31 December 2020 and A_BCEE
1 January 2021 +ZB=+—Hk
- 57,821 11,589 70,581 608 140,599
Exchange realignment ERAE 1,714 369 1,831 - 3,914
Additions = - 2,007 9,373 - 11,380
Transfer to property, plant and R /TEHE B ERE
equipment upon exercise of  BEYE \BEX
purchase option (note 15) BB (Hia15) - (8,519) - - (8,519)
Written off i - - (6,531) - (6,531)
At 31 December 2021 B -
+ZB=+—-H 59,535 5,446 75,254 608 140,843
ACCUMULATED Rt E
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2020 —ETE—-F—H 6,103 1,316 12,767 61 30,247
Exchange realignment Emﬁ*ﬂ 1,403 135 1,239 - 2,777
Depreciation provided FERERRE
for the year 1,165 902 13,050 122 15,239
Early termination of lease RAZILTHEEARR
contracts - - (92) - (92)
Written off s - - (1,210) - (1,210)
At 31 December 2020 and RZE_Z&
1 January 2021 +-B=1+—
- —F— EI 18,671 2,353 25,754 183 46,961
Exchange realignment ERHE 579 82 697 - 1,358
Depreciation provided FENELRRE
for the year 1,249 924 13,791 122 16,086
Transfer to property, plant and 1T 8 SR &
equipment upon exercise of  BEME FEK
purchase option (note 15) RE (WE15) - (2,609) - - (2,609)
Written off iz - - (6,531) - (6,531)
At 31 December 2021 RZE_—F
+ZA=+—-H 20,499 750 33,711 305 55,265
NET BOOK VALUES REFE
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F
+ZA=+—-H 39,036 4,69 41,543 303 85,578
At 31 December 2020 RZE-%E
+-RA=+—H 39,150 9,236 44,827 425 93,638

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

18.

17. EREEBE (&)

Note a:  The land use rights had a remaining lease term of Mizta: LTI BERAENFGHEERAR10
between 10 to 50 years. At 31 December 2021, certain ESQF - R _E-_—HF+°-A8
of the Group’s land use rights with an aggregate —t+t—H O AEBEEREBERELNS
carrying value of approximately HK$3,217,000 (2020: 3,217,000 T (ZEZFF 1
approximately HK$3,345,000) were pledged to secure 3,345,00078 7T) BYEp 15 £ 65 A 4
certain bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 38). BIEIRF ERR T AERARR

TRERZER W:238) o

Note b:  The Group has leased several land and buildings for Wizt AEBCHEA ST REBFE
offices and factories. Lease terms are negotiated on an WMAEREERR HEGRRZE
individual basis and contain a wide range of terms and BB BN > 6 & A [B) B 8RR Az 16
conditions. Tenures of the leases range from 1 to 10 HFoFHEAIEI0F
years.

GOODWILL 18. &

HK$°000
FAET
cosT 9783
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 N Z_EZETFE—HF—H»
and 31 December 2021 “EIEF+A=+—H8HkK
—E-—H+-RA=+—H 53,483
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT R5tiRE
At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 RWIE2EZIZEF—H—HK
22+ °A=+—H -

Impairment loss recognised for the year REESHBAERBIE 20,487

At 31 December 2021 RTE—F+A=1—H 20,487

CARRYING AMOUNT IREE

At 31 December 2021 R_Z2_—%+"-B=+—H 32,996

At 31 December 2020 N TECERE+_RA=+—H 53,483

“ECEHFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

The amount represents goodwill arising from the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
("KFE") in 2013. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill has been allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit, representing KFE, a subsidiary in the processing and
trading of printed circuit boards segment.

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit is
determined based on a value in use calculation which uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period and a pre-tax
discount rate of 20.2% (2020: 19.0%) per annum. The cash
flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated
using a steady 3% (2020: 3%) per annum growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the printed circuit boards industry
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the printed circuit boards industry.
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin. Such estimations are based
on KFE's past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. The Directors believe that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount of KFE to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount of KFE.

The Directors reviewed the carrying value of the goodwill,
taking into account an independent valuation report
prepared by a professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield
Limited. Based on the assessment and the valuation report,
as a result of facing more operational challenges due to a
squeeze in supply chains resulting from shortages in labour,
raw materials and components, as well as tight logistics
capacity, all putting upward pressure on costs which led to
decrease in gross margin of KFE's products, an impairment
loss of HK$20,487,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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EEEAR _—_E—=FRKEHEZ
BERNEEEERAR (M _8) H
100% & Atz m & 4 o BUE R 2 MU
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ZREEEEUNPIWOEIEERTHIZHE
REESSE ERAENREEEM AN
EEHMBRE FANEXR202% (&2
TTZFF 119.0%) IMATRIRER 2
BNESFRTNEFEREERMA3I%
(Z2ZZ2F 13%) N TFREFHE
B RXEANEBIARRAMMIIT
FIRRTEA - BB EN R 4R B AR I T
TENFHRAERR -SHEEAEE
M EMBIRRR MRS MA R Hh
SHAER HhEEREHE REF XD
BB ILEFEERBR _BEZBER
BREEBHTHERNTAR EFH
B EEAGENTEFHEBERT M
ZEBRBRIGERHR _ENREEE
BBHR RO EEE-

EFXCERBENREBE AREE
IREXEGEMN-BERTAERRAR
ZHIUGERS REFENEER

T HRBE; N R Z 8 RE R

BRHEBRERE URYRENRR
ﬁéﬁﬁuuﬁii%y}:ﬂ WEMATRT L
TRD BRHR_EEMNENXT
B RBaE_T_—F+-_FB=+—
HIEFERGS RS REDREREIR
20,487,00078 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

N~ — 5 —

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&FE _—F+_FH=+—HIFFEZ

19. B EE

Customer
relationship
ZEERR
HK$'000
FET
cosT B
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 A _ETEF—FB—HB-
and 31 December 2021 TECEFE+"HA=+—HK
2 -F+”-“HA=+—H 13,831
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Retigty
At 1 January 2020 N ZEZEZF—HF—H 8,760
Amortisation for the year FE#IH 1,383
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 NZZ2ZE2F+"HA=+—HK
—_gE-—F—HF—H 10,143
Amortisation for the year FE 1,383
At 31 December 2021 A _E T —F+_A=+—H 11,526
CARRYING AMOUNT BREE
At 31 December 2021 N ZE—F+ZHA=+—H 2,305
At 31 December 2020 N ZEEF+ZHA=+—H 3,688

Customer relationship is amortised on a straight-line basis

over its useful life of 10 years.

ERRERBEREIRIEEREN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. BHE AT

2021 2020
—E-—% —ToTE
HKS$'000 HK$000
FAET FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR > BANE 7,680 7,680

Share of post-acquisition profits and ~ DEUREE®R 2 5 F) KR
reserves, net of dividends received (OBBEWRE) 31,393 26,847
39,073 34,527
Amounts due from associates JE U B A B Rk IE 8,729 10,261

Less: allowance for impairment of B RIBERBERE

bad and doubtful debts (6,278) (6,278)
2,451 3,983
41,524 38,510

(@) Amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In
the opinion of the Directors, the amounts will not
be repayable within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period and are accordingly classified as non-
current assets. The individually impaired receivable of
approximately HK$6,278,000 (2020: HK$6,278,000)
is mainly a debt due from an associate which is of
age over three years. The other amounts due from
associates do not contain impaired assets.

(b) Interests in associates at the end of the reporting period

include goodwill of approximately HK$313,000 (2020:
HK$313,000).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & —E_—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20. BHEATIHEEE (2
Details of the principal associates of the Group at 31 KEBFEHE AN _ZEZ—F+Z
December 2021 are as follows: B=+—HZEHBUOT :

Proportion of

Place of nominal value of
incorporation/ registered capital
registration attributable
Name of associate and operation to the Group Principal activities
AV FEBEAG
=R E R EMES
BE QR %E FRiZ it 75 E{EZ LA FEER
%
Suzhou Sanguang Science & The PRC 21.1 Manufacturing of industrial
Technology Co., Ltd. machinery, equipment
and supplies
FRIN=HREZRBBRAE a2 TERM RER
TXAmRE
Guangzhou Potop Experimental The PRC 22.5 Manufacturing and trading
Analysis Instrument Co., Ltd. of the experimental
analysis instrument
BNTERERITESRERAE ERDMBRRERES
The above table lists out the associates of the Group which, M ERERBERBDILEREERAE
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results HAFEEXERN L EEBFXRFTEERS
of the Group for the year or form a substantial portion of BRAMMmMRY

the net assets of the Group at the end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 20.

In the opinion of the Directors, the associates of the
Group are all individually not material. Aggregate financial

information in respect of the Group’s associates is set out

CEC— A=A

BEATEDR (&7
%%%%K%Hz%%@ﬂ%%%@%
FER - FEBEZHELDVREUBTE
RERFIIT

below:
2021 2020
—E-— —EoTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Aggregate carrying amount of REEHBRRPEFIEEKX
individually immaterial associates in ~ B&E AR SEREE
the consolidated financial statements 39,073 34,527
Aggregate amounts of the Group's FEBRGEBMEATDGEEE
share of those associates
Profit from continuing operations FERE 2w A 5,140 2,617
Other comprehensive income Hhemlam 934 1,904
Total comprehensive income WermEml = 6,074 4,521

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & —E_—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

21. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 21. BN SR EFIE

Present value of

Minimum lease receipts minimum lease receipts
REHEEWRA REREWRAZIRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
“EZ—f CZEIZF ZEBZ—H CETIZF
HKS$000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts receivable under FEWmERERE
finance leases: o I
Not later than one year —ER 152,773 100,415 141,408 93,953
Later than one year and B_ERE
not later than five years 82,542 31,343 76,976 29,014
235,315 131,758 218,384 122,967
Less: Unearned finance income 7 : REBRHFFHUA (16,931) (8,791) N/AREH NATBHE
218,384 122,967 218,384 122,967
Overdue finance lease AHENRERE
receivables ESQIE] 65,860 97,164 65,860 97,164
Present value of minimum REHAERAZ
lease receipts REEE 284,244 220,131 284,244 220,131
Less: Allowance for impairment 8 : RIZERBEZEE
of bad and doubtful debts (7,896) (20,171) (7,896) (20,171)
276,348 199,960 276,348 199,960
Less: Finance lease receivables B : I ARBIBEZ
under current assets FEWmMERE
B QL] (200,143) (171,526)
Non-current finance lease FERBENMERE
receivables TIE 76,205 28,434
The Group has entered into finance lease arrangements with ERENERE I MERELZH -BE
their customers. The terms of finance leases entered into for HERENSEITHRERA—FRMmE-

periods ranged from one to four years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

21. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

21. BIRBERERIE (&

RIZRHERBESBERIOT

2021 2020

—2_—F “_ECEHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Balance at 1 January n—B—B#eR 20,171 15,008
Exchange realignment EREE 411 1,191
Impairment loss recognised MRz HERE 3,461 4,969
Unused amount reversed (O] 485 < & FH 248 (16,147) (997)
Balance at 31 December R+ZBE=+—H#&8x 7,896 20,171

At 31 December 2021, the allowance for credit loss
represents lifetime expected credit loss recognised for
finance lease receivables under simplified approach. Details
of impairment assessment of finance lease receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 39(b)
(iv).

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and there were no
unguaranteed residual values in connection with finance
lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements of the
Group that need to be recorded as at 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).

Finance lease receivable balances are secured over the plant
and equipment leased. The Group is not permitted to sell
or re-pledge the collateral in the absence of default by the
lessee.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the
contract date for the entire lease term. The effective interest
rates are ranging from 2.7% to 26.9% per annum (2020:
from 3.2% to 24.3% per annum).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MR M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

N — 5 T

—_—

VA=A
g g =

22 RERMIEEE GAFE
LT A ERDRINELERESE

The following are the major components of deferred tax

assets/(liabilities) recognised by the Group and movements

FrHA=+—HIFEE

(BRI NEIEXMNEAFERLFE

thereon during the current and prior years: 2 &H)
Intangible
assets arising  Decelerated  Revaluation
from business tax  of land and Tax
combination  depreciation building losses Others Total
EBGH
Ef2 Wi Tk
BREE  WERRE BFEMR REeRE Hitr Lk
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 RI2ZZFE-F—H (838) 441 (17,429) 1,338 16,432 (56)
Exchange realignment ERBEE - - (435) 8 1,303 876
Charged to equity RERNRE - - (2,658) - - (2,658)
Credited to income statement ~ RUERFIA (#z#11)
(note 11) 228 314 - 898 6,476 7916
At 31 December 2020 and RIEZZE+ZA=1—H
1 January 2021 kRZEZ-F—-A—H (610) 755 (20,522) 2,244 24,211 6,078
Exchange realignment ERHE - - (264) - 615 351
Impact of change in tax rate nEgHYE - - 2,048 - (2,894) (846)
Charged to equity i dazilcs - - (2722) - - (2722)
(Charged)/credited to income RIS (08) /FIA (11
statement (note 11) 228 86 - (2,244) (5,443) (7.373)
At 31 December 2021 RZE2Z-F+ZF=1—-H (382) 841 (21,460) - 16,489 (4,512)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

For the purposes of consolidated statement of financial
position presentation, certain deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
have been offset in accordance with the conditions set out
in HKAS 12. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position:

2. RIEMIBREE BfFE (&

R aMHBRRRZBRA THIREE B
SR EABI2RZBEEAEEREN
BEMEBEE (B8 KEHEH > T
RE2INEREM BN NRABELER
TRERER DA

2021 2020

—E-—% —ToTE

HK$000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Deferred tax assets FIERIEE = 28,722 34,470
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERIEEE (33,234) (28,392)
(4,512) 6,078

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31
December 2021, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$501,113,000 (2020: HK$503,027,000)
available for offset against future profits. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$136,615,000 (2020: HK$146,861,000) that will expire in
five years and the remaining balance does not expire under
the current tax legislation.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
associates are insignificant.
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23. INVENTORIES

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

23. 78
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (@) KEMBRRERPNEFESRE:
position comprise:
2021 2020
—E”—F —E2TE2HF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FAET
Trading inventories and B EFEREMN M
finished goods 190,400 148,546
Work in progress TR 114,520 126,662
Raw materials AR 237,509 175,000
542,429 450,208
At 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of RIZEZ—HF+"A=+—H %
inventories that were stated at fair value less costs SE2EEELEAFTEEREE
to sell is approximately HK$151,340,000 (2020: B AR E497%151,340,000%8 75 (Z
HK$76,537,000). T T4 1 76,537,00058 7T) HIER ©
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) MAEABZUFABTNGEFES
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: EOMAT
2021 2020
—E-— —EBoEE
HK$°000 HK3$'000
FAET FAET
Carrying amount of inventories sold B H& & &I EREE 2,531,908 2,019,382
Write-down of inventories EFEMER 18,576 8,357
Reversal of write-down of = & MUR [l
inventories (19,670) (3,696)
2,530,814 2,024,043
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24. B 5 KR EMEWRRIE

2021 2020

—E-—% —ToTE

HK$000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Trade and bills receivables B 5 R ERERRIE 907,240 853,447
Less: allowance for impairment of B RIBERBERE

bad and doubtful debts (106,000) (112,031)

801,240 741,416

Other receivables Hih W FIa 65,685 113,267
Less: allowance for impairment of B RIBRBERE

bad and doubtful debts (16,705) (17,544)

48,980 95,723

Prepayments TR 37,153 28,623

Amounts due from related parties FE W R B 75 2 FRIE 27 52

887,400 865,814

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables approximate to their fair values. All
trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

EXEMRISEZEEMBURMZREE
HHEANFEEMEL REBS REME
WORRIR TR AR S — F PO Uk [2] 3 R 58 7% 7
Fo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IREMBRRME B -

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group grants an average credit period of 90 days to

24. BH KR EMBUWRIE (&)
AEBGTHEHERZFHAEEHR0
RENOR-BANAEBZEERRKR
HEZSREWRREREEZEERRE
AR EE39(b)(v)  RIREEHEH %
HEROZENRRERAEREFENE
5 K EWERBERURERE DI ¢

120 days to customers. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills
receivable are set out in note 39(b)(iv). An aging analysis of
the trade and bills receivables at the end of the reporting
period based on the invoice date and net of allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debt is as follows:

2021 2020

B —EoTE

HK$000 HK$'000

FAET FET

0 to 3 months EFE={FEH 550,778 586,318
4 to 6 months HEXRM@EA 156,189 74,156
7 to 9 months tENEA 52,790 41,456
Over 9 months tBiE L E A 41,483 39,486
801,240 741,416

The movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and

doubtful debts of the Group are as follows:

FEBNWRIBRAERE Z ST
o

Trade receivables

2021 2020

g —F ZEIEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FAET FAET

Balance at 1 January N—HA—B#8R 112,031 103,553
Exchange realignment ERFE 2,996 6,438
Impairment loss recognised Mz RERE 7,708 9,903
Unused amounts reversed o] $8% < & FH S48 (10,307) (2,818)
Uncollectible amounts written off i 5 1~ BT UL [B1 B9 SRR (6,428) (5,045)
Balance at 31 December R+ZB=+—H#&ex 106,000 112,031
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

24. B KR EMBUWRIE (&)

Other receivables

H{hFEWFRIE
2021 2020
g —F —ETEHF
HK$°000 HK$000
FAET FAET
Balance at 1 January W—AB—B#ek 17,544 16,486
Exchange realignment ERFEE 492 1,062
Impairment loss recognised M 2 BB 18 15 -
Unused amounts reversed (O] 5 R B 3 8 ZE (1,346) (4)
Balance at 31 December RH+—B=+—H4%% 16,705 17,544

The above allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts is a provision for individually impaired trade receivables
and impaired other receivables. The individually impaired
trade receivables mainly represent sales made to the PRC
customers which have remained long overdue. The impaired
other receivables relate to debtors that have been long
outstanding without settlement or having any business
relationship with the Group. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables are the following
amounts denominated in the following currencies:

United States Dollars E7T
Renminbi NS
Japanese Yen Hot

26,436,000
531,257,000
210,520,000

Et R IR AR E B 2 8 5 B RUEREUR
TRIE e B (B H th FE W IR 4 o ()
EREREREZRFEETEZAHE THEH
BERZBHRMER - BERENEMER
MRRERPAR M ERERREEMA
EBRGR - AEEN LIRRIWTRIER
ERSErgiRsige SR %Hk-

B RHAMBURBERBE®EMT

2020
BT

22,582,000
559,347,000
136,110,000

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



25. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

25. HithEmMEE

2021 2020
—EZ—F —ETEHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FAET
Measured at fair value through BAFEES AER
profit or loss

Unlisted equity investment (note a) JErTHERRE (Wita) 7,085 4,753
Unlisted unit trust funds (note b) JEEMEfERES Btb) 46,486 245
53,571 4,998

Notes: Bzt -
(@) The investment engaged in providing environmental service in (a) RESEFEATENRSREHIRIER

the PRC. o

(b)  The fair values of the unlisted unit trust funds were based on by JFLEMEBEUGETEENATFEERE

net assets value of the investment funds at the end of the
reporting period provided by the financial institutions.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

REREERHETIR
BEETHNPEEEE.

26. HERIVITHEER

SHEEHERR

2021 2020
T —F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET

Short-term bank deposits with maturity ZIEiHBB=@2 =~
over three months (note (a)) RERIRITERR (Bat(a)) 7.339 3,196

Pledged bank deposits BIER 2 RITHER

(note (b)) (note 38) (Iatm)) (B1aE38) 8,221 5,941
Cash and cash equivalents (note (¢)) REXIREHE (Witc) 390,497 485,532
406,057 494,669
ZZT—FEH o Annual Report 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Short-term bank deposits with maturity over three
months

Included in short-term bank deposits with maturity over three
months in the consolidated statement of financial position are
the following amounts denominated in the following currency:

Renminbi AR
United States Dollars ES

26.

RERINITHEER (F

et -

(a) EFIHARBE=MEA ZEMRITENR

REEHBRARTIALBE=E

AZERBRTERZRE

6,000,000

ssWT

2020
TE WA

—= =

410,000

Pledged bank deposits
Included in pledged bank deposits in the consolidated

(b) BIEMZRITEM

REEMBRRERPERRZRGTE

statement of financial position are the following amounts MZEBESMT .
denominated in the following currency:
2021 2020
T —F —EZEHF
Renminbi AR 6,721,000 5,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents () RERAEEE
2021 2020
B —F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Bank balances and cash RITHEEGRRIRE 390,497 485,532

Included in bank balances and cash in the consolidated
statement of financial position are the following amounts
denominated in the following currencies:

United States Dollars E7T
Renminbi AR
Japanese Yen Bt
Euro Dollars BLIT

RFEMBRRIRPBITEHRRIRS

ZREBEBMT :

2021
—E—F

10,229,000
171,863,000
116,586,000

180,000

2020
TETEF
10,533,000

256,633,000
55,566,000

99,000

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) -

o

-

AT HBRNE @) —

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

LIABILITIES

(i)

Trade and other payables

Trade and bills payables
Accruals and other payables

B 5 KB RHERE
FEA R R A A

27. BB RHEMEMNRESHNERE

B2 REMENRIE
2021 2020
—F—F —EITHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TAET
697,510 650,120
156,234 159,849
853,744 809,969

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of

trade and other payables approximates to their fair

values. All trade and other payables are expected to be

settled or recognised as income within one year or are

repayable on demand.

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade and bills

payables at the end of the reporting period based on

the date of invoice is as follows:

EXMRBREZ REMEMRIE
ZHREBEREAFEEHEL -FIA
85 Rk EMENRIBERERR R —
FRZINER R W@ NIRENK
Ao

RREEER AEEZEZAH
NEZRENEEREZRE D
T

2021 2020

T —F —EFF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 to 3 months EE=@EH 480,862 485,431
4 to 6 months HENXMBEA 147,803 128,812
7 to 9 months tEZNEA 21,583 14,262
Over 9 months BB EA 47,262 21,615
697,510 650,120
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/CONTRACT 27. B RHEMEMNRIE SH8E
LIABILITIES (Continued) (#)
(i) Trade and other payables (Continued) (i) BSREMEMCRIE (&
Included in trade and other payables are the following B RHEMEMNNIBEREE KW
amounts denominated in the following currencies: ™
2021 2020
—E-—& —E-EE
United States Dollars =TT 6,049,000 6,782,000
Renminbi AR 614,672,000 610,538,000
Japanese Yen Ht 137,424,000 93,718,000
Euro Dollars % - 14,000
(ii) Contract liabilities (i) EHEaRE
2021 2020
T —fF —EIEHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Billings in advance of S E S
performance 77,064 107,687
When the Group receives a deposit before the B AL ET A EEE MBI
production activity commences, this will give rise to R ANAERESOHERE
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the YO EEWNAEI AL - AERE
revenue is recognised. The Group receives deposits BRI BREEANNGIEER
on acceptance of orders on a case by case basis with 1BRMER ©

customers before work commences.

The balance of contract liabilities at 1 January 2021 was NW_EZT—F—HA—HHNEHE
all recognised as revenue during the year of 2021. The BREBEZBN_ZEZI—FERN
amount of billings in advance of performance received AU A - TBUINFRIE & ZE TR HA
is expected to be recognised as income within one year. E—FAFEIBABWA

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

28. BANK BORROWINGS

28. IRITEM

2021 2020
—E-—% —EITE
HKS$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current JETEH
Bank loans RITER
— secured —HBiKHE 6,700 26,208
— unsecured — g 4,998 11,667
11,698 37,875
Current mE
Bank loans RITER
- secured —BEH 44,957 49,601
— unsecured —EIg 244,512 234,868
289,469 284,469
Total borrowings HBER 301,167 322,344

The aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s bank loans
as at 31 December 2021 (that are repayable more than one
year after the end of the reporting period but contain a
repayment on demand clause) that have been reclassified
as current liabilities is approximately HK$4,050,000 (2020:
HK$5,850,000).

These loans are callable by the lenders, but the management
does not expect the lenders to exercise their rights to
demand repayment in normal circumstances.

B —F+_B=+—H > A&EH
4BEEE E494,050,0008 K (ZE2_-F
£ 15,850,000 70) Z IRITER (AN IR
EHEHEN—FRER BHERE
KREMGR BRIERBDEBENDE
AREBE

BRATREREESH BEREHE

HBRAE—RBER TSI EE AR

FEREZEER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The maturity of the bank borrowings based on the scheduled
repayment date set out in the loan agreements ignoring the
effect of any repayment on demand clause are as follows:

28. IRITER (&

REEMHREREERERFERE
B BENSGIHEZREESRAN
o

2021 2020

—E-—=F —ETEF

HK$'000 HK$°000

FAET FET

Within 1 year —FR 285,419 278,619
Between 1 and 2 years —F_F 13,280 27,975
Between 2 and 5 years _EhREF 2,468 15,750
301,167 322,344

The non-current bank borrowings are stated at amortised
cost.

The effective interest rate as at 31 December 2021 for bank
borrowings is 2.65% per annum (2020: 2.98% per annum).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

IERBNIRITIER LA D B A A SRR ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in the
following currencies:

28. SRITfETR (&)
7000 IR T 1 L 5

HlEWMT :

2021 2020
—B_—F —EIEHF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Hong Kong Dollars BT 240,799 246,536
Renminbi AR 60,368 75,808
301,167 322,344

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities: KEBRBZ2EEBREANT -
2021 2020
T —fF —EIZHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Floating rate TR

— expiring within one year — R —FE AT 277,440 288,183

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities
subject to review at various dates during 2021.

Bank borrowings are secured by certain ownership interest in
leasehold land and buildings held for own use and land use
rights of the Group (note 38).

—FRIRMEEENFERE AR
—E - —FHARRE B RETIRE

IRITERURERERHERBAE LMK
18 F RPN A R I K - th (0 PR R (R4 48

(H15£38) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the
current and previous reporting periods:

HERR

TRAPAEBEERM TR RS IR
MBS EFIERSAZI AR ¢

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

—E_-F Z5I%H%
+=B=+-H +-B=+—-H

Present Present

value of the value of the
minimum Minimum minimum Minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
RiEHE REHAE RERE REHEE
SHZHE Fi THZRE Tl
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FET
Within 1 year —ER 15,283 18,725 15,020 18,903
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBREZER 14,184 16,542 10,785 13,719
After 2 years but within 5 years _EBRBRER 22,002 23,881 30,034 33,888
36,186 40,423 40,819 47,607
51,469 59,148 55,839 66,510
Less: total future interest expenses B RRFBATH (7,679) (10,671)
Present value of lease liabilities HESERE 51,469 55,839

The Group leases office properties, factories and plant and
machinery. Leases are negotiated mostly for terms ranging
from 1 to 10 years and rentals are almost fixed for the said
term.

At 31 December 2021, lease liabilities of HK$4,217,000

(2020: HK$5,548,000) are secured by the lessors’ charges
over the leased assets.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

REEBEBBAYE S THRIAKREE
W - BOFERIU—E+FETHD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

-
-
—

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. &
2021 2020
ZEZ-& —ZTEHF
Number of Number of
ordinary ordinary
shares Amount shares Amount
B i R g 2 mE  ZERRE R
HK$'000 HK3$°000
FAET FET
Ordinary shares, issued and BETRGEEER
fully paid:
At 1 January R—FB—H 861,930,692 609,027 861,930,692 609,027
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 861,930,692 609,027 861,930,692 609,027
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the FrELEREZERZMN AL N ER
Company's residual assets. BEo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%

31. OTHER RESERVES

CEC— A=A

31. Hithi# B

Property
revaluation Translation
reserve reserve Others Total
MESHE ERfHE Hith k]
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET
Balance at 1 January 2020 R_E-_EE—-F—-H#iEH 77,830 14,263 679 92,772
Share of reserves of associates S AT HE - 1,904 - 1,904
Surplus on revaluation of properties B BYI¥EHEH
held for own use 12,584 - - 12,584
Deferred taxation adjustment FIERIEER (2,486) - - (2,486)
Exchange differences arising from  BEBIERUHRRFEL L
translation of financial statements ~ EREHE
of foreign operations - 66,843 - 66,843
Release of translation reserve upon ~ HEMBATRLEREERE
disposal of subsidiaries - (1,621) - (1,621)
Release of translation reserve upon  E3—EMBABKIER HE
deregistration of a subsidiary B - 106 - 106
Release of translation reserve upon  HE—BHEARRLER H#E
disposal of an associate B - 49 - 49
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZE-EF+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2021 kZE-Z-F—B—B#&& 87,928 81,544 679 170,151
Share of reserves of associates ELEE ATIRE - 934 - 934
Surplus on revaluation of properties ERY¥EHER
held for own use 15,699 - - 15,699
Deferred taxation adjustment EIERIERZE (402) - - (402)
Exchange differences arising from  BE BN EBRHHREFEE Y
translation of financial statements ~ ERZEE
of foreign operations - 33,581 - 33,581
Release of translation reserve upon s 3—H B AR ER H#E
deregistration of a subsidiary B - 348 - 348
Partial disposal of a subsidiary HE—HANBARBM
without loss of control BB 2R - (209) 2,500 2,291
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—-f+ZBA=+—H
&E 103,225 116,198 3,179 222,602

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE = 32. AT MBRAR
COMPANY
(a) Company-level statement of financial position (a) ERFBKRR
2021 2020
—E-F “BIEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FEIT
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M B R 274 276
Interests in subsidiaries IS A B m 1,166,517 1,196,437
1,166,791 1,196,713
Current Assets RENEE
Other receivables H U =a 722 836
Cash and bank balances B & KMIR1T4E R 81,890 78,604
82,612 79,440
Current Liabilities RENBE
Other payables HhpEM=Ia 1,186 3,878
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERM B ABFRIE 142,153 139,748
Bank borrowings RITE™R 81,575 88,019
224,914 231,645
Net Current Liabilities BREBAR (142,302) (152,205)
Total Assets less Current Liabilities MEERASEE 1,024,489 1,044,508
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Bank borrowings RITE™R — 15,277
Net Assets BEE 1,024,489 1,029,231
Capital and Reserves (note 32(b) BARKEEE (H5232(0b))
Share capital g A 609,027 609,027
Retained profits =B EF 415,462 420,204
Total Equity REmARE 1,024,489 1,029,231
The statement of financial position of the Company was KABMBRAXRNRZIZEZZ

approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 30
March 2022 and is signed on its behalf by:

TANG TO
DIRECTOR
£

—R=tHEESgHELRE
TE > WHTINEEFARRS !

TANG YU, FREEMAN
HER

DIRECTOR

EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%

CEC— A=A

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

32. A RBEIHMBERRR (&

(b) Movement in components of equity of the (b) AT ED
Company
Share capital Retained profits Total
s et st
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZBZ2F-A—-B&6H 609,027 490,810 1,099,837
Loss for the year FEBR - (70,606) (70,606)
Balance at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021  RZEZZTE+-F=+-HRK
—R_-f-P-B&&H 609,027 420,204 1,029,231
Loss for the year FEBRE - (4,742) (4,742)
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIBZ-&
+ZB=+—-B#k 609,027 415,462 1,024,489

(c)

Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2021,

the aggregate amount of

reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders

of the Company, as calculated under the provisions

of Part 6 of Companies Ordinance, was approximately

HK$415,462,000 (2020: HK$420,204,000).

After

the end of the reporting period, the Board did not

recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil).

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

(o) fHEEDIR

A —

A ZE—F+ZHA=+—H"'1R
B (R EMER) 875 88 3 B9 1R ST &t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

33.

REMEFINEERERE
ERHIR
TREFVNAEENREREEHE
MaENEE SFRERIFRENE
o REMETINERRBEHESR
BRARRNBEEREGNEAEENGS
RERERTROBARKERETHH
HWEME °

Amounts
due to
Amount non-
Bank Lease  duetoan controlling
loans liabilities associate interests Total
HER— &
BEAT  JEERER
wITER  HE&R I ZHE At
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FAET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 R_E_EE-F—H 353,219 63,302 149 9,600 426,270
Changes from financing cash flow 'y E MEEHRER
New bank loans raised %ﬁi"fﬁh‘éﬂ 212,654 - - - 212,654
Repayment of bank loans BERRTER (246,558) - - - (246,558)
Bank loans interest paid BREITERFNE (15,780) - - - (15,780)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENRERENEAEES - (14,360) - - (14,360)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BARERSHF 257 - (4,535) - - (4,535)
Repayment to an associate BE-BHEATZTE - - (169) - (169)
Repayment to the non-controlling Shareholders — {B& 4RI AZERIE - - - (9,600) (9,600)
Total changes from financing cash flows REMEZHRERZ
2 (49,684) (18,895) (169) (9,600) (78,348)
Exchange adjustments ERAE 3,029 3,209 20 - 6,258
Other changes Hitgs
Increase in lease liabilities from entering FERTUMBEMLEMH
into new leases during the year HEERE - 4,279 - - 4,279
Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors 7R B 78 A £22019
HEERFSERNEEER - (405) - - (405)
Early termination of lease contracts RAZLHREARE - (186) - - (186)
Interest expenses (note 8) REEBR (Wi#8) 15,780 4,535 - - 20,315
Total other changes Hit 2548 15,780 8,223 - - 24,003
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZE+ZA=+—H 322,344 55,839 - - 378,183
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33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &t — & ——F+_H=+—HIFFE

33. REMEBEEINEAREME

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued) ENHK (&)
Bank Lease
loans liabilities Total
BITER HEAE =
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2021 RZE_—£-F—H 322,344 55,839 378,183
Changes from financing cash flow REMETHRERZEH
New bank loans raised MERITER 180,842 - 180,842
Repayment of bank loans BRRTER (203,244) - (203,244)
Bank loans interest paid BERRTENAE (13,442) - (13,442)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BREERENAEES - (17,685) (17,685)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BREERENFIEDH - (4,299) (4,299)
Total changes from financing cash flows REREEDRENLEDEE (35,844) (21,984) (57,828)
Exchange adjustments ERHE 1,225 1,405 2,630
Other changes Ht&g)
Increase in lease liabilities from entering AEERTUHBEME NN
into new leases during the year HEAE - 11,910 11,910
Interest expenses (note 8) MEER (17:8) 13,442 4,299 17,7141
Total other changes Hit@ @@ 13,442 16,209 29,651
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ-£+ZA=1+-H 301,167 51,469 352,636
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34. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

At the end of the reporting period,

4. REHEKIE
the Group had

RESEER  ~EERERIBUEZ

contracted with tenants for the following future minimum HEARTHRREDHEERANT !
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases:
2021 2020
-5 TR EF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Not later than one year —FR 1,196 1,162
Later than one year and FERF
not later than five years 1,795 2,303
After five years hEE 68 240
3,059 3,705
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BEAKIE
2021 2020
—_B_—F —_EEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure: BARLE
Contracted but not provided for EENERIEHE S 19,819 2,175

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group does not have any litigations or claims of material

importance and,

litigation or claims of material importance are pending or

so far as the Directors are aware, no

36. AAE

threatened by or against any companies of the Group.

AEBUTESRERNHFANEEZRR-
MRBEFFAA > WEF
NERAEBRFARNEZFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”) which is registered under
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (Chapter
426 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to
the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice
of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or
after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5.0% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5.0%
to 7.5% of the employee’s basic salary, depending on the
length of service with the Group.

Employees who are employed by subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed pension scheme operated
by the PRC government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 16% — 20% of payroll costs to the pension
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the pension scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income statement
of approximately HK$38,116,000 (2020: HK$21,046,000)
represents contributions payable to these schemes by the
Group in respect of the current accounting period. As at 31
December 2021, contributions of approximately HK$78,000
(2020: HK$262,000) due in respect of the reporting period
had not been paid over to the schemes.
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BRI B R BIE H R 8 (TR A=
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HNEEZEARENATEEFEZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, assets with the following

carrying amounts were pledged by the Group to secure

general banking facilities:

38. EE KR

RBREEER AEEER T LURE
EBEFfENEEFRR UBEGLTEE

B —fRIRTIEERR

2021 2020
—E—F —ETEHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FAET

Ownership interest in leasehold HERABE L RIEFH

land and buildings held for FRE D

own use 159,970 158,958
Land use rights S A 3,217 3,345
Plant and machinery [ 5= B 1 23 4,696 9,236
Motor vehicles AE 303 425
Bank deposits RITHER 8,221 5,941
176,407 177,905
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x NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

= BAMBERRME @

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Financial instruments by categories
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, the accounting policies
for financial instruments have been applied to the line

39. MBRAMEEREMIAZA

FEE

(a) HEHBNZEMIA

EERME BV HREERFIE
TRMIASGHHRREEAR T

items below: EHH
Financial
assets
Financial at fair value
assets at through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
NATERE
HEHERA G E ARG
MENEE NEmEE s
HKS000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FAET FET FET
Assets as per consolidated REaMBERRT
financial statements ZBE
31 December 2021 B -F
+ZA=+-H
Other financial assets HEttemEE - 53,571 53,571
Amounts due from associates G -UNE 2,451 - 2,451
Finance lease receivables EREERERE 276,348 - 276,348
Trade and other receivables BARHEMERRE 850,247 - 850,247
Short-term bank deposits with HEBE=ER2
maturity over three months RBRTER 7,339 - 7,339
Pledged bank deposits BHARITEN 8,221 - 8,221
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkFEEE 390,497 - 390,497
1,535,103 53,571 1,588,674
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &ZF —=&

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Financial instruments by categories (Continued)

39. B #5
TE

e MBS ERRME ()

T A=+ —HIEFE

RZEEREMIAZA
5 &

(a) BHERENDZEMIA (BB

Financial
assets
Financial at fair value
assets at through
amortised cost profit or loss Total
WATEE
REEM AT E SABH
NEmEE MEmMEE am
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET
Assets as per consolidated REaMBEERRT
financial statements ZEE
31 December 2020 “B°BE
+ZA=+-H
Other financial assets Eﬁﬂ%%ﬂi’fé 4,998 4,998
Amounts due from associates e E AT 3,983 - 3,983
Finance lease receivables J@H&nﬁlﬁﬁﬁ‘é% 199,960 - 199,960
Trade and other receivables BEREMERRE 837,191 - 837,191
Short-term bank deposits with HHBEBB=BAZ
maturity over three months RHRITER 3,196 - 3,196
Pledged bank deposits BRFBRTEN 5,941 - 5,941
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEe%E 485,532 - 485,532
1,535,803 4,998 1,540,801
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &t — & ——F+_H=+—HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Financial instruments by categories (Continued)

39.

MERBREEREMIAZA
FEE @

(a) BERNBEDZEMIA (@)

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Y 8 A A
HEZERMAR
HK$000
FET
Liabilities as per consolidated Wiz BERERPZEE
financial statements

31 December 2021 —E-_—+”-“H=+—H
Trade and other payables B2 R EMEARIE 849,562
Bank borrowings RITER 301,167
Lease liabilities HEaRE 51,469
1,202,198

31 December 2020 —EIEF+HA=+—H
Trade and other payables B2 KR EMERIE 805,440
Bank borrowings RITER 322,344
Lease liabilities HEaRE 55,839
1,183,623
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk arising in the normal course of its business and
financial instruments. The Group’s risk management
objectives and policies mainly focus on minimising
the potential adverse effects of these risks on the
Group's financial performance by closely monitoring the
individual exposure as summarised below.

(i) Foreign currency risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi, Hong Kong
Dollars, United States Dollars and Japanese Yen.
Such exposures arise from sales or purchases
by subsidiaries other than the subsidiaries’
functional currencies. This currency exposure
is managed primarily through sourcing raw
materials denominated in the same currency. In
addition, certain recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the entities to which they
relate. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy.

Certain assets and liabilities of the Group are
principally denominated in US$. HK$ is pegged
to US$, and thus foreign exchange exposure is
considered as minimal.

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,459,000
lower or higher (2020: post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$3,023,000 lower or higher).
There will be no impact on other components of
equity.

HMBERBEEREMTIAZA
FEE @)

(b) MBEREZR

FEENEBARZSEVHAR
mHERE (BEINERRE - FRE
R B ER) ~EEERRKR—R&
EHBEBRARERETMIEERZRE
BExAR AEENAREESR
EFERITEZEBERYERN TE
AR EBINBERVEAER
MBERFEMZNETEETE-

(i) SFEREE
KEBFARZINER Z R £
EAANRE B ETKkH
TToZERBILRAAWB AR
LUK B A B Z T BE & & LLSh
ZEBETEEmMES LB
R B Th I B 5 48 B B DUAE

BEBINEZEMEEE S
S EPERBZEERER
BIEWIELEBERNIIEE
EAFEEM - AEEHEBA
Al MBS R IR ©

AERZETEEREGRE
BUETASTER(-BTHA
vy o EIESNE BEE R AR
EEH -

B —F+_-_F=+—

HMBTR ARKERE
ﬁ/ﬁﬁm%’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
“%T" ZEEZBRKRE

i) %@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ/m
1%9mm%m(_%_7
BRI B %M&/msmsow
BT) o m B E A S5 R
ERCIEA-E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2021, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 10% against the YEN, with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$429,000 lower
or higher (2020: post-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$1,000 higher or lower). There will
be no impact on other components of equity.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to each of the Group
entities’ exposure to currency risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the
next annual reporting date. In this respect, it is
assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$
and the US$ would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the US$
against other currencies. Results of the analysis as
presented in above represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the Group entities’ profit
after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period for presentation purposes. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) -

-

REMBRRMEE (B -

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30. EAKEERSMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE (&)
(Continued)

(b) MBREKRRERER (&)
(i) FJEmpE

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk

Except for pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents (note 26),
the Group has no other significant interest-bearing
assets. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact on interest-bearing
assets resulted from the changes in interest rates
because the interest rates of bank deposits are not
expected to change significantly.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Prime or HIBOR
arising from the Group's borrowings denominated
in HK$ and RMB.

Borrowings at floating rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at
fixed rates and finance lease receivables expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Details
of the Group’s borrowings and finance lease
receivables have been disclosed in notes 28 and 21
respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. In order to
manage the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group
will repay the corresponding borrowings when it
has surplus funds.

PRICF|ER O RHRIRITTER K
ReKRIFEFE ME26) b
AERTEEFREANTR
BE - FEEHNBRAKRKEER
TREERALFAZTHHA X
SErrE-EEEL AN
NEXBEEHRFREEESE
EATE ABRPIRITEMH
REFH AR

FEBENNRERENE
BRETERREAEEET
RARBERHREINR
REBRITEEFREZKE

FREEREAEEEHREE
MEBANERER - ESEMRE
WREHERAEAEEE
HATEBEMNXRER - BREAX
ERERRERBEREMR
Rz 58 BRI 28k
214K EE -

7 & B I EET LA A R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for the floating rate bank borrowings at the end
of the reporting period. For floating rate bank
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates on
HK$-denominated borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$1,185,000 lower/higher
(2020: post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$1,204,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

At 31 December 2021, if interest rates on
RMB-denominated borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$180,000 lower/higher
(2020: post-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$379,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date. The above changes in interest rates represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2020.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

39.

MERBREEREMIAZA
FEE @

(b) MBRRREZER (&
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities at fair
value through other comprehensive income price
risk in its financial assets. As the Group's policy is
only to invest on such investments by its surplus
funds, the exposure may not have significant
impact on the Group’s financial position. The
Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its trade and other receivables, finance lease
receivable and cash and bank balances. The
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables,
finance lease receivable and cash and bank
balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant
credit risk associated with cash and bank balances
since they are substantially deposited at state-
owned banks and other medium or large-sized
listed banks. Management does not expect that
there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties.

The Group has large number of customers and
there was no concentration of credit risk. The
Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability
of these receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

(iii)

(iv)
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g NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o

= EAMBREMNE @

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30. ERAKEERSMIAZA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE (&)
(Continued)

(b) MBRRREZER (&
(iv) EEmEE (&)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.
To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting
date with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward looking information. Especially
the following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating;

e external credit rating;

e actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
change to the customer’s ability to meet its
obligations;

e actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/customer;

e  significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the customer, including
changes in the payment status of customer in
the Group and changes in the operating results
of the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
(a) Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables.

The loss allowance for trade receivables was

39. W RIREEREMIAZA

FEE @)

(b) MBREKRRERER (&)
(iv) EEmEE (&

(a) EZEURIA
rEEBBBLENG X
MEBMBREERE9
FRENFEREERE
SR i ;xR 5T R
B&ZBENRFBEERE
WRIEF B TRES
B

B 5 B RIER S R &

determined as follows. The ECLs below also BETUWT TXHTEH
incorporated forward looking information. EEBETEIAEMY

Bik}o

2021

ZEZ-F
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEEX IREALE R E
% HKS'000 HKS000
FET FET
0 to 3 months EE={EH 0.9% 556,048 (5,270)
4 10 6 months mEREAR 1.0% 157,843 (1,654)
7 to 9 months tENER 2.5% 54,145 (1,355)
10 to 12 months +Z+ZM@E8 3.7% 24,827 (908)
110 2 years —EC_F 14.7% 19,361 (2,854)
2 to 3 years ZE=F 92.6% 11,610 (10,756)
Over 3 years BB=fF 99.8% 83,406 (83,203)
907,240 (106,000)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B2 — & _—#F+ _H=+—HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
(a) Trade receivables (Continued)

30. WREREEREMIAZA

FEE @

(b) E#?“J’H‘ l%’f( )
(a) %%WEH&TAI (&)

2020

~3o%%
Expected Gross carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
RHBEX RERE BiEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 3 months ZE=fEA 0.8% 591,611 (5,293)
4 to 6 months MEREAR 0.8% 74,769 (613)
7 t0 9 months tENEAR 1.7% 42,196 (740)
10 to 12 months +E+ZEA 3.1% 13,193 (409)
110 2 years —E_F 21.4% 23,699 (5,073)
2 10 3 years _E-F 77.2% 18,253 (14,092)
Over 3 years BiB=F 95.6% 89,726 (85,811)
853,447 (112,031)

(b) Finance lease receivables
The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for all finance lease receivables.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

(b) FEWREEEERIE
AEEBABIEN T ZE
MEAMBREERE
%ﬁﬁm%%%f%%
sHiR i sX R SO 5T IR
R 75 AR A R R
EHEMENEFERRE
i E R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Finance lease receivables (Continued)

The loss allowance for finance lease
receivables was determined as follows. The
ECLs below also incorporated forward looking

39.

MERBREEREMIAZA
FEE @)

(b) MBREKRRERER (&)
(iv) EEmEE (&

(b) EWRREBEERE (#B)
EURmRMEEERENS
BEEHEEENT - TX
BEEEBRTE 3R

information. REM B o
Not overdue Overdue Total
Nl i bl Bt
2021 ZBZ-F
Expected loss rate RfEEx 1.0% 8.8%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) SREAEE (F&7) 218,384 65,860 284,244
Loss allowance (HK$ 000) BEEE (FET) (2,131) (5,765) (7,896)
Not overdue Overdue Total
FRakD Al ki)
2020 BCEE
Expected loss rate BHRHEEE 2.0% 18.2%
Gross carrying amount (HK$ 000) BRE4E%E (F#7T) 122,967 97,164 220,131
Loss allowance (HK$000) BEEE (FE1) (2,459) (17,712) (20,171)

(v) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the parent company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

(v) TEEZEE
FEBEBETENEETHE
iR AEEAEHRTEE 8
ERZEGFNERRENE
BERUBAEASHNERES
BROEMHERBAZERETE
WETKF QIZAEBRRE
FEHEDAUFE - AEEN
HREEHEZENRRER
PHRBEERER REAS
BrEERE URRETE
REASHAERMNEE KA

EHUHERBIRENEHH
EERETR BURNERS
WREMRBHEZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The tables below categorised the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period from the end of the
reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The tabulated amounts are the contractual
undiscounted cash flow payments of the Group.

39. MBRAMEERREMIAZA
TEE (#E)

(b) MBRRREZER (&
(v) FBEzmEE (&
TEREBERSEEHESY
A ZERTHE BAEH
ZEREBERARIAAAER
BTN S RPNEEDA
EBZENIFMREERE -

Less than Between Between
1year 1and2years 2and5 years Total
DME 1528 2E5F gt
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
At 31 December 2021 R-B-—-%
+-B=+-H
Trade and other payables BEREMENRE 849,562 - - 849,562
Lease liabilities HEER 18,725 16,542 23,881 59,148
Bank borrowings RITER 295,845 9,436 2,490 307,771
1,164,132 25,978 26,371 1,216,481
At 31 December 2020 RIE_EE
+ZA=+-H
Trade and other payables B REMEMTIE 805,440 - - 805,440
Lease liabilities HE&R 18,903 13,719 33,888 66,510
Bank borrowings BITER 292,078 27,060 11,927 331,065
1,116,421 40,779 45,815 1,203,015

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the carrying value
of the Group's financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

HMBERBEEREMTIAZA
FEE @)

ATEEE
() RAFEEAARDZETHEE
NFEBEXRE

TEREINKREEE AR
RETERNATEESE

ZAEENEMITAZERE
BEDEEEBVBRGE

A 13 AEZAFER
ZREBRBPR R AT EBESNE
NEZEFERDESENM TG
BEREMBEBEZIERN
REEZMRETE

- EERMGE:EERFE
—RBR#@ AR BIR &
ENRBEERERER
ERETHBZREHER
B stz AFEE

- BEERMGE:ERFEZ
BRE@AHE BIKREE
AE—RBRZAUEBHEEH
AHE BXREHBEK
TRBERBARE) T8
ZATEE FAHRER
ANBBESETEREZ
A BUR o

— EE=ERMEE: REBA
FABEYBHBZA
FREE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

4

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &t — & ——F+_H=+—HIFFE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 30. WA EEREMIAZR
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS TEE #E)
(Continued)
(c) Fair value measurement (Continued) () 2XFEENE #E
(i) Financial assets measured at fair value (i) AFEEAABEGZZEZHE
through profit or loss (Continued) ZE ()
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEBEZE (&

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2021 categorised into

KZEZ-F¥+-B=+—H

ATEEHEEUTIE
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ATEE E-BR = BZER
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Other financial assets HitEpERE
- Unlisted equity investment —JFFLMERRE 7,085 - 7,085 -
- Unlisted unit trust funds —FLmEMR

EtEE 46,486 - 46,486 -

Fair value measurement

as at 31 December 2020 categorised into
KF-RETCAZT-R

ATEEFEEUTHE
Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ATERE E—E7X FIEX E-EBXR
HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Other financial assets HtEmERE
- Unlisted equity investment ~FLHERERE 4,753 - 4,753 -
- Unlisted unit trust funds —JELMEM

EEE 245 - 245 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

\\\

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair values of unlisted unit trust funds,
principal guaranteed and non-guaranteed
investment funds in Level 2 are based on net
assets value of the investment funds at the end
of the reporting period provided by the financial
institution.

The fair value of unlisted equity investment in
Level 2 is based on fair value of initial subscription
cost adjusted by market movements for the
corresponding period from the date of subscription
up to the end of the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and
2021, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2020 and 2021.

HMBERBEEREMTIAZA
FEE @)

ATBEHE (2

() AFEBEHAAGZEHE
Z (#)
ATBERE (8
FEMBAGEES RER
FREREESZATHEE
EE-BREER MMM
REERSEFAERLHE
EEHFEEMEE

FLTREREZAFER
EE_ERZENKEREAR
HERSHRZABHBH
TS EBBEZVBDER
RZRFEE

BHE_ZZEFREZ—
F+ZA=F+—HIEFER>
F—EBXEAFIERZMEIL
EEBENEEISE BRI
RE=ZEBXEBEH BEQATEE
REEZEBESHEELER K
EEERREENRRSHE

HFEsS

(i) THEEREENLTFEE
BEKREE
RIEZEFR_EZ—F
+ZB=+—H AEENE
BT B 7 AY A 30 8 85 A AN BR
AEAEAFEBETEEERD
Bl e
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
(d) Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total
debts ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings
divided by total capital. Total borrowings include
current liabilities and non-current liabilities. Total capital
includes total borrowings and total equity as shown in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fRE MBS RRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

39.

MERBREEREMIAZA
FEE @

(d) BEERRER

AEENESERBR BREXR
SERFECEEEREEEY
FEZ] U IR R A SR [E1 3R - [F) B 3k
BHMBEOENN D TERFRE
NERGEELUREER R

RTHRFHRBEAER EET]
FEERBXNTRENKREEZER
MRREEES HITHRILE
BELDURMEER

AEBMBBERLEXERHESA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)
(d) Capital risk management (Continued)
The total debts ratios at 31 December 2021 and 2020
are as follows:

HMBERBEEREMTIAZA

FEE @)

d) E£EBEE B
R_E - —FR_EZFF+Z
A=+—HzZ#@BaELXS

2021 2020
B —F BT

HK$000 HK$'000

FAET FAET

Current liabilities mENAaE 1,246,243 1,227,609
Non-current liabilities EREEE 81,118 107,086
Total borrowings B4R RE 1,327,361 1,334,695
Total equity HEmiE % 1,640,524 1,499,983
Total capital BRAEEE 2,967,885 2,834,678
Total debts ratio MBEELEER 45% 47 %

Certain entities of the Group are subject to loan
covenants. There is no material non-compliance with
those loan covenants.

AEERLEERABRETEE
BHREXERBHAERREN

B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
- REMBEEMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

40. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH 40. BRI S EITZ R B REER
RELATED PARTIES
During the year, the Group had significant transactions with KEER AEBETIMEHETZ
the following related parties, together with balances with BEAR G BERNBEHEEH 2 585+
them as at the end of the reporting period, details of which BAT -

are as follows:

2021
Note HK$'000
k23 FET
Company controlled by certain HETESKRERE
Directors and their relatives: ZHlz A
Management fee paid (note /) BIBESH W) 996
Non-controlling interests: JEER R
Rental income HEWA =
Consultancy fee paid EEESZH -
Sales tHE =
Associates: YN
Balances due to the Group RN B 2 AR
(note ij) (B &2ii) 20 2,451
EDP charges paid B AREERT Y -
Remuneration of key management Z“EBFTEEHIEAS
personnel of the Group (note iii): BN (B73Liii)
Salaries and other short-term e e H A AR AR
employee benefits EE=H 14,555

278 COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

2020
“ETHF
HK$°000
TAET

996

1,114
397
307

3,983
256

22,577



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MBS ERRME ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

40. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH
RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

Further details of Directors’

and the chief executives’

emoluments are included in note 10 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Notes:

(@)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

The prices of the transactions were determined by the
Directors with reference to prices for similar transactions with
unrelated third parties.

The balances are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Key management personnel whose profiles are included in
"Directors and Senior Management's Biographies” section of
this report.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company was a party,
and in which a Director had a material interest, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant

transactions with related parties during the year or

significant balances with them at the end of the reporting
period.

40. RRMBSEITZ R 5 KGR

(%)
BERTHEHNSE—
REMERKRMIEE100

TEBIE

ez -
() ZEXZHNERCEFSZHIFFE
BZFETRURZNEREBERE

(i) ZEEHA/BIET REREEEER

\éh‘%

(i) ERETBEBEABEB2NNERAREZ
EEREREEANEBEIEM -

(iv) BRE#IERS > RFRNFEREMRH
B AARMEREEHEREEAED Y
NP BHHTUZEMERELY -

Br LA BR SN AN GFE SRR 5 M H
hMERRG  RAERSEFEBRBEFL
BAERERER-
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Ny NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

—

= BARBRRNE @

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

M. FEMRBLABERE
R_E - —F+"_A=+—HFTEWE
ABFHBEMT

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2021 are as follows:

280

Percentage
Place of Issued and of equity
incorporation/ Place of fully paid attributable to
Name of subsidiary registration operation share capital the Company  Principal activities
ARF
R,/ BETRK FE1L R HE
o) YNGR s b BRRE B EEEH
Cosmos Machinery Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100.00  Investment holding
KEKHMAERAS BE Bl 10,000,0007 7T REER
Cosmos Machinery International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$32,000,000 100.00  Investment holding
KRB HERERAR BE Bl 32,000,000 7 REER
Cosmos Machinery (Dongguan) The PRC The PRC HK$5,000,000 100.00  Trading of machinery
Trading Co., Ltd.@ HE HE 5,000,000 7T KHE 5
REMH (R5%) HEFRAF
Cosmos Machinery (Wuxi) The PRC The PRC HK$5,000,000 100.00  Trading of machinery
Trading Co., Ltd.”/ HE HE 5,000,000 7T BHES
REMM (F5) HERRAR
Dekuma Rubber and Plastic Technology The PRC The PRC HK$24,000,000 100.00  Manufacturing and trading of
(Dongguan) Limited® f I 24,000,0007 75 machinery
ERERERE FR) ERAEY HRREEKRES
Donghua Machinery Ltd.”’ The PRC The PRC RMB146,199,955 75.56  Manufacturing and
RERWBRAFTY # HE 146,199,955 AR 1 trading of machinery
BHHERES
Gainbase Industrial Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 52.00  Trading of printed
HEBEARRA BN N 10,0007 7T circuit boards
ENRIRERE Z
Grand Technology Products Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$9,500,000 100.00  Investment holding
RENKERBRAR e N 9,500,000 7T REZR
Jackson Equities Incorporated British Virgin Islands  Hong Kong uss$2 100.00  Investment holding
HEEYHES s Ve REZR
Karmay Industrial Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$55,000,000 100.00  Investment holding
EXEEERRAT BN 58 55,000,000 7T and trading of plastic
products
REERRIERRES
Karmay Plastic Products (Zhuhai) The PRC The PRC HK$16,800,000 100.00  Processing of
Co., Ltd.*@ ] e 16,800,000 ¢ plastic products
EXREHNEG BB ARATY ABREMT
Melco Industrial Supplies Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,500,000 100.00  Trading of industrial
Company Limited EE &4 1,500,000 75 consumables

EBIEBHMERRAA

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

W38 2 5 78

Melco Industrial Supplies
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd*@
ERTESM (LB BRARY

Guangzhou Melco Industrial
Supplies Co., Ltd.?
ENTERIERMERATY

Shenzhen Gainbase Printed
Circuit Board Co., Ltd.*@
FNFBEGREIRERAEY

Welltec Machinery Limited
EABMERAT

KFE Hong Kong Co., Limited
BR-ZERREBERAR

Wuxi Grand Tech Machinery
Group Ltd.”
BHRBENEEERATY

Wuxi Grand Plastic Machine
Manufacture Co., Ltd.?
EHRHEREEERARY

Cosmos Grand Plastics Co., Ltd.”

BREARBREXERATY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% —&F ——F+_H=+—HIFFZE

Place of
incorporation/
registration

B3/
st S

The PRC

T

The PRC
F

The PRC
+

Hong Kong
X
Hong Kong

R

The PRC
F

The PRC
+

The PRC
T

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
operation
E=d b
The PRC

TE

The PRC
FE

The PRC
FE

Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong

)

The PRC
FE

The PRC
FE

The PRC
FE

41. T EHRBLE

Issued and
fully paid
share capital

BRITR
BERE

US$600,000
600,000% 7T

US$400,000
400,000% 7T

HK$140,000,000
140,000,000 7T

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000/ 7C
US$7,800,000

7,800,000 7T

US$9,586,000
9,586,000 7T

US$2,850,000
2,850,000% 70

HK$56,000,000
56,000,000 7T

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
b YN
ek AR #E
AL

100.00

100.00

52.00

100.00

52.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

“ECEHFR

B (3

Principal activities

TEEE

Trading of industrial
consumables

TEHERED

Trading of industrial
consumables

IXHERED

Processing of
printed circuit boards

ENRIARE& AR AN T

Trading of machinery

BB

Trading of printed
circuit boards

EIRI4RRRIRE 2
Manufacturing and
trading of machinery
BHHERES
Investment holding

REER

Processing of plastic products
FBEEMT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

M. FEMRBLABIEE (&)

f===]

(Continued)
Place of
incorporation/ Place of
Name of subsidiary registration operation
i,/
MEBASLE iR ) gy
Cosmos Machinery Technology The PRC The PRC
(Jiangsu) Co., Ltd.@ hE HE]
KEMERE (I8 BRARY
Dongguan Cosmos Plastic The PRC The PRC
Products Co., Ltd.*® HE HE

RRABZHAZERATY
* For identification propose only
Notes:

(@) The companies are registered in the form of wholly-owned
foreign investment enterprises.

(b) The companies are registered in the form of sino-foreign
cooperative enterprises.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results
of the Group for the year or form a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group at the end of the year. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt capital at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT

Issued and
fully paid
share capital

25,000,000 7T

10,000,000 A B ¥

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company  Principal activities
YN
BETR FE{L AR #E
BRRE B FEEH
US$25,000,000 100.00  Manufacturing and
trading of machinery
HRREERES
RMB10,000,000 70.00  Manufacturing of

plastic products

TBRMBE
* 2R
=2

(@) REEFLAMRIBINEBEERE-

(b) ABBELAMBMILBTIEGERZE-

UEMBRABTENERIREHEFE
EXEREEUREANFREELER
EEFBEZEKREMHMIIER LI EAM
MBARFIEESIRRETE

RERNAFEEAFBHR > KMEBER
Bl BT EAEBRA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
fREMBRRME (8

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & —E_—F+_F=+—HILFEZ

41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES M. TEMBATFERE (&)
(Continued)
The following table lists out the information relating to all TRIHTERBEERRABMEFA
subsidiaries of Major Success Company Limited, which has BFPAEBEANIEERER (TFEERE
material non-controlling interest (“NCI"). The summarised ml) BER o U N RIMBHIE B E N
financial information presented below represents the BHAERIKETAABBRZZEEE

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ETT FAET
NCI percentage EEREZB DL 48% 48%
Current assets MENEE 384,829 399,296
Non-current assets EREEE 141,774 178,715
Current liabilities mENaE (182,008) (198,486)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (36,189) (50,244)
Equity e 308,406 329,281
Carrying amount of NCI JEERERREE 148,165 158,185
Revenue WA 793,910 690,443
(Loss)/profit for the year NEELKE (BB md (25,182) 8,447
Total comprehensive 2m (ZH) W EH4EEE
(expense)/income (20,875) 16,195
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI PDEEEFERER
(&518) & F! (12,088) 4,055
Cash (used in)/generated from KRS (ER) EEZRE
operating activities (9,347) 43,836
Cash used in investing activities KRETHEAZERES (8,577) (9,986)
Cash used in financing activities MEEHER RS (21,228) (26,647)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i MBI AR M EE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &iF —&E _——F+_H=+—HILFZE

42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
and a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2021 and which have not been early adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 3
SR BREERFEIF BT
Amendments to HKAS 16
ERAGEF 1652 BT
Amendments to HKAS 37
ERGHEREITHRZIET
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
ERAMBREENZ_ZE—N\EE
R ERNEENE
Amendments to HKAS 1
ERAGHENF IR 2B
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
SRGHEE IR
EAMBREENBHBRE 2R 2B
Amendments to HKAS 8
EREERFE8F BT
Amendments to HKAS 12

EBGENB1258 2]

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact

2. E_ZT—

=4

V=

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

S| RELR

Property, Plant and Equipment—Proceeds before Intended Use
VME - -BERRE-REBRAZFAERIE

Onerous Contracts— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BEESN-BITaNZHE

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and HKAS 41

EAUMBREENE 1K - SEMBREERFEINR

EAMBREENF16FREBGHERNFIN (BTE)
Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
BENEARBDHIER

Disclosure of accounting policies
B ERIRE

Definition of accounting estimates

A ER

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single

transaction

ERE-RBELENEERERNELRE

CENSENEA - X

BRELE

on the consolidated financial statements.

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED e

REEHEERRAR

i S 4 A
EEzFHRER

BEHBAE

—#+=A=+—§
I E R MR
BIfE ST~ 3737 AU R R B M B

FHBRARTELSRLE &
EEMZENREE_Z
T—F+ZRA=1T—HLEFENHREN
BERNZEFREMBRERANLAKIE SRR
ZHERNES] R — TR 5] R —F B
WERERF175 REGH - ZENHA
AEBAMZERBENTEE:

Effective for
accounting

periods beginning
on or after
RTFIBHEHEER
MMz st iR ER

1 January 2022
“E”_"_F%—-F—H
1 January 2022
_Z__%—B—H
1 January 2022
“E”_"_F%—-F—H
1 January 2022

“E”_"F%—F—H
1 January 2023
“B2=#—H—H
1 January 2023
ZE=F—F—H
1 January 2023
B2 =F—A—H
1 January 2023

“E=-F—-HF—H

FEREFETHEEERHEEARR
FERBLE BEGHE
i RABLEEN RN NN EEME



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FHHREE

malmER
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-B=1+—HLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“2—tfF B\ IZ-AFE IZBIZF IBI-F
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue LN 2,446,848 2,682,452 2,344,923 2,432,021 3,075,305
Profit before tax S pabl 49,926 108,219 39,075 35,423 113,119
Taxation "IAE (6,076) (19,467) (14,191) (9,545) (28,914)
Profit for the year FEHR 43,850 88,752 24,884 25,878 84,205
Non-controlling interests TR ER 16,566 14,700 9,129 6,300 (5,527)
Profit attributable to equity ANBIRERSE AEN
shareholders of the Company kil 27,284 74,052 15,755 19,578 89,732
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HEaMBRRER
At 31 December
®+ZB=+—H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“2—tfF 2\ IZ2-AFE IZZBIZF IBI-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Total assets BEE 2,770,659 2,731,693 2,603,889 2,834,678 2,967,885
Total liabilities Y=Y (1,478,520)  (1,331,408) (1,217,448) (1,334,695  (1,327,361)
Total equity ERiEE 1,292,139 1,400,285 1,386,441 1,499,983 1,640,524
Non-controlling interests R ER 211,645 216,716 214,772 231,357 229,715
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GLOSSARY
57 5

In this report, unless the context otherwise specifies, the following expressions have the following meanings:

RABER  BEXESBMEN TIARREBUTESE

“Articles”
ERRMA

“Audit Committee”
BZEEY)

“Board”

EEg)

"CG Code”
(ZEEARTRI)

“CMEL Code”

IPNEINEE SN

“Codo”

IS

"Companies Ordinance”

KUNSIRES/IDE

“Company”

/NI

“Cosmos Holdings”

TREER)

"Director(s)”

=c==y

the articles of association of the Company
NAT) Z B =R MEA]

the audit committee of the Company
KRB ZENEES

the board of Directors of the Company

EANUNSIE 3=

the Corporate Governance Code under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

(EHRAD) M+ (R EER TR

the Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and Relevant Employees of
Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, revised from time to time thereafter

AERMEEBERADEERAMESEETESFH TR ERTREL)

Codo Development Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)
BEZERERAE —EREBAMMUIZERAT —LETERE (REGEE
HRAGHE) E&E

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(REMFEG) (EBEMIFE6225)

Cosmos Machinery Enterprises Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and the Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 118)

REAEMEEFRAT  —AREBEMALZARRB RERMERIIAE
REm (BRMHASE: 118)

Cosmos Machinery (Holdings) Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, a controlling Shareholder (as defined under the Listing
Rules)

KEHW (ER) BRAS —BREEEMRILIZBRAT —HERRRE (R
BC(EMRAD EH

the director(s) of the Company
KANBESE

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT



“Group”
iN-SYET

IIHK$II Or IIHKDII
=S by

“Hong Kong” or "HKSAR"
r&#)

“Hung Cheong”

Hung Cheong |

“Listing Rules”
(LR

“Mainland China” or “PRC”

FH B P9 3t 3 T AR B

“"Model Code”

MR <r A )

“Nomination Committee”

MEvZEE)

“Remuneration Committee”

FMZEs )

“RMB"
TAE ¥

“Saniwell”

ISaniwell J

“SFO"
(G5 RARE G )]

GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)
s ()

the Company and its subsidiaries
KRB RENB AT

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BBEEEH

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEFBEIITHE

Hung Cheong Realty Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cosmos Holdings
Hung Cheong Realty Limited > —RBIREBRLZFHETMMIIZBRAT > KE
ERZz2ENBERE

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
R (EB 5 EmRAD)

The People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, shall exclude
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan
REARHAMED IARSMES > FEESE - PERMFHIITHRE KRG E

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers under
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(ERRAD M+ (LHETAESTETEFTXZNRETA)

the nomination committee of the Company
KRBZRZEEES

the remuneration committee of the Company
KRBZHMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR REIEEE

Saniwell Holding Inc., a company incorporated in the Cook Islands with limited
liability

Saniwell Holding Inc.» —BIRER B EFMM L 2B R AT

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(FEHFREBERAE) (FHEFIEHE5715)
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GLOSSARY (CONTINUED)
= ()

“Share(s)”
MR 7]

"Shareholder(s)”
MRZER)

“Stock Exchange”
MBg SZ P |

“Tai Shing”

lTai Shing J

“US" or “United States”
M=y

“USD"” or "US$”
S

“YEN"
'H7tl

"op
M% ]

the ordinary share(s) of the Company
PiN/NEST o = ]

the holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
KANBIRDTFEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBMEXZMARRE

Tai Shing Agencies Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability, a substantial Shareholder (as defined under the SFO)

Tai Shing Agencies Limited> —BR EBE X HEAHMBILZBRAE —% %
RN RBE(BHFRPERO) EX)

the United States of America
EFRERE

United States Dollars, the lawful currency of the United States
Em EBZEEEE

Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan
Hio HARZ EEGE

per cent.
Bt

COSMOS MACHINERY ENTERPRISES LIMITED « AR#EMEEERAT
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